
HEARING TO BE CONDUCTED UNDER THE TERMS OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 

 

 
 

 

City of Westminster 
 

  
 

Committee Agenda 
 

Title: 
 

 Licensing Sub-Committee (4) 

   

Meeting Date: 
 

 Friday 22 April 2022 

   

Time: 
 

 10.00 am 

   

Venue: 
 

 Rooms 18.01 - 18.03 - 18th Floor, 64 Victoria Street, London, 
SW1E 6QP 

   

Members:  Councillors: 

  Karen Scarborough (Chairman) 
Jim Glen 
Aicha Less 

   

  Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting and 
listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda.  
 
Admission to the public gallery is via a visitor’s pass which is 
available from the main ground floor reception at 64 Victoria 
Street from 9.30am.  
 
If you have a disability and require any special assistance, please 
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in advance of 
the meeting. An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter.  
 
If you require further information, please contact the Committee 
Officer, Sarah Craddock, Committee and Councillor Co-ordinator. 
Email: scraddock@westminster.gov.uk Tel: 07790980186 
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk 
 

 
 

http://www.westminster.gov.uk/


 

 

Note for Members: Members are reminded that officer contacts are shown at the end of 
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.  
Regarding Item 2, guidance on Declarations of Interests is included in the Code of 
Governance. If Members and Officers have any questions, they should contact the 
Director of Law before the meeting please. 

AGENDA 
 

PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)  

1.   MEMBERSHIP  

 To report any changes to the membership. 
 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 To receive declarations by Members and Officers of the 
existence and nature of any pecuniary interests or any other 
significant interest in matters on this agenda. 
 

 

 Licensing Applications for Determination 
 

 

1.   MA DAMES, 58 PORCHESTER ROAD, W2 6ET (Pages 1 - 34) 

 Ward 
CIA* 
SCZ** 

Site Name & 
Address 

Application 
Type 

Licensing 
Reference No. 

Bayswater 
 
*   None 
 
** 

Ma Dames 
58 Porchester Road 
W2 6ET 
 

Premises 
Licence 
Review 

22/01181/LIREVP 
 

*Cumulative Impact Area 

** Special Consideration Zone (NA) 
 

 

 
 
Stuart Love  
Chief Executive 
12 April 2022 
 



 
 

 

In considering applications for Premises Licences under the Licensing Act 2003, the Sub 
Committee is advised of the following: 

Policy Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to the City of Westminster 
statement of Licensing Policy, effective from January 2021. 

Guidance Considerations 

The Licensing Sub-Committee is required to have regard to any guidance issued by the 
Secretary of State under Section 182 the Licensing Act 2003.  The most recent version 
was published in April 2018. 

Core hours When Customers Are Permitted to Be on The Premises  

Core hours, as set out in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021, are when 
customers are permitted to be on the Premises. The maximum opening hours permitted 
will not exceed the start time and terminal hour for each of the days where licensable 
activity is permitted.  

Note: The core hours are for all licensable activities but if an application includes Late 
Night Refreshment, then the starting time for that licensable activity will be 11.00 pm. 

1. Casinos  

Up to 24 hours a day whilst Casino Gaming is permitted by a Premises Licence under 
the Gambling Act 2005.  

2. Cinemas, Cultural Venues and Live Sporting Premises 

Monday to Sunday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

3. Hotels 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours  
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sale of alcohol to guests for 
consumption in hotel/guest rooms only: Anytime up to 24 hours 

4. Off licences 

Monday to Saturday:  08:00 hours to 23:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 

5. Outdoor Spaces 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

6. Pubs and bars, Fast Food and Music and Dance venues  

Monday to Thursday:  10:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday: 10:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 



 
 

 

Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 12:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

7. Qualifying Clubs  

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

8. Restaurants 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday: 09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

9. Sexual Entertainment Venues and Sex Cinemas 

Monday to Thursday:  09:00 hours to 23:30 hours 
Friday and Saturday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 
Sunday:  09:00 hours to 22:30 hours 
Sundays Immediately Prior To A Bank Holiday:  09:00 hours to 24:00 hours 

 



 

             
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Item No: 
 

 

   

Licensing Ref No:  
  

22/01181/LIREVP 
 

   

 
Date: 

 

 
22 April 2022 

   

Classification: 
  

For General Release 
 

   

 
Title of Report: 

 

 
Ma Dames 
58 Porchester Road 
London 
W2 6ET 

   

 
Report of: 

 

 
Director of Public Protection and Licensing 

   

 
Policy context: 

 

 
City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy 

   

 
Financial summary: 

 

  
None 
 

   

 
Report Author: 

 

 
Karyn Abbott 
Senior Licensing Officer 

   

 
Contact Details: 

 

 
Telephone: 0207 641 6500 
E-mail: kabbott@westminster.gov.uk 

Licensing Sub-
Committee Report 

page 1

Agenda Item 1.



 

APPLICATION DETAILS 
 

Application 
Type: 

A review of premises licence application under the Licensing Act 2003. 

Applicant: Alex Juon – Interim Head of Service Public 
Protection and Licensing South West 

Date 
Application 
Received: 

7 February 2022 

Premises 
Name and  
Address: 

Ma Dames 
58 Porchester Road 
London 
W2 6ET 

Ward Name: 
 

Bayswater 

 

Cumulative 
Impact Area: 

None 

Description of 
Premises: 

The premises currently operates as a nightclub. 
 

Preliminary 
Note: 

None 

 
2.   SUMMARY OF APPLICATION 
 
2.1 An application submitted by the Licensing Authority for a review of the premises licence for Ma 

Dames, 58 Porchester Road, London, W2 6ET was received on 7th February 2022 on the 
grounds of the Prevention of Crime and Disorder, Public Safety and the Prevention of Public 
Nuisance.   A full copy of the application can be found at Annex 1. 

 
  2.2    Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (para 11.2) states that at any 

stage following the grant of a premises licence, a responsible authority, such as the Police or 
the Environmental Health Service, or any other person who can seek a review, may ask the 
Licensing Authority to review the premises licence because of a matter arising at the premises 
in connection with any of the four licensing objectives. 

 
2.3    As such, in accordance with section 52(2) of the above-mentioned Act, the Licensing Authority 

must hold a hearing to consider the application and any relevant representations. The 
requirement to hold a hearing is mandatory in nature. 

 
2.4    The premises currently benefits from a premises licence that permits: 

 
Performance of Dance 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Provision of facilities for Dancing 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Provision of facilities for making Music 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Performance of Live Music 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 

page 2



 

Playing of Recorded Music 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Provision of facilities for entertainment of a similar description to making music or 
dancing 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Anything of a similar description to Live Music, Recorded Music or Performance of 
Dance 
 Monday to Wednesday: 09:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 09:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   09:00 to 22:30  
 
Late Night Refreshment 
 Monday to Wednesday: 23:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 23:00 to 02:00  
 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol 
 Monday to Wednesday: 10:00 to 23:30  
 Thursday to Saturday: 10:00 to 01:30  
 Sunday:   12:00 to 22:30  
 

2.5      Further documents that were submitted as part of the review application can be found at 
Annex 1 (Appendix 1-9) 

 
2.6  On submission of this application, the applicant provided an in-depth description of the issues 

relating to the premises which stated the following: 
  
 Westminster City Council have had City Inspectors officers deployed to this premises since 

August 2021 to witness the dispersal procedure, and to monitor for incidents of noise and 
other anti-social behaviour. 

 
There have been at least 19 visits made to the premises between August 2021 and February 
2022. Most of these visits have found no issues of concern at the time of visit; although the 
visit made on the 3rd of October 2021 at 02.30 found a group of customers gathered outside 
and the officers feared a disturbance would take place. The officers did engage with the DPS 
who was present at the time.  

 
Since the premises reopened following the pandemic there has been a significant increase in 
complaints from residents of the local area, in particular Westbourne Park Road and Celbridge 
Mews, regarding noise, anti-social behaviour, litter, urination, and human excrement, and use 
of nitrous oxide cannisters. 

 
The original licence was issued in 2012 to a restaurant/entertainment venue. The use of the 
venue has changed over the years and the licence has remained the same. The premises with 
its current use is no longer suitable for the location it is in. A private event nightclub in a quiet 
residential area. 

 
The council has recorded cases of noise on the Uniform secure data system as well as 
deploying resources to the area every weekend when a TEN has been in place. This 
deployment to reduce public nuisance, and the investigation of numerous complaints from 
local residents, impacts on the council ability to task resources elsewhere in WCC.  

 

page 3



 

The local Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) dedicated ward officers have partnered the 
council officers to assist in the reduction of crime and disorder as well as public nuisance. The 
local officer has submitted evidence to this review through a disclosure request to share 
intelligence. He has also commented on the use of resources and in particular the time of the 
officers dedicated to preventing and investigating complaints from residents. 

 
2.7  Additional submissions received from the applicant can be found at Annex 2.  These are in 

the form of an updated review submissions, a review summary, submissions from a visit dated 
5-6 March 2022, and additional photos. The applicant has also submitted video evidence 
which will be shown at the Licensing Sub-Committee. The video evidence has been circulated 
to all parties prior to the hearing. 

 
2.8 At the time of producing this report the Premises Licence Holder has yet to submit his 

submissions. However, any late written submissions will be presented to the Licensing Sub-
Committee prior to the hearing taking place. 

 
3. REPRESENTATIONS: 
 
3.1 The application has also received a representation in support of the review from the 

Environmental Health Service on the 7th March 2022 on the grounds of Prevention of Crime 
and Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public Nuisance and can be found at Annex 3. 
 

3.2 The application has also received a representation in support of the review from the 
Metropolitan Police Service on the 2nd March 2022 on the grounds of Prevention of Crime and 
Disorder, Public Safety and Prevention of Public Nuisance and can be found at Annex 4. 
 

3.3 The application has also received representations in support of the review from interested 
parties on the grounds of crime and disorder, public nuisance and public safety and can be 
found at Annex 5.  
 

3.4 The application has also received representations in support of the premises from an 
interested party and the Licence Holder and can be found at Annex 6. 
 

4. OPTIONS: 
 
4.1 The applicant is seeking revocation of the licence due to the amount of evidence that has 

been submitted and that the premises fails to promote the licensing objectives  
1) The potential for crime and disorder 
2) The potential for public nuisance 

 
The applicant believes that a nightclub style of operation is not appropriate for this location. 
 

4.2 The Authority must, having regard to the application and the representations, take such steps 
(if any), as it considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  The steps 
are: 
 
(a) to modify the conditions of the licence; 
(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; 
(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor; 
(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months; 
(e) to revoke the licence; 

 
and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered or 
omitted or any new condition added. 

 
4.3 In accordance with section 52(6) of the 2003 Act, if the authority takes measures to modify 

conditions or exclude licensable activities from the licence, it may stipulate that the 
modification or exclusion is to have effect for only such period (not exceeding three months) 

page 4



 

as it may specify. 
 
4.4 The licensing authority’s determination of this application does not have effect until the 21 day 

appeal period has expired or if the decision is appealed the date the appeal is determined and 
/ or disposed of. 

 
 
 
5. LICENSING ACT 2003 APPLICATIONS AND APPEAL HISTORY 
 
 
 

List of Appendices: Annex 1 – Application for Review  

• Appendix 1 – Full Current Premises licence and map showing 
location of premises  

• Appendix 2 – List of Noise Complaints  

• Appendix 3 – Meeting held at WCC 19th October 2021  

• Appendix 4 – Resident Meeting plus email showing CI Inspection of 
SIA.  

• Appendix 5 – Metropolitan Police Service ASB Disclosure 
(Redacted) 

• Appendix 6 – Statements from Residents 

• Appendix 7 – Resident Photos 

• Appendix 8 – Correspondence between DPS and  
                               WCC Environmental Sciences  

• Appendix 9 – Temporary Event Notice Full Decision - Ma Dames 
Annex 2 – Applicant Further Submissions 
Annex 3 – Environmental Health Service representation in support of review 

and list of complaints 
Annex 4 – Police representation in support of review plus Evidence of 9 

Incident Reports, Summary of 9 Cad Reports, 4 Crime Reports 
and Statement of PC Burgin. 

Annex 5 – Interested Parties representations in support of the review plus 
supplementary documentation 

Annex 6 – Interested Party and Licence Holder representations in support of 
the Premises 
Annex 7 – Licence and Appeal History 
Annex 8 – Licensing Sub-Committee Decision 8th November 2012 
Annex 9 – Magistrates Court Appeal Decision  
Annex 10 – Residential Map and list of premises in the vicinity  

 
Background Documents – Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 
 

• Licensing Act 2003 

• City of Westminster Statement of Licensing Policy (October 2021) 

• Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 (April 2018) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 5



APPLICATION FOR REVIEW 

Please forward one copy of your completed application and 
any supporting documentation to: 

Licensing Service 
REVIEWS 

Westminster City Council 
Westminster City Hall 

15th Floor 
64 Victoria Street 

London 
SW1E 6QP 

AND 

Please give one copy of your application and any supporting 
documentation to the Holder of the Premises Licence and 

each of the following responsible authorities on the same day 
that the application is served on the Licensing Service. 

1. The Chief Officer of Police
Westminster Police Liaison Team
15th Floor, Westminster City Hall

64 Victoria Street,  London, SW1E 6QP 

2. Fire Safety Regulation: South West Area 4
169 Union Street   London SE1 0LL

3. Premises Management (Environmental Health; Health & Safety; Weights and
Measures) 

Westminster City Council 
Environmental Health Consultation Team 

15th Floor, Westminster City Hall 
64 Victoria Street,  London, SW1E 6QP 

Annex 1
Application for a Review and Supporting Documents from the Applicant

page 6



 

Continued…… 
4. Development Planning Services 

Westminster City Council 
64 Victoria Street 

London 
SW1E 6QP 

 
5. Area Child Protection Committee 

Head of Commissioning – Child Protection & Quality, Social and Community 
Services – Children and Families 

4 Frampton Street 
NW8 8LF 

 
6. Director of Public Health 

Inner North West London Primary Care Trusts 
(Hammersmith and Fulham, Kensington and Chelsea, Westminster) 

15 Marylebone Road, London  
NW1 5JD 

For boats only 

The Navigation Authority (for vessels not permanently moored) 
 

Tidal Thames 
The Harbour Master 

The Port of London Authority, 7 Harp Lane, London EC3R 6LB 
 

Non Tidal Thames 
The Environment Agency Recreation and Navigation, Thames Region, Kings 

Meadow House, Kings Meadow Road, Reading, RG1 8DQ 

Canals 
The Leisure Manager 

British Waterways Board 
1 Sheldon Square, Paddington Central, London W2 6TT 

And 

The Surveyor General 
The Maritime & Coastguard Agency, Orpington Marine Office, Central Court, 1 Knoll 

Rise 

 

 

 

 

 

  

page 7



 

 

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises 
certificate under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. 

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that 

your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.  

 

I Alex Juon, Interim Head of Service Public Protection and Licensing South West 

  (Insert name of applicant) 

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 / apply for the review of a club 

premises certificate under section 87 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in 

Part 1 below (delete as applicable) 

 

Part 1 – Premises or club premises details   

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

Ma Dames  

58 Porchester Road 

Bayswater 

 

 

Post town   London Post code (if known)  W2 6ET 

 

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known) 

Jennifer Cassandri 

Son Des Guitares Limited 

869 High Road 

London 

N12 8QA 

 

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)  

15/09364/LIPDPS 

 

 

Part 2 - Applicant details  

 

I am 

 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible  

authority (please read guidance note 1, and complete (A)  

or (B) below) 

  

 

 

2) a responsible authority (please complete (C) below) X 

 

3) a member of the club to which this application relates  

(please complete (A) below) 

    

 

 

page 8



 

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable) 

 

Please tick ✓ yes 

 

Mr  Mrs  Miss  Ms  Other title       

 (for example, Rev) 

 

Surname  First names 

   

 
 Please tick ✓ yes 

I am 18 years old or over 

 

 

 

Current postal  

address if  

different from 

premises 

address 

 

 
Post town  Post Code  

 
Daytime contact telephone number  

 
E-mail address (optional)   

 

 

(B)  DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT 

 
Name and address 

      

Telephone number (if any) 

      

E-mail address (optional)  

      

 

page 9



 

 

 (C)  DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT 

 

 Name and address 

Alex Juon 

Interim Head of Service; South West 

Westminster City Council 

Public Protection and Licensing 

64 Victoria Street 

London 

SW1 6QE 

Telephone number (if any) 

 

E-mail address (optional)  

pking@westminster.gov.uk 

  

 

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s) 

 

 Please tick one or more boxes ✓ 

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X 

2) public safety X 

3) the prevention of public nuisance X 

4) the protection of children from harm  

 

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2) 

 

This review is sought in relation to Ma Dames 58, Porchester Road, W2 6ET Premises Licence No. 
15/09364/LIPDPS refers, a full copy of the Licence is attached at Appendix 1. Included in Appendix 1 is 

a google map of the premises location and a visual google image showing Ma Dames and Celbridge 

Mews entrance. 

 

This review is sought to prevent:- 

1) The potential for crime and disorder,  

2) The potential risk to public safety,  

3) The potential for public nuisance  

 

The full circumstances are set out below with key documents held with Appendices attached.  

 

Information regarding personal data has been redacted from the documents and statements to protect 

individuals personal date under the General Data Protection Regulation (UK GDPR) Data Protection Act 

2018. 

 

This premises is a private nightclub in Porchester Road. The premises has private events and hiring 

with named guests. When the customers leave they do so into quiet residential street. The club is 

predominately open on a Saturday/Sunday night and has applied for a Temporary Event Notice (TEN) to 

extend the permitted hours from 02.00hrs to 03.00hrs. 

 

The current owner/director has held the premises licence since October 2015. The director of the 

company leasing the property is Jennifer Cassandri, and she has a Personal Licence as the Designated 

Premises Supervisor that she granted from Lambeth Licensing Department Reference Licence 

Number: pers3524 

 

Westminster City Council have had City Inspectors officers deployed to this premises since August 2021 

to witness the dispersal procedure, and to monitor for incidents of noise and other anti-social behaviour. 

page 10



 

The premises had been closed for several months due to the Government restrictions around the 

coronavirus pandemic.  

 

There have been five proactive visits made to the premises since August, when the club has been 

operating. Most of these visits have found no issues of concern at the time of visit; although the visit 

made on the 3rd of October 2021 at 02.30 found a group of customers gathered outside and the officers 

feared a disturbance would take place. The officers did engage with the DPS who was present at the 

time.  

 

Since the premises reopened there has been a significant increase in complaints from residents of the 

local area, in particular Westbourne Park Road and Celbridge Mews, regarding noise, anti-social 

behaviour, litter, urination, and human excrement, and use of nitrous oxide cannisters. 

 

The original licence was issued in 2012 to a restaurant/entertainment venue. The use of the venue has 

changed over the years and the licence has remained the same. The premises with its current use is no 

longer suitable for the location it is in. A private event nightclub in a quiet residential area. 

 

The council has recorded cases of noise on the Uniform secure data system as well as deploying 

resources to the area every weekend hen a TEN has been in place. This deployment to reduce public 

nuisance, and the investigation of numerous complaints from local residents, impacts on the council 

ability to task resources elsewhere in WCC.  

 

The local Metropolitan Police Service (MPS) dedicated ward officers have partnered the council officers 

to assist in the reduction of crime and disorder as well as public nuisance. The local officer has 

submitted evidence to this review through a disclosure request to share intelligence. He has also 

commented on the use of resources and in particular the time of the officers dedicated to preventing and 

investigating complaints from residents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

.  

page 11



 

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read guidance 

note 3) 

 

The problems around dispersal from the club during the early hours of the morning has been addressed 

by WCC previously in December 2019. Due to an increase in noise complaints (22 reports in 2019) the 

DPS/Director of Ma Dames was invited into the Council for a meeting around the problems, and what 

she and the club could do to control the noise/anti-social behaviour. Recorded minutes taken from 

Uniform data base shown below (names redacted and initials used): 

 

A meeting took place at WCC on the 3rd of December 2019 

 

Meeting took place today in the WCC Canteen. Persons present were DN Regulatory Services 

Environmental Health Officer, GF Senior City Inspector, JC and S Director/DPS, FH City Inspector 

 

The use of the TEN's licence was discussed and the DPS responsibilities.  

JC and S, explained the steps they were taking to reduce/minimise the disturbance to the residence in 

that locality.  

o            Bar closed prior to closing, no further sale of alcohol  

o            Music turned off; 

o            Small groups let-out from the club to help to reduce noise and let out to get their Uber/Taxi's 

o            SIA staff on site helps to encourage a quick quiet dispersal; 

• JC and S, both state that they are reluctant to take bookings from any promoter's not known to 

them or 18yr olds. 

 

DN & GF's outlined the way in which the DPS should apply for a TEN and suggested best practice. GF 

advised that the DPS should make notes of what steps and changes have been made and that these 

should be recorded on each TEN when making an application.  

o            Avoid making late TEN's applications; 

o            Only allowed 21 clear working days between each TEN application; 

o            Ensure that applications are submitted at the earliest opportunity;  

o            Describe in detail, what event you're holding; 

o            Engender good relations between the club and the residence of Porchester Road;  

o            Draw up contract between guest and club; 

GF's went on to add that in the event of a TEN being refused, that they are entitled to appeal. Keeping a 

record of all they've done, will help the panel to make a decision.  

The Directors also discussed, utilising the club for other non-licensable activities, such as a 'Comedy 

night' with French comedian's and catering to a specific crowd. 

 

This meeting did have an impact on controlling dispersal from the premises. Customers were held in the 

foyer of the premises and dispersed in smaller groups and when a taxi had arrived for pick up. In 

January 2020 the premises closed due to the pandemic. 

 

It should be noted that the use of Temporary Event Notices (TEN) was a cause of complaint back in 

2019 as they have been recently in 2021. 

 

Noise Complaints Associated to Ma Dames 

 

There have been two Freedom of Information requests to WCC in 2021.  

 

The first one was for a local newspaper, My London. This request was to find how many noise 

complaints there were relating to Ma Dames. However, the wording of the request was such that it 

asked for noise complaints in Porchester Road. The results were not accurate as there is a very high 

number of noise complaints submitted by an anonymous complainant regarding another premises in 

Porchester Road. 

 

A second request was more specific and requested noise complaints that WCC had received and 

recorded directly connected to Ma Dames over a 5-year period. This document is in Appendix 2. 

 

In total since 2015 there have been 37 recorded noise complaints. (05.12.2015 – 03.10.2021) 

 

 

 

 

page 12



 

 

1      complaint     2015 

1      complaint     2017 

1      complaint     2018 

22    complaints   2019 

4      complaints    2020 

8     complaints    2021 

 

 

Since the Freedom of Information request there has been four further recorded noise report in 2021. 

 

Residents had reported that they found the Westminster City Council system to report noise complaints 

was causing issues, as was reporting anti-social behaviour. Following a meeting with local councillors 

Carman and Payne the links were sent to residents as to how to report on the WCC system and the 

MPS 101 number reporting ASB. 

 

It should be noted that both 2020 and 2021 figures will have been affected by the closure of the 

premises due to the coronavirus pandemic.  

 

Noted also that a resident of Celbridge Mews vacated the private address when a TEN event was 

advertised so the noise from the club would not affect their sleep. The complaints could have been 

higher. 

 

When the Freedom of Information details were released, it was observed by a resident that some 

reports were missing. The search of the WCC recording system by the officer conducting the FoI search 

had not included Celbridge Mews. There were an additional 3 reports regarding noise from Ma Dames 

that should be included in the 2021 figures. A WCC Noise Monitoring Device installed by an 

Environmental Health Officer was offered to this resident but declined. 

 

Each individual case number has been shown on the Freedom of Information request. However, some 

cases are linked, and this will reduce the number of reports further. 

 

Condition 12 and 13 of the Premises Licence state that sound level in the premises is controlled by a 

noise monitoring device and that no noise shall emanate from the premises 

 

12.  A sound limiting device located in a separate and remote lockable cabinet from the  

      volume control shall be fitted to any musical amplification system and set at a level  

     determined by and to the satisfaction of an authorised officer of the Environmental  

     Health Service to ensure that no noise nuisance is caused to local residents. The  

     operational panel of the noise limiter shall then be secured to the satisfaction of an  

     officer from the Environmental Health Service. The keys securing the noise limiter  

     cabinet shall be held by the licence holder or authorised manager only, and shall not  

    be accessed by any other person. The limiter shall not be altered without prior  

    agreement with the Environmental Health Service. 

 

13. No noise shall emanate from the premises nor vibration be transmitted through the  

     structure of the premises which gives rise to a nuisance. 

 

There is a breach of condition 13. Reports made by a resident with a party wall. However, no officer 

has been inside the private property to hear the noise. WCC Noise Monitor declined. 

 

At a resident meeting inside Ma Dames on 5th November 2021 this problem was discussed between the 

resident and DPS. A speaker had already been removed from the party wall following a meeting with 

DPS at WCC to discuss several concerns of the residents on 19th October 2021 (minutes of meeting in 

Appendix 3 and circulated to all those who attended, ward councillors and two residents.) 

 

At the meeting in Ma Dames on 5th November 2021 a resident and DPS agreed to privately funding a 

structural engineer to inspect the party wall and make recommendations for improvements to 

soundproof the wall. This was agreed and a resident paid the deposit. The DPS cancelled the meeting 

at the last minute and no inspection took place.  

 

 

 

page 13



 

Referral of Case to Richard Brown Citizens Advice Bureau, Licensing Solicitor 

 

The residents were referred to Richard Brown for advice regarding the licence. A resident sent an email 

into CAB WCC Licensing officer on 16.09.2021 and received a reply from Richard Brown on 24.09.2021 

In the response the CAB Licensing officer replied. 

 

If these noise issues are evidenced and corroborated by a Council officer it may i) increase the chances 

that the Council would institute their own licence review; or ii) increase chances of a successful licence 

review by residents which addresses the various issues experienced. 

 

He had highlighted sections 12 and 13 of the Licence. The resident reported that Celbridge Mews had 

been used as a toilet both urination and excrement. Pictures were taken and submitted. These are in 

Appendix 7 

 

Some of these pictures were shown to the DPS when she attended a meeting at WCC on 19th October 

2021. The DPS had no idea this was happening and was disgusted by people’s behaviour. As a result, 

at the meeting it was agreed that a SIA officer from Ma Dames would be positioned at the entrance of 

the Mews and this would be part of the premises dispersal plan. Dispersal Plan was requested with the 

addition of this agreed condition. Dispersal Plan has not been submitted to WCC despite this request. 

 

Residents Meeting 5th November 2021 at Ma Dames 

 

At the DPS meeting on the 19th October 2021 the DPS agreed to a residents meeting. Two residents 

representing the communities of Celbridge Mews and Westbourne Park Road Residents Association 

agreed to attend. There was a pre meet in a private resident’s property before going to Ma Dames with 

area Team Manager Paul King.  

 

On arriving at Ma Dames, the DPS had invited six residents. These residents supported the premises. 

Also in attendance was the premises security manager and director of a SIA company called My 

Brother’s Keeper. His name was AJ.  

 

Various points were discussed. A summary of the meeting and actions are shown in Appendix 4. 

 

One action that still has not been completed is the updating and sending to the area manager of the 

Dispersal Plan. This was also requested at the meeting with DPS on 19th October.  

 

Noted that an SIA officer does now stand at entrance of Celbridge Mews as agreed.  

 

All SIA staff to wear high visibility jackets and display their accredited SIA badge. They have been 

issued with bodycam. 

 

WCC officer conducted an unannounced inspection of SIA at midnight on night of 23rd October 2021      

and all correct. He inspected 4 SIA. It is a condition of the licence that the premises has a minimum of 4 

SIA. 

 

 

Parking in Westbourne Park Road  

 

Discussed at Residents Meeting.  

 

There are breaches of conditions. 

 

52. No customers who park vehicles on Westbourne Park Villas or Westbourne Park  

       Road will be permitted to enter the premises. 

 

53. The premises shall offer free parking in Arthur Court NCP to customers arriving after  

      9pm Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights. 

 

54. From opening to the public on Thursday, Friday and Saturday nights, two street  

      marshals shall be stationed on or at the junction at Westbourne Park Villas and  

      Westbourne Park Road (or such lesser numbers as agreed with Environmental Health). 

 

We have seen evidence from residents, in Westbourne Park Road, that customers are parking and, in 

page 14



 

some cases, obstructing residents parking areas. One resident has submitted video evidence and on 

one occasion was verbally abused and, on another occasion, assaulted. 

 

The video evidence is to be supplied by residents during the licence consultation period. If possible, on 

a memory stick so it can be shown at the licence review. This is the evidence of the residents and 

should be provided by the residents. 

 

Condition 53 states the premises shall offer free parking in Arthur Court NCP. WCC have checked with 

NCP who stated this had been closed for 2-3yrs and has reopened in the last few months. No exact 

date from NCP Customer Services.  

 

These are unusual conditions on a premises licence. Primarily as this premises is isolated away from 

commercial night-time economy areas, and in the locality of residential premises. There is a TFL tube 

station nearby, Royal Oak, but customers will be leaving Ma Dames at 2am or 3am, and therefore 

transport to and from the premises is a problem not experienced in areas such as Soho and Covent 

Garden for customers of the night-time economy. 

 

There are clear breaches of these conditions. A resident has been threatened and assaulted.  

 

The MPS have had reported incidents of alleged customers returning to their vehicles and opening the 

car boot to carry on drinking.  

 

The noise from customers returning to their vehicles in the early hours, talking loudly, opening and 

closing car doors disturbs residents sleep and quality of life, 

 

 

Police Reports – ASB and Disclosure of Information Request 

 

As a result of two Community Triggers, under the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and policing Act, being 

submitted to WCC an information disclosure request was sent to the local MPS ward officer. 

 

The results are shown in Appendix 5, and names have been redacted for data protection. 

 

In total the MPS have recorded 17 cases on their database from 27.11.2016 to 12.12.2021  

 

The local MPS ward officer comments; 

 

As local ward officer for Bayswater, I have been in regular contact with residents in Westbourne Park 

Road and Celbridge Mews in relation to their complaints around noise and general ASB described in the 

above reports.  

 

After reviewing all the calls and listening to the nature of the complaints, I can confirm that I believe the 

club has not been operating in accordance with their licences conditions or objectives. I can also confirm 

that although the list above (Appendix 5) contains a list of recorded calls, I have also personally 

received many direct emails and phone calls from residents complaining about similar issues as 

described above. These complaints also have been backed up by video evidence from residents of 

customers clearly coming from the club and being loud and disruptive along Porchester Road and 

Westbourne Park Road on occasions between 0100- 0330hours in the morning.  

 

The nature of the complaints to me directly involve 

-Customers from the club urinating and defecating in Celbridge mews 

-Customers from the club street drinking and gathering around parked cars in Westbourne Park Road 

-Reports that the club is operating without approved SIA door staff and are operating with less doorstaff 

than stated on their licence.  

-Reports that the clubs owner has a criminal record and has not disclosed this when obtaining a licence.  

-General noised transference from the club into neighbouring properties through party walls.  

 

The ASB caused is that which you would usually get from a club, however this may be tolerable in a 

non-residential area but this club is situated in a highly populated residential street with no other 

licensed premises similar to this one operating in the immediate vicinity. This club is not fit for the area it 

is located and therefore I strongly believe that a licence review should be considered in moving forwards 

with this address. 

 

page 15



 

 

Lambeth Licensing Decision – Undeclared Criminal Conviction 

 

As a result of information from a resident that the DPS had a criminal conviction, that was evidenced in 

online newspaper reports, the DPS was asked at a meeting in WCC on 19th October 2021 if the story in 

the newspaper related to her. This was confirmed.  

 

The DPS had not declared the foreign conviction in breach of section 132 Licensing Act 2003 

 

The personal licence was issued by Lambeth Licensing Department. They were informed of the 

conviction. DPS was sent a form to complete disclosing the conviction. 

 

The decision by Lambeth Licensing Department was not to revoke the personal licence. A request has 

been made for Lambeth Licensing to write to WCC re their reasoning for decision. Currently at the time 

of this report WCC have not received any correspondence. 

 

TENs 

 

The premises has applied on a near weekly basis since it reopened. This has extended the premises 

licence to a closure time of 03.00hrs.  

 

WCC Licensing, Area team manager and Head of Service have monitored when a TEN was applied for. 

City Inspectors on night shift were tasked to attend and observe dispersal every weekend a TEN had 

been approved. 

 

A TEN was applied for on Halloween weekend of 2021. The local police ward officer and the local WCC 

ward team requested that the TEN not be granted based on recent residents’ complaints. This TEN was 

for a publicised event through a promoter and ticket only. It was to start on Sunday 31st and the TEN 

extended the hours into Monday 1st November at 03.00hrs closure. 

 

MPS Licensing found no grounds to object. WCC Licensing Regulatory Services were approached 

regarding objecting and there was not enough recorded data on the WCC data system to warrant an 

objection at this particular time. 

 

Since this date the residents were, and have, increased the number of recorded complaints on the WCC 

noise report data system. 

 

The use of TEN application has only escalated the problem for the residents since August 2021 and 

noted that the use of TEN resulted in the DPS being requested to come into WCC in 2019. 

 

 

Community Trigger 

 

Residents have submitted two separate Community Triggers under the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and 

Policing Act to have the WCC process reviewed. The threshold for a Community Trigger was met. 

 

On Friday 7th January 2022 there was a review with partners involved with the premises. Also, at a pre-

review a local councillor and member of South East Bayswater Residents Association were invited to 

make a statement to the review panel on the impacts the premises was having on the local community. 

 

At this stage of writing the Licence Review the review panels report has not been finalised and sent to 

those victims who requested it. The Community Trigger is a victim-based review and a means of having 

WCC and partners process reviewed. The findings and recommendations from the review will only be 

shared with the victims who submitted. 

 

One recommendation is the submission of the Licence Review. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 16



 

Community Statements 

 

Statements had been taken previously from residents by the MPS and WCC, and these were used to 

increase the area covered by a Community Protection Impact Zone. This is a signed area designated for 

the issuing of Community Protection Warnings/Notices under the Anti-Social Behaviour Crime and 

Policing Act. It is used to stop persistent and continuous behaviour affecting people’s quality of life. A 

breach of a Community Protection Notice is a criminal offence. The area of Ma Dames has only recently 

been included in this zone and no warnings or notices have been served. 

 

Statements from residents regarding anti-social behaviour that has impacted on their quality of life are in 

Appendix 6 and have been redacted. 

 

 

Management Responsibilities of the Director/DPS of Ma Dames. 

 

The DPS has been asked to attend WCC on two occasions regarding the management of the premises 

and in particular the dispersal and noise nuisance of the customers. Both meetings had minutes 

recorded.  

 

The first occasion was in 2019 when there were 22 recorded noise complaints on the WCC Data 

system. Following the meeting in 2019 the same issues were raised as in 2021, that dispersal was not 

being handled well and that the use of a TEN was only taking the issues further into the early hours of 

the morning and disturbing residents sleep and quality of life.  

 

The club was closed for a substantial period due to the pandemic and government restrictions on 

licensed premises. 

 

The meeting of 19th October 2021 followed a disturbance in the street in August 2021 and increase in 

residents’ complaints via email, phone and reporting systems to the MPS and WCC. 

 

The DPS has been asked twice to provide a Dispersal Plan for the premises. Once at the meeting at 

WCC on 19th October 2021, and again following the residents meeting at the club in November 2021. 

The plan has not been provided to the Council. 

 

It was the DPS responsibility to inform the licensing authority where she obtained her Personal Licence 

of the criminal conviction, she had acquired in France 2018. This was not done. Lambeth Licensing 

were only informed following information obtained from a resident and from WCC Licensing Department. 

As a result, the DPS was sent a form by Lambeth Licensing to declare the offences under the provisions 

of the Licensing Act. 

Failure to comply with the legislation. 

 

One of the residents most affected by noise from the premises attended the residents meeting in the 

premises in November 2021. During this meeting a discussion took place regarding the party wall and 

sound insulation. The DPS had already removed a speaker from the party wall as a result of the meeting 

at WCC in October 2021.  

 

Condition 13 of the licence is that no sound shall emanate through the fabric of the building causing 

nuisance. A private agreement was made between the resident and the DPS to pay privately for a 

structural engineer with sound engineer experience to attend and give a professional opinion and 

recommendation. The DPS acknowledged she would do all she could and pay for works. 

 

However, on the date of the proposed meeting the DPS cancelled for personal reasons. The resident 

had paid deposit. DPS apologised and would reimburse the deposit to the resident. 

 

On the 29th November the area manager submitted a request form to WCC Environmental Sciences 

team to have a noise monitoring device used to measure the disturbing noise so that a sound engineer 

could be called to adjust the noise control device inside the club premises. This request to the DPS was 

acknowledged but DPS replied they would not be able to assist and did not have the finances to pay for 

a sound engineer. This not allowing access has not assisted the investigation into noise nuisance 

and the breach of section 13 of the Licence. 

 

There are emails and a WhatsApp message response evidencing this in Appendix 8 as well as the 

WCC form requesting the equipment be installed 

page 17



 

 

 

Below is a cut and paste from a resident email dated 27th September 2021. Evidences the behaviour of 

customers from Ma Dames and supported by the pictures in Appendix 7 

 

Whilst the overall levels were much quieter than usual, it is impossible to get a night's sleep with the 

constant thudding beat through Redacted; I am working weekends at the moment and to have the 

nightclub constantly operating outside the licensed hours with apparent impunity, is intolerable. It should 

not be the case that we have to turn up the radio full volume in order to stand any chance of getting 

sleep at the weekends. 

 

On Saturday morning as usual they spilt out into Celbridge Mews at 3am when the nightclub finally 

closed, and continued to drink and shout for another half an hour. They left vomit and toilet paper in the 

entrance to the mews. 

 

I have dozens of photos of people urinating and vomiting on my house wall. Residents, including the 

young children who live here, have to walk past human faeces and rubbish including broken bottles, 

used condoms and tampons. Nightclub goers use our porches for sex, smoking and drug dealing. Mine 

appears to be used regularly as some sort of drop off/pick up point for packages. 

 

29th September 2021 email from resident 

 

My family have lived in the Mews for over 30 years and there has never been this extent of antii-social 

behaviour until Ma Dame opened. 

 

I did complain on several occasions about the previous club, Cherry Jam. There were serious noise 

issues with them but never the human fouling of the mews , drug abuse and fighting which we have 

seen since Ma Dame reopened. 

 

29th September 2021 email from resident 

 

I am dreading this weekend with more late night carousing in the mews in the early hours of the morning 

and cannot understand why Temporary Events Notices continue to be issued under the circumstances.  

I do not have children, but several people in the Mews and adjoining areas do… a matter of grave 

concern for all of us. 

 

6th October 2021 email from resident 

 

We have been here now for 25 years, and I have never before felt the need to raise concerns 

specifically about women's safety around Celbridge Mews, in spite of the increasing antisocial behaviour 

on nights when this nightclub is open; it is ironic that what feels most threatening is an incident involving 

just the presence of a 'bouncer/ street marshall' from Ma Dame nightclub, talking on the phone inside 

the tunnel to the mews.  

 

However, I cannot understand why, in the current climate, with so many concerns about women being 

unable to walk safely to and from their own homes, the council do not appear to have taken any note of 

the contents of my emails.  

 

Please reconsider these TENs applications, so that children do not have to hear the type of abusive 

language used by REDACTED 'door supervisor', residents can get some respite from the noise and 

antisocial behaviour, and women do not have to worry about getting home safely at weekends. 

 

 

  

page 18



 

 

page 19



 

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ yes 

Have you made an application for review relating to the 

premises before 

YES 

 

 

If yes please state the date of that application Day Month Year 

2 9 1 2 2 0 1 2 
 

 

 

 

If you have made representations before relating to the premises, please state what they were 

and when you made them 

 

 

Uniform Reference 12/08010/LIREVP relates to a review of this venue, whilst operating under the same 

Licence but with a different operator. 

 

The grounds for the review were very similar to the current circumstances; residents had made 

complaints in relation to noise and nuisance. The decision made by the LSC was to reduce the hours of 

operation to 11pm and 11.30pm. 

 

Subsequently, the operator appealed the decision at the Magistrates Court; here the new operator 

argued that since his control of the venue; the complaints were not being received and therefore the 

hours should be restored to those as before.  

 

The District Judge allowed the appeal on the basis that improvements had been made and the hours of 

operation were restored to those that exist now. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

page 20



 

                                                                                                                                  Please tick ✓ yes 

 

• I have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities and 

the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate, as 

appropriate 

 

• I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application 

will be rejected 

 

       

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD 

SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN 

OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION 

 

Part 3 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 4) 

 

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read 

guidance note 5). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity. 

 

 
 

Date                  07.02.2022 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Capacity           Interim Head of Service 

………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

 

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated 

with this application (please read guidance note 6) 

      

Post town 

      

Post Code 

      

Telephone number (if any)        

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address 

(optional)       

 

Notes for Guidance  

 

1. A responsible authority includes the local police, fire and rescue authority and other statutory 

bodies which exercise specific functions in the local area. 

2. The ground(s) for review must be based on one of the licensing objectives. 

3. Please list any additional information or details for example dates of problems which are 

included in the grounds for review if available. 

4. The application form must be signed. 

5. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they 

have actual authority to do so. 

6. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

page 21



 

 
 
 

Appendix 1 – Full Premises Licence and map showing location of premises 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

page 22



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 23



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 24



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 25



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 26



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 27



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 28



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 29



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 30



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 31



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 32



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 33



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 34



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 35



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 36



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 37



 

 
Map showing Location of Premises 

 
 

  
 

 

page 38



 

 
Appendix 2 – List of Noise Complaints 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 39



 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

page 40



 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

page 41



 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 42



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 43



 

 
Appendix 3 – Meeting held at WCC 19th October 2021  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 44



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 45



 

 
Appendix 4 – Resident Meeting plus email showing CI Inspection of SIA. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 46



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 47



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 48



 

 
Appendix 5 – Metropolitan Police Service ASB Disclosure (Redacted) 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 49



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 50



 

 
Appendix 6 – Statements from Residents 

 
8 A MG11 – Ma Dame4 

 

page 51



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 52



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 53



 

8 B MG11 - Ma Dame5 

 
 
 
 

page 54



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 55



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 56



 

 
8 C MG11 – TB Ma Dames 

 
 
 

page 57



 

 
 

 
 
 

page 58



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 59



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 60



 

 
8 D MG11 – Ma Dame 1 

 
 
 

page 61



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 62



 

 
 

 
 
 

page 63



 

 
8 E MG11 – Ma Dame 2 

 
 
 

page 64



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 65



 

 

 
  
 
 

page 66



 

 
8 F MG11 – Ma Dames 3 

 
 
 

page 67



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 68



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 69



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 70



 

 
8 G MG11 – Ma Dame 6 

 
 
 

page 71



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 72



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 73



 

 
8 H MG11 – Ma Dame 7 

 
 
 

page 74



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 75



 

 

 
 
 
 

page 76



 

 
Appendix 7 – Resident Photos 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 77



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 78



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 79



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 80



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 81



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 82



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 83



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 84



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 85



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 86



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 87



 

 
Appendix 8 – Correspondence between DPS and WCC Environmental Sciences 

 
A - Email to WCC from EnviroSciences from DPS 

 
 
 
 

page 88



 

 
B – Enviro Science to Request WCC 

 

page 89



 

 

 
 

page 90



 

 
Email – regarding Sound Limiter checked 2018 
 

 

page 91



 

 
 
 
 
 

page 92



 

 
Appendix 9 – Temporary Event Notice Full Decision - Ma Dames 

 

page 93



 

 

 
 

page 94



 

 

 
 

page 95



 

 
 

 

page 96



 

 

 
 

page 97



 

 
Annex 2 

Applicant Further Submissions 
 
Updated Review Submissions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 98



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 99



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 100



 

 
Review Summary submitted by the Applicant Alex Juon – Licensing Authority  

 
 

page 101



 

 

 
 

page 102



 

 
 

 

page 103



 

 

 
 

page 104



 

  

 
 

  
page 105



 

 
 

 

page 106



 

 
Ma Dame Visit 5-6 March 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 107



 

 
 
Ma Dame Saturday 10th August 2019 Photo AJ 1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 108



 

 
Ma Dame Saturday 10th August 2019 Photo AJ 2 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 109



 

 
Ma Dame Saturday 10th August 2019 Photo AJ 3 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 110



 

 
Ma Dame Saturday 10th August 2019 Photo AJ 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 111



 

 
Summary of Videos and Photos 
 
Video Submitted – Ma Dame Sunday 12th December 2021 01:43 – AJ 
Video Submitted – Ma Dame Sunday 12th December 2021 01:47 – AJ 
Video Submitted – Ma Dame 2021 WPR 14th November 2021 AJ2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 

page 112



 

 
Cassandri criminal convictions and links to organised crime 
 

 
 
 
 

page 113



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 114



 

  
 
 
 

 
 
 

page 115



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 116



 

 
Cassandri French Accounts 2020 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 117



 

 
Annex 3  

Environmental Health Service representation in support of review 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 118



 

 
List of Complaints 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 119



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 120



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 121



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 122



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 123



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 124



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 125



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 126



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 127



 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 128



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 129



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 130



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 131



 

 
Annex 4 

Police representation in support of review 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 132



 

 
Summary of 9 CAD Incident Reports plus the 9 Incident Reports 

 
 

 
 

page 133



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028 207028 

SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT
PAGE  1 

INCIDENT No. 734:12DEC21 

INCIDENT No. 734 entered at 01:51 on 12DEC21 by CHS/CHS in CCC/IR 

INCIDENT WAS ENTERED "EXTERNALLY" 

Rec By   :E (Emergency) 
Call Tel :07712726062 
Call Name:JENNIFER - MANAGER 
Call Type:S (Staff on Duty) 
Call Mail: 
Cntct Tel: 
Att Locn :58 PORCHESTER RD, W2:MADAME 
    Map  :Page 140, Grid Reference 525823,181339 
    GPA  :CA Division: [AWN:CNW] 
Inc Locn :58 PORCHESTER RD, W2:MADAME 
    Map  :Page 140, Grid Reference 525823,181339 
    GPA  :CA Division: [AWN:CNW] 
Call Locn:58 PORCHESTER RD, W2:MADAME 
     Map :Page 140, Grid Reference 525823,181339 
     GPA :CA Division: [AWN:CNW] 
Opening 1:215 (ASB - Nuisance) 

2:202 (Rowdy Or Inconsiderate Behaviour) 
3:600 (Alcohol) 

Open Text: 
Urgency  :E (Extended) 
Major    : 
VRMs     : 
Proposal : 
Assigned : 
DeAssign :AW6N, AW20N 
TOA      :01:59:00/12DEC21 
DO Name  : 
DO Tel   : 
CRIME REF: 
Class 1  :215 (ASB - Nuisance) 
Qual  1  :202 (Rowdy Or Inconsiderate Behaviour) 
Res   1  :703 (No Offences Disclosed) 
Clo Text :ASB URN NOT REQUIRED P215303 
O Dealing: 
Metops   : 
CHS Demid:20211212025803 

Linked   :explicitly to   806:12DEC21 
Linked   :implicitly to (none) 

CONTINUED ... 

     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.

INC00734-12DEC21

page 134



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.   734:12DEC21 
  
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         12DEC21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-12-12 01:51:41  CAD AT: 2021-12-12 
01:53:49 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p215918 ) AT: 2021-12-12 01:53:24 
         ^INFT - THERE IS A LOT OF CUSTOMERS THAT ARE NOW OUT ON THE 
STREET 
         BEING NOISY, DISTURBING THE NEIGHBOURS 
         APPROX 30 MALE AND FEMALE 
01:58:56 12DEC21 098748 H2720    #2 
         AWN CIRC PR #1 
02:03:48 12DEC21 098748 H2720    #3 
         ^4518AW THE SECURITY HAVE THIS IN HAND UNIT TO HOLD BACK POLICE 
WOULD 
         POSSIBLE AGGREVATE THE SITUATION CURRENTLY NO OFFENCE 
02:48:14 12DEC21 098748 H2720    #4 
         ** **START OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
         CLOSING CODE "215": 
         STOP - THIS INCIDENT TO BE PLACED IN THE GPC QUEUE 
                HAS AN ASB URN BEEN SHOWN? OR 
                HAS A MEMBER OF GPC CONFIRMED URN NOT REQUIRED - INCLUDE 
PAY NO 
                RESULT WITH FORMAT: ASB URN XX123456 OR ASB URN NOT 
REQUIRED 
                THEN FOLLOWED BY THE POLICE/STAFF PAY NUMBER OF DECISION 
MAKER 
         ** **END OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
  
Previous Actions: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid   ACTION 
-------- ------- ------ -------- ------ 
                                 SYSTEM(EXTERNAL) 
01:53:49 12DEC21 CHS    CCC:CCH  O() 215:ASB - NUISANCE,202:ROWDY OR 
INCONSI 
                                 DERATE BEHAVIOUR, & 
01:53:49    "      "       "     O& 600:ALCOHOL 
  "         "      "       "     PI 
01:53:52    "    098748 DIV:AWN  AK 
01:59:21    "      "       "     AV/AW6N 

page 135



02:01:21    "      "       "     AV/AW20N 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 136



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No. 734:12DEC21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid   ACTION 
-------- ------- ------ -------- ------ 
02:01:31 12DEC21   "    DIV:AWN  TOA/AW20N/0159 
02:07:15    "    084312    "     DA/AW20N 
02:48:07    "    098748    "     CTX() 
02:48:13    "      "       "     AC() 
02:48:14    "      "       "     AQ() 
  "         "      "       "     AR() 
02:48:32    "      "       "     CTX(ASB URN NOT REQUIRED) 
02:48:36    "      "       "     DA/AW6N 
02:48:39    "      "       "     PS/CM 
02:51:59    "    062716    "     CM 
  "         "      "       "     XP/CM/C215 
15:08:06 16DEC21 253407 CCC:CADL VI/p253407 
14:28:18 20DEC21 260535    "     VI/p260535 
11:31:19 22DEC21 240265    "     VI/p240265 
13:44:23 29DEC21 258141    "     VI/p258141 
11:50:14 07JAN22   "       "     VI/p258141 
12:48:02 23JAN22 207028    "     VI/p207028 
12:48:07    "      "       "     IP//p207028/1/p207028@met.police.uk 
  
                                                            ... END OF 
PRINT ... 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE. 
 

page 137



INC00806-12DEC21

page 138



page 139



  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 140



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No.   806:12DEC21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         Passed to CRIME: Crime Allegation data will follow as Intel 
02:07:17 12DEC21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743578 ) AT: 2021-12-12 02:06:13 
         Crime Allegation: 
         ================= 
         Type: S008/06 - Violence Against The Person 
         Committed on/from: 12/12/2021 01:45 
         Committed to: 12/12/2021 01:50 
         Notified via: Phone Call 
         Allegation Details: 
         =================== 
         CHS 12/12/2021 02:01:29  
         ========================
         ^INFT WE HAVE HAD LOTS OF ISSUES WITH THIS CLUB, IM A LOCAL 
RESIDENT 
         AND HAVE ISSUES WITH THE NOISE AND ROWDINESS 
         - 
         SOMEONE WAS TAKING PHOTOS OF ME, SAID HE "WILL DEAL WITH ME" - 
HE THEN 
         SHOVVED ME 
         CHS 12/12/2021 02:01:54  
         ========================
         ^INFT THE F STAFF SAID THE M WORKS FOR THE CLUB 
         - 
         I WANT TO REPORT THIS -  LIKE THIS 
         CHS 12/12/2021 02:02:04 ) 
         ========================
         ^INFT IM OK AND NOT INJU
         CHS 12/12/2021 02:03:20  
         ========================
         ^INFT AFRO CARRIBEAN M, 6FT3, AA30 
         - 
         I HAVE A PHOTO OF HIM 
         Allegation location: 
         ==================== 
         Business name: MA DAME 
         Location text: 58 PORCHESTER ROAD, LONDON, CITY OF WESTMINSTER, 
W2 6ET 
         Vicinity: Outside 
         CCTV present: Not Known 
         Victim person details: 
         ====================== 
         
          
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 

page 141



      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 142



page 143



                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 144



page 145



INC07242-09DEC21

page 146



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.  7242:09DEC21 
  
Phone Field        : (For previous Incidents from this phone use 
                      action:PHD or PHL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
Location Based Comments 
** Attendance and Incident Location ** 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
** Caller Location ** 
CELBRIDGE MEWS,W2 
E OFF PORCHESTER RD, NEAR GLOUCESTER TER AND BISHOPS BRIDGE RD 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         09DEC21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-12-09 22:23:33  CAD AT: 2021-12-09 
22:32:22 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:25:45 
         ^OP - SILENT LINE, CHALLENGED LINE. 
         WILL HANG UP AND CALL BACK 
         ^OP - RESPONSE 
22:32:22 09DEC21 CHS             #2 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:27:43 
         ^INFT - WANTS TO REPORT Madame nightclub. The doormen at the 
front of 
         the club are not licensed. There is meant to be 4 licensed 
bouncers, 
         and I did not see anyone with any licenses. 
         They normally wear their ID on their arms, the ones at the door 
look 
         like guests, smoking. 
22:32:22 09DEC21 CHS             #3 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:29:45 
         ^inft - some glasses outside, breach of licence conditions. I do 
have 
         some video footage. Nightclub owner has a criminal record and 
have not 
         yet investigated. 
         No disturbances at the moment. No temporary event notice for 
tonight. 
         Sometimes the night goes on, people defecate and deal drugs. 
22:32:22 09DEC21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:32:15 

page 147



         ^inft - they have a huge log of calls. Pepole tend to report ont 
he 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 148



PRINTED AT 12:48 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No.  7242:09DEC21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         following day. Safer nieghbourhood Team had said to report 
anything ASB 
         related. 
         We've been asked to keep compaining. Council lost all the 
compaints 
         that we had made in the last 3 years. 
22:32:22 09DEC21 CHS             #5 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:32:22 
         ^OP - passed for information 
22:39:17 09DEC21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:33:32 
         SMF ASB (For All Incidents Of Anti-social Behaviour) 
         Always consider whether the circumstances of the incident render 
the 
         person concerned as vulnerable. 
         1. Has anything like this happened before?: Yes 
         2. Has the caller spoken to police about this or any other 
matter 
         relating to ASB?: Yes 
         3. If the answer to 2 is 'Yes', when were police called 
         (approximately)? : last weekend 4708 27/11/2021 
         4. Prior to this call, has the person sought help from elsewhere 
(e.g. 
         Local Authority, Security, Housing Association, Samaritans, 
Citizens 
         Advice, BT, etc.)?: Yes 
         5. If the answer to 4 is 'Yes' please state who? : Local 
Authority, 
         EHO, and SNT 
         6. Are there any health or welfare issues we need to be aware of 
that 
         could help us deal with your call? (VULNERABILITY)?: No 
         7. If the answer to 6 is 'Yes' record details of how/why 
vulnerable. 
         Record any other relevant information? : 
         ** For 'ASB' calls, you are no longer required to complete the 
'REPEAT' 
         or 'VULNERABLE' SMFs ** 
22:39:17 09DEC21 CHS             #7 
         

 

 
          record in France 
and 
         tied to money laundering. 
22:39:17 09DEC21 CHS             #8 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744811 ) AT: 2021-12-09 22:39:12 
         SMF THRIVEPLUS (All ThrivePlus Related Incidents) 

page 149



         *** This SMF to be used for ThrivePlus Related Incidents ***. 
         T: no immediate threat, but caller believes that bouncers are 
not 
         licensed 
         H: no immediate harm 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 150



page 151



  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 152



page 153



INC04708-27NOV21

page 154



PRINTED AT 12:49 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.  4708:27NOV21 
  
Phone Field        : (For previous Incidents from this phone use 
                      action:PHD or PHL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
Location Based Comments 
** Attendance and Incident Location ** 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
** Caller Location ** 
CELBRIDGE MEWS,W2 
E OFF PORCHESTER RD, NEAR GLOUCESTER TER AND BISHOPS BRIDGE RD 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         27NOV21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-11-27 16:05:37  CAD AT: 2021-11-27 
16:10:38 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c723886 ) AT: 2021-11-27 16:08:45 
         ^INFT- DRUG USE AND ASB. HAPPENED EARLY HOURS OF THIS MORNING 
         ADVISED TO KEEP REPORTING THIS - HAS HAPPENED BEFORE 
         HAPPENS AROUND 5-10 YARDS TO ENTRANCE TO SELBRIDGE MEWS 
         I HAVE VIDEO CLIP OF IT. ABOUT 5-6 GUYS WITH BALOONS AND AEROSOL 
CANS. 
         HEARD SHOUTING PAST NIGHTCLUB ENTRANCE. HAPPENED AROUND 00:40 
THIS 
         MORNING. HEARD NOISE OF CANNISTARS, ALL BALOONS AND CANS STILL 
THERE 
16:10:38 27NOV21 CHS             #2 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c723886 ) AT: 2021-11-27 16:10:37 
         SMF ASB (For All Incidents Of Anti-social Behaviour) 
         Always consider whether the circumstances of the incident render 
the 
         person concerned as vulnerable. 
         1. Has anything like this happened before?: Yes 
         2. Has the caller spoken to police about this or any other 
matter 
         relating to ASB?: Yes 
         3. If the answer to 2 is 'Yes', when were police called 
         (approximately)? : 01/11/2021 
         4. Prior to this call, has the person sought help from elsewhere 
(e.g. 
         Local Authority, Security, Housing Association, Samaritans, 
Citizens 

page 155



         Advice, BT, etc.)?: Yes 
         5. If the answer to 4 is 'Yes' please state who? : SNT AND 
COUNCIL 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 156



PRINTED AT 12:49 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No.  4708:27NOV21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         6. Are there any health or welfare issues we need to be aware of 
that 
         could help us deal with your call? (VULNERABILITY)?: No 
         7. If the answer to 6 is 'Yes' record details of how/why 
vulnerable. 
         Record any other relevant information? : LITTER IS STILL THERE 
ON THE 
         ROAD - NO IMMEDIATE CONCERN 
         ** For 'ASB' calls, you are no longer required to complete the 
'REPEAT' 
         or 'VULNERABLE' SMFs ** 
16:10:56 27NOV21 741112 H2721    #3 
         ** **START OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
         CLOSING CODE "215": 
         STOP - THIS INCIDENT TO BE PLACED IN THE GPC QUEUE 
                HAS AN ASB URN BEEN SHOWN? OR 
                HAS A MEMBER OF GPC CONFIRMED URN NOT REQUIRED - INCLUDE 
PAY NO 
                RESULT WITH FORMAT: ASB URN XX123456 OR ASB URN NOT 
REQUIRED 
                THEN FOLLOWED BY THE POLICE/STAFF PAY NUMBER OF DECISION 
MAKER 
         ** **END OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
16:12:02 27NOV21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c723886 ) AT: 2021-11-27 16:11:39 
         SMF THRIVEPLUS (All ThrivePlus Related Incidents) 
         *** This SMF to be used for ThrivePlus Related Incidents ***. 
         T: NO THREAT 
         H: DRUGS TAKING 
         R: ONGOING MATTER 
         I: COUNCIL AND SNT DEALING 
         V: NONE 
         E: PASSED TO BCU / SNT 
         Plus: 
16:12:02 27NOV21 CHS             #5 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c723886 ) AT: 2021-11- 16:12:01 
         ^OP- PLEASE PASS TO SNT - CALLER STATES  HAS A VIDEO CLIP SHE 
CAN 
         FORWARD ON 
         REF NUMBER ADVISED 
16:13:49 27NOV21 086615 H2629    #6 
         ASB DESK^METCC Contrl 
         Consideration for ASB/URN. ALL ASB cads must not be closed 
without URN 
         or sufficient rational. Once the incident has been dealt with, 
use the 
         closing text box to enter either the BCU ASB URN in the format 
**"ASB 

page 157



         URN 123456" OR **"ASB URN NOT REQUIRED*** & the police / staff 
number 
         of the decision maker. FOR STRICT COMPLIANCE No other wording 
should 
         be used. 
10:59:25 02DEC21 220828 AW607    #7 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 158



page 159



  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE. 
 

page 160



INC00895-13NOV21

page 161



PRINTED AT 12:49 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.   895:13NOV21 
  
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         13NOV21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-11-13 02:17:16  CAD AT: 2021-11-13 
02:21:50 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:18:28 
         ^INFT I AM WORKING IN A CLUB AND WE ARE TRYING MAKE OUR 
CUSTOMERS 
         LEAVE. THEY HAVE LEFT THE PREMISES BUT ARE STILL PARKED UP AND 
STOPPED 
         ON YTHE STREET REFUSING TO LEAVE 
02:21:50 13NOV21 CHS             #2 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:18:57 
         INFT WORRIED THAT ROAD IS OBSTRUCTED AND THERE ARE HIGH LEVELS 
OF NOISE 
02:21:50 13NOV21 CHS             #3 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:20:10 
         OP NOTES LINKED CAD 859 AND UNIT ON SNCENE NOW 
02:22:33 13NOV21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:22:32 
         OP PASING TO TC FOR INFO AS CONCERNS ABOUT TRAFFIC / OBSTRUCTION 
02:24:13 13NOV21 CHS             #5 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:23:12 
         Met Police: Your Call/Crime Ref No is 895 13/11/2021  Do not 
reply to 
         this text 
02:24:13 13NOV21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743331 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:23:54 
         SMF THRIVEPLUS (All ThrivePlus Related Incidents) 
         *** This SMF to be used for ThrivePlus Related Incidents ***. 
         T: LOW - INFT REPORTING CUSTOMERS REFUSING TO LEAVE AND BLOCKING 
         STREET 
         H: LOW - INFT REPORTING CUSTOMERS REFUSING TO LEAVE AND BLOCKING 
         STREET 
         R: LOW - INFT REPORTING CUSTOMERS REFUSING TO LEAVE AND BLOCKING 
         STREET 
         I: GAVE CAD REF, UNIT ON SCENE ATTENDING LINKED 
         V: NA 
         E: GAVE CAD REF, UNIT ON SCENE ATTENDING LINKED 
  

page 162



                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 163



page 164



INC00859-13NOV21

page 165



PRINTED AT 12:50 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.   859:13NOV21 
  
                      action:PHD or PHL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         13NOV21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-11-13 02:14:22  CAD AT: 2021-11-13 
02:16:06 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744574 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:16:05 
         ^INF THERE IS A HUGE GROUP THAT ARE FIGHTING MTF 
02:16:27 13NOV21 717547 H2720    #2 
         ^AWN...PLS GET INFMTS NUMBER 
02:16:36 13NOV21 CHS             #3 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744574 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:16:36 
         ^INF THERE IS 50 PEOPLE AND CAN HEAR A FEMALE SCREAMING 
02:17:12 13NOV21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c744574 ) AT: 2021-11-13 02:17:12 
         ^OP INF DIDNT WANT TO GIVE DETAILS AND HAS CLEARED THE LINE 
02:19:39 13NOV21 722279 H2722    #5 
         ^3241AW - A LOT OF PEOPLE ON SCENE NO ONE FIGHTING AT THIS TIME. 
02:20:36 13NOV21 717547 H2720    #6 
         ^2006AW...THIS IS A LARGE GROUP OUTSIDE FROM A PUB SHUTTING FOR 
THE 
         NIGHT...NO FIGHT APPARENT AND NO ONE COMING FORWARD TO ALLEDGE 
         ANYTHING 
02:21:41 13NOV21 722279 H2722    #7 
         ^3241AW - SPOKEN TO THE INFT THERE WAS NO FIGHT, PREMS HAS 
CLOSED 
         THERE IS A GORUP OF PEOPLE OUTSIDE AND SHE WANTED HELP MOVING 
PEOPLE 
         ON. 
  
Previous Actions: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid   ACTION 
-------- ------- ------ -------- ------ 
                                 SYSTEM(EXTERNAL) 
02:16:06 13NOV21 CHS    CCC:CCL  O() 001:VIOLENCE AGAINST THE PERSON 
  "         "      "       "     PI 
02:16:13    "    722279 DIV:AWN  AK 
02:16:15    "    CHS    CCC:CCL  LOCA(58 PORCHESTER RD, W2)(CA) 
  

page 166



                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 167



page 168



INC03793-01NOV21

page 169



PRINTED AT 12:50 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.  3793:01NOV21 
  
                      action:PHD or PHL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Location Field     : (For previous Incidents at this location use 
                      action:LCD or LCL - use DARIS to extend search) 
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
Location Based Comments 
** Attendance and Incident and Caller Location ** 
CELBRIDGE MEWS,W2 
E OFF PORCHESTER RD, NEAR GLOUCESTER TER AND BISHOPS BRIDGE RD 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         01NOV21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-11-01 13:32:34  CAD AT: 2021-11-01 
13:52:10 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:40:15 
         ^INFT - LAST NIGHT SEVERAL PEOPLE FROM THE CLUB NEARBY HAVE BEEN 
         URINATING ON MY PORCH. THIS HAPPENED 3 TIMES LAST NIGHT. 
13:52:10 01NOV21 CHS             #2 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:40:48 
         ^INFT - THIS IS AN ONGOING PROBLEM THAT WE ARE HAVING WITH THE 
         NIGHTCLUB. 
13:52:10 01NOV21 CHS             #3 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:41:39 
         ^INFT - MADDAME NIGHCLUB, 58 PORCHESTER ROAD, W2 6ET 
13:52:10 01NOV21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:52:01 
         ^OP - BOOKING AN APPOINTMENT 
13:54:05 01NOV21 740993 H2722    #5 
         ^AWN PLEASE CONFIRM IF A VEHICLE IS ALSO AN ISSUE? 
13:55:10 01NOV21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:55:10 
         AWN^OP - THER IS NO VEHICLE WHICH IS AN ISSUE 
13:56:33 01NOV21 CHS             #7 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 13:56:33 
         ^OP - 1.5 APPT BOOKED WITH AW61 @ AW61 AT 19:00 ON 03/11/2021 
HRS 
13:56:51 01NOV21 740993 H2722    #8 
         ^AWN AMENDED QUALIFIER TO T202 
13:59:27 01NOV21 082229 H2661    #9 
         SCHEDULED APPOINTMENT AT 1800 ON 03NOV21 
         AW61L 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  

page 170



     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 171



PRINTED AT 12:50 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No.  3793:01NOV21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
14:03:44 01NOV21 CHS             #10 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 14:02:44 
         ^INFT - CALLER HAS SEVERAL INCIDENTS TO REPORT. SHE WANTED REF 
FOR EACH 
         PERSON THAT URINATED IN THE STREET. SHE ALSO WANTS TO REPORT 
SEEING 
         SOMEONE WALKING IN THE STREET WITH A BASEBALL BAT LAST NIGHT. 
         - 
         THIS IS AN ON GOING PROBLEM WITH THE FALLOUT FROM THE NIGHT CLUB 
14:03:44 01NOV21 CHS             #11 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (p241030 ) AT: 2021-11-01 14:03:41 
         SMF ASB (For All Incidents Of Anti-social Behaviour) 
         Always consider whether the circumstances of the incident render 
the 
         person concerned as vulnerable. 
         1. Has anything like this happened before?: Yes 
         2. Has the caller spoken to police about this or any other 
matter 
         relating to ASB?: Yes 
         3. If the answer to 2 is 'Yes', when were police called 
         (approximately)? : THERE ARE RECENTS CALLS TO POLICE MADE 
         4. Prior to this call, has the person sought help from elsewhere 
(e.g. 
         Local Authority, Security, Housing Association, Samaritans, 
Citizens 
         Advice, BT, etc.)?: Yes 
         5. If the answer to 4 is 'Yes' please state who? : LOCAL COUNCIL 
         6. Are there any health or welfare issues we need to be aware of 
that 
         could help us deal with your call? (VULNERABILITY)?: No 
         7. If the answer to 6 is 'Yes' record details of how/why 
vulnerable. 
         Record any other relevant information? : 
         ** For 'ASB' calls, you are no longer required to complete the 
'REPEAT' 
         or 'VULNERABLE' SMFs ** 
20:47:06 03NOV21 741098 H2722    #12 
         ^2058AW - CRIMNT AND AIRSPACE TO FOLLOW 
20:47:26 03NOV21 741098 H2722    #13 
         ** **START OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
         CLOSING CODE "215": 
         STOP - THIS INCIDENT TO BE PLACED IN THE GPC QUEUE 
                HAS AN ASB URN BEEN SHOWN? OR 
                HAS A MEMBER OF GPC CONFIRMED URN NOT REQUIRED - INCLUDE 
PAY NO 
                RESULT WITH FORMAT: ASB URN XX123456 OR ASB URN NOT 
REQUIRED 
                THEN FOLLOWED BY THE POLICE/STAFF PAY NUMBER OF DECISION 
MAKER 

page 172



         ** **END OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
21:55:30 03NOV21 253828          #14 
         ENTERED BY: CADL (p253828 ) AT: 2021-11-03 21:55:30 
         Crimint - CWRT01045442 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 173



page 174



     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 175



page 176



INC00954-16OCT21

page 177



PRINTED AT 12:50 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  2 
  
INCIDENT No.   954:16OCT21 
  
Gazetteer Comments : (May have existed or altered since Incident creation 
- 
                      Use MSS SMF:SPECARCHIVE) 
  
No Comments for this Location 
  
Remarks: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         16OCT21 CHS    CHS      (pre 1st routing) 
         CREATED IN: CHS   AT: 2021-10-16 02:39:03  CAD AT: 2021-10-16 
02:40:59 
         
====================================================================== 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:40:55 
         ^ INFT - MADAM NIGHT CLUB  AT LOC  ASB OCCURING 
         == 
         NIGHT CLUB  MUSIC IS STILL COMING THROUGH INFT PARTY WALL AND 
HAPPENS 
         EVER WEEK END 
         == 
         SHOULD HAVE STOPPED AT 0100HRS 
         == 
02:41:39 16OCT21 740081 H2720    #2 
         ^AWN NOTED PLS GET INFT TO CALL EHO 
02:54:21 16OCT21 CHS             #3 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:41:56 
         == 
         == 
02:54:21 16OCT21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:41:58 
         SMF ASB (For All Incidents Of Anti-social Behaviour) 
         Always consider whether the circumstances of the incident render 
the 
         person concerned as vulnerable. 
         1. Has anything like this happened before?: Yes 
         2. Has the caller spoken to police about this or any other 
matter 
         relating to ASB?: Yes 
         3. If the answer to 2 is 'Yes', when were police called 
         (approximately)? : PREVIOUS  CALLS 
         4. Prior to this call, has the person sought help from elsewhere 
(e.g. 
         Local Authority, Security, Housing Association, Samaritans, 
Citizens 
         Advice, BT, etc.)?: Yes 
         5. If the answer to 4 is 'Yes' please state who? : 
         6. Are there any health or welfare issues we need to be aware of 
that 
         could help us deal with your call? (VULNERABILITY)?: No 

page 178



         7. If the answer to 6 is 'Yes' record details of how/why 
vulnerable. 
         Record any other relevant information? : 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 179



PRINTED AT 12:50 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  3 
  
INCIDENT No.   954:16OCT21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         ** For 'ASB' calls, you are no longer required to complete the 
'REPEAT' 
         or 'VULNERABLE' SMFs ** 
02:54:21 16OCT21 CHS             #5 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:42:02 
         === 
         === 
02:54:21 16OCT21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:54:21 
         AWN ^ FC OP EHO  USELESS ACCORDING TO INFT  BEEN REPORTED  FOR 
LONG 
         TIME 
         == 
         INFT WOULD LIKE THE LICENCEING OFFICER INFORMED ABOUT THIS ALSO 
         == 
02:57:07 16OCT21 CHS             #7 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c743913 ) AT: 2021-10-16 02:55:36 
         WOULD BE WORTH WHILE  PASSING CALL TO SNT TO MAKE CONTACT WITH 
THE INFT 
          THIS IS STARTING TO EFFECT HER QUALITY OF LIFE AND IS GETTING 
         FRUSTRATED BY COUNCIL INACTION AND  POL ALSO 
         == 
14:50:18 17OCT21 233486          #8 
         ENTERED BY: CADL (p233486 ) AT: 2021-10-17 14:50:18 
         LRT - ASB URN VACW212861-P233486 
         PLEASE CLOSE USING CODE 676 
14:50:44 17OCT21 219933 H2723    #9 
         ** **START OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
         CLOSING CODE "215": 
         STOP - THIS INCIDENT TO BE PLACED IN THE GPC QUEUE 
                HAS AN ASB URN BEEN SHOWN? OR 
                HAS A MEMBER OF GPC CONFIRMED URN NOT REQUIRED - INCLUDE 
PAY NO 
                RESULT WITH FORMAT: ASB URN XX123456 OR ASB URN NOT 
REQUIRED 
                THEN FOLLOWED BY THE POLICE/STAFF PAY NUMBER OF DECISION 
MAKER 
         ** **END OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
  
Previous Actions: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid   ACTION 
-------- ------- ------ -------- ------ 
                                 SYSTEM(EXTERNAL) 
02:40:59 16OCT21 CHS    CCC:CCL  O() 215:ASB - NUISANCE,202:ROWDY OR 
INCONSI 
                                 DERATE BEHAVIOUR 
  "         "      "       "     PI 
02:41:10    "    740081 DIV:AWN  AK 
  

page 180



                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 181



page 182



INC01519-26SEP21

page 183



page 184



  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 185



page 186



     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 187



PRINTED AT 12:51 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  4 
  
INCIDENT No.  1519:26SEP21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         No 
         Have you experienced any other crimes in the past 12 months? 
         Yes 
         Please describe what happened on these other occasions 
04:20:10 26SEP21 CHS             #4 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c742212 ) AT: 2021-09-26 04:17:14 
         Anti social behaviour on our road. There are people screaming, 
standing 
         around in their vehicles, with music turned-up so loud that it s 
         keeping both my wife and I up at 1 am in the morning. This 
happens 
         almost every Saturday because of a location called Ma Dame on 
         Porchester road. I have reported this to our local counsellor 
and MP. I 
         will be grateful if we have police for our wellbeing and safety. 
         Do you have any health, mobility or welfare issues that are 
making this 
         situation more difficult? 
         No 
         Would you like to be contacted by Victim Support? 
         No 
         Do you have a disability? 
         No 
         Ethnic background 
         White-British 
         Did you do any of the following before you used the website 
today? 
         None of the above; this is the first time I'm contacting you 
about 
         this 
         If you hadn't been able to use the website do you think you 
would 
         have: 
         Called 101 
         Incident details 
         Incident details 
         Has anyone reported this already? 
         I don't know 
         When did it happen? 
         When did it happen? 
         26/09/2021 - 26/09/2021 
         Start time 
04:20:10 26SEP21 CHS             #5 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c742212 ) AT: 2021-09-26 04:17:14 
         00:30 
         End time 
         01:05 
         If you re unsure about the date or time, please give a few 
details 

page 188



  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 189



PRINTED AT 12:51 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  5 
  
INCIDENT No.  1519:26SEP21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         below 
         not given 
         Where did it happen? 
         Lat long 
         51.5190789,-0.1928925 
         Easting northing 
         525478,181565 
         Address 
         Westbourne Park Villas, London W2, UK 
         M
          
         
         ReadOnly 
         Origin 
         Triage 
         You gave us this map location earlier. Is the address correct? 
Can you 
         tell us anything else to help pinpoint the exact location? 
         The cars which are parked straight after the Church on 
Westbourne Park 
         Villas, W2. 
         At any point, were you on public transport? 
         No 
         What happened? 
04:20:10 26SEP21 CHS             #6 
         ENTERED BY: CHS  (c742212 ) AT: 2021-09-26 04:17:14 
         Please tell us what happened, and the events leading up to it, 
to help 
         us identify if an offence has been committed. 
         Anti social behaviour on our road. There are people screaming, 
standing 
         around in their vehicles, with music turned-up so loud that it s 
         keeping both my wife and I up at 1 am in the morning. This 
happens 
         almost every Saturday because of a location called Ma Dame on 
         Porchester road. I have reported this to our local counsellor 
and MP. I 
         will be grateful if we have police for our wellbeing and safety. 
This 
         is extremely ridiculous. 
         Do you feel race, ethnicity, sex, gender, sexuality, disability 
or 
         religion were a factor in this crime? 
         No 
         Evidence 
         Evidence 
         Has the suspect clearly left something at the scene; such as 
clothing, 

page 190



         blood, any other bodily fluids, discarded items, obvious 
fingerprints 
         or footprints? Or has the suspect caused any damage or made a 
mess 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  
     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 191



PRINTED AT 12:51 23:JAN:22  p207028                     207028 
  
SINGLE INCIDENT PRINTOUT                                               
PAGE  6 
  
INCIDENT No.  1519:26SEP21 
  
Time     Date    Opid   Termid 
-------- ------- ------ -------- 
         searching? 
         No 
         Do you have any video, audio or photo evidence? 
         No 
         Does another person, business or company have video evidence 
such as 
         CCTV or mobile phone footage? 
         I don't know 
         Witness details 
         Witness details 
         Did anyone else see what happened? 
         I don't know 
         Suspect details 
         Suspect details 
         Suspect 1 
         Do you know this person? 
         No I don't know anything about them 
04:21:06 26SEP21 707601 H2720    #7 
         ^AWN NOTED INC HAPPENED AT 0030 
04:21:08 26SEP21 722541 H2722    #8 
         ** **START OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
         CLOSING CODE "215": 
         STOP - THIS INCIDENT TO BE PLACED IN THE GPC QUEUE 
                HAS AN ASB URN BEEN SHOWN? OR 
                HAS A MEMBER OF GPC CONFIRMED URN NOT REQUIRED - INCLUDE 
PAY 
         NO 
                RESULT WITH FORMAT: ASB URN XX123456 OR ASB URN NOT 
REQUIRED 
                THEN FOLLOWED BY THE POLICE/STAFF PAY NUMBER OF DECISION 
         MAKER 
         ** **END OF DATA AUTOMATICALLY COPIED FROM CLOSING PROMPT** ** 
11:23:16 27SEP21 233486          #9 
         ENTERED BY: CADL (p233486 ) AT: 2021-09-27 11:23:16 
         LRT - ASB URN VACW212580-P233486 
         PLEASE CLOSE USING CODE 676 
  
Previous Actions: 
Time     Date    Opid   Termid   ACTION 
-------- ------- ------ -------- ------ 
                                 SYSTEM(EXTERNAL) 
04:20:10 26SEP21 CHS    CCC:CCL  O() 215:ASB - NUISANCE,202:ROWDY OR 
INCONSI 
                                 DERATE BEHAVIOUR,211:NOISE 
  "         "      "       "     PI 
  
                                                                   
CONTINUED ... 
  

page 192



     SUBJECT TO FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT AND DATA PROTECTION ACT 
      NO UNAUTHORISED DISCLOSURE-DISPOSE OF AS CONFIDENTIAL WASTE.             

page 193



page 194



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 1 of 37 CRIS Live 

Screening Decision: IN 

Main 

IU: AWBCU AW Basic Command Unit 

Crime Type: B H/O Crime Type: 7 

Allegation (Prefix): 

Allegation: 

Committed on/from Date: MON 01/11/2021 00:05 

Committed to Date: MON 01/11/2021 01:00 

Reported Date: MON 01/11/2021 14:42 

How Notified: NP Phone Call to Police 

Restricted?      By: Date: 

Restriction Reason: 

Flags 

CW 

Borough Branch 

Service Area (Historical) 

CJ Pass to TDIU (MetCC USE ONLY) 

TS T/Phone skeletal report made 

PI Pathfinder OnlineInvestigation 

CH Created by CHS User 

OIC 

Is OIC Same As Reporting Officer ? 

Investigating Officer's Rank: PC 

Surname: GOODCHILD Initials: A 

Warrant Number: 242560 Div/D Number: 2101AW Usual Relief: 

Duty: AA Borough Uniform 

Station/Branch: AWERAWS 

Allocated Date/Time: 11/11/2021 05:49 

Allocation Noted?   Y Noted Date/Time:   11/11/2021 23:01 

BWV Noted?   BWV Noted Date/Time: 

Previous OIC Details 

Usual Duty Station Allocated Date/Time Noted Date/Time BWV Noted 

Relief Branch Date/Time 

APS   237487   S   MARSHALL   1115AW 

AA Borough Uniform AWERAWN 08/11/2021 11:43 

ADMIN   AW00001   XX   AW ERPT 

AA Borough Uniform FH 07/11/2021 16:50 

CIV   743131   K   WARWICK  

BB TP Central Unit TPTIU-D 07/11/2021 16:29 07/11/2021 16:29 

PC   METCHS1   CH   CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

4 Crime Reports
CR6544191-21

page 195



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 2 of 37 CRIS Live 

 OA Other duty(Uniform) TPHQ 01/11/2021 14:42    

    

 

OIC Supervisor:   APS2217AW/243735 J LILLEY 

 

Press 

 

Suitable for Press? Y 

Restrictions:  

Is this a Specrim? N 

Date/Time:  

Was a Firearm Used? N 

Was other Weapon Used? N 

Are there Terrorist Implications? N 

Was a Suspect present on Police arrival? N 

No. of Suspects Present:  

Was the Suspect(s) arrested? N 

No. of Suspects Arrested:  

 

Source System References 

 

Source System 

Name 

Source System 

Reference 

Entered Date/Time Entered By 

CHS 202111010030426 01/11/2021 14:42 PC            /METCHS1 CH CHS GENERIC 

ACCOUNT 

 

Totals 

 

Total Values: 

 

Stolen £:  Outstanding £:    Damaged £:    

Recovered £:    Damaged On Recovery £:    

 

Total: 

 

VIW(s): 1 Property 0 Vehicles(s): 1 

Accused: 0 Suspect(s): 0 CAIT Subject(s): 0 

 

Drugs/Fraud 

 

Is this CR for an arrest for possession etc. (not theft) of controlled drugs?  

If Fraudulent Use-Item Used: N 

 

 

DV/Hate Crime 

Is this a Hate Crime/Domestic Incident/Carer Abuse?  N 

 

Domestic Incident?   Forced Marriage?   

Honour Based Violence?   Hate Crime?  

Carer Abuse?  

 

 

Initial Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

page 196



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 3 of 37 CRIS Live 

Completed by:  

 

Initial Risk Assessment Management Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Current Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

 

Form 124D Completed?   

Completed by:      

 

Form124D Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Received by the CSU?        CSU Reference    

Completed by:  

 

 

LGBT Relationship?     

 

Category of Hate Crime 
 

Race?  

Faith/Religion/Belief?  Religion Name:  

Homophobia?  

Transphobia?  

Disability?  

Targeted because of Vulnerability?  

 

page 197



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 4 of 37 CRIS Live 

  

Digital Evidence 

 

Is there Body Worn Video content in this case? N 

 

Audio/Visual Content 

 

# AV Type WtNo Exhibit No Evidential Master Link/66 Content shows 

        

 

page 198



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Venue 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 5 of 37 CRIS Live 

Location 

 

OMPD?  

Address: 

O/S 14,WESTBOURNE PARK ROAD, 

LONDON,CITY OF WESTMINSTER,W2 5PH 

Location Text: 

 

GLU: CW Local Id: CW02 Grid Ref: 525674,181470 

Watch Area:  

 

 

Main 
 

Location Type(s): AZ Not Known     

 

Is the Venue covered by CCTV or in a CCTV Area? Y 

CCTV Options: CE CCTV Not Recovered By Police     

 

Approach:    

Entry Method:  

Entry Point:  

Exit Point:  

Security:  

Person On Premises?  

Other Info:  

 

 

Internal Transfer 

 

Date/Time Transferred By Previous GLU Previous IU 

07/11/2021 16:30 CIV            /743131     WARWICK CW TPHQ 

   

 

 

Transfer From MPS 
 

Transfer from Met To:- 

Service:   

Station:  

Their Reference:  

 

Received By:- 

Rank:  

Number:  

Surname:  

page 199



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 6 of 37 CRIS Live 

VIW No:  1 Of: 1 Total - Victims: 1 

Role(s): V   I    Total Witness: 0  CAIT Subject No:   

 

Personal Details 

 

    

   

  

    

     

   

      

        

School or College:  

 

GLU:  Local ID:    GridRef:    

National of 1:   

Passport No 1:  

National of 2:   

Passport No 2:   

Religion:  

 

Address Details 

 

VIW’s Address is same as VEN?  

Address: 

WITHHELD 

GLU: WITHHELD Local ID:  WITHHELD  GridRef:  WITHHELD  

Home Intelligence Unit: WITHHELD 

 

PCM: E CNAA Reason:   

 

Contact Details: 

Home:  WITHHELD   Business:  WITHHELD  

Mobile:  WITHHELD Other:  WITHHELD  

Email:  WITHHELD 

page 200



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 7 of 37 CRIS Live 

Injury Details 

 

Injury Degree:  HD No Injury  

Injury Description: No Injury and Vulnerability No entered by CHS. Confirm entries 

Description/Dress: 

 

Vulnerable/intimidated Victim/Witness? WITHHELD 

Reason for Vulnerability/Intimidation: WITHHELD 

 

Victim Interviews 

 

Interview Type Date of Interview Start Time Location Other Persons Present Interviewing Officer eStatement Ref No 

       

 

Actions 

 

MG11 Taken?  Witness Albums Visited? N 

Victim of Reported Crime to Police 

in last 12 months? N No 

Is V willing for VSS to be informed? N No 

V Code of Practice Applicable? Y 

 METCHS1 PC       CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT CH        01/11/2021 

 

Changed To Entered By Date 

   

 

 

VCOP Actn Compl?  

          

Fraud Cl'rup  Date:    

NFRC    

 

Knows Suspect No. How Known 

  

 

 

Aware of Suspect No. How Victim or Witness aware of Arrest 

  

 

page 201



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 8 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

Knows Accused No. How Known 

  

 

Needs 
 

Does anyone perceive VIW to be Deaf and/or Disabled? N 

If Yes, who? VIW/Other:        

 

Details of Disability: 

 

 

Physical Access Needs:   

 

Personal Care Needs:   

 

 

Medical Needs:    

 

Communication Needs:   

 

 

Sexual Orientation:   

Gender Identity:   

 

Officer’s Notes: 

 

 

page 202



page 203



page 204



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Vehicle Details 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 11 of 37 CRIS Live 

Interior Marks: 

 

Equipment Fitted: 

 

Type of Upholstery and Colour(s): 

 

Aerials/Mirrors/Speakers (position): 

 

 

 

Exterior Data 
 

Exterior Marks: 

 

Respray?    If YES, give previous colour:    

Wheels/Tyres Type: 

 

Badges/Stickers (position): 

 

 

Officer’s Notes: 

Suspect vehicle. 

page 205



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 12 of 37 CRIS Live 

IDO 

 

IDO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

IDO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

CPO 

 

CPO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

CPO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

Photographer 

 

Photographer Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

Photographer Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

page 206



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 13 of 37 CRIS Live 

      

 

 

 

Other 

 

Other Request: 

 

Request Id Type Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

1 Safer 

Neighbourhood 

Referrals 

07/11/2021 16:31 BURGIN 240265 07/11/2021 17:52   

 

 

Other Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

Access Info 
 

page 207



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Features 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 14 of 37 CRIS Live 

Features/instruments 

 

 

 

Text: 

  

 

IDO Text:  

Prop Ref Nos 

 

 

 

Forensic Data 

 

Lab Reference No:  

 

FORENSIC REFERENCES 

Type No 

 

 

Officers Notes: 

 

  

page 208



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Linked Crimes 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 15 of 37 CRIS Live 

Chain ID Removed Police Contact    

 from 

 Chain? 
 

 

 

page 209



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 16 of 37 CRIS Live 

Method 

 

Current Position: C Classified 

Method: Victim threatened by suspect. 

 

Classification Set by CIT: 

Lock:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Classify 

 

Main Classification: 

 Code Victim Date 

Initial: S149/82 Y 01/11/2021 14:45 

Current: S125/09 Y 07/11/2021 16:32 

Description: SUBSTANT./Causing Intentional Harassment Alarm or Distress 

 

Subsidiary Classifications: 

 Code Victim Count 

    

 

Confirm?    Y Date: 07/11/2021 16:32 

 By:             

Victim Count Discrepancy:  

 

page 210



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 17 of 37 CRIS Live 

No Crime 

   

No Crime?  Date:     

Reason:  

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Crime Related 

Incident? 

 Date:     

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Statistical Info 

 

Current Status: U Undetected Crime Last Changed:  

Cleared-Up Reason:  Date:  

 

Original Classification 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Outcome Changed Change Reason Last Changed Last Changed By 

Main S125/09 Y  U 00 Outcome Pending 07/11/2021 

16:32:00 

 07/11/2021 

16:32:00 

             

 

 

 Confirmed Date: 07/11/2021 16:32 

 Confirmed By: CIV            

 

Statistical Parent CR:  

 

 

Administrative Detections 

 

Home Office Rule:  

 Date:  

 By:  

Explanatory Notes:  

 

page 211



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 18 of 37 CRIS Live 

All Current Home Office 

Requirements Satisfied:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Of Interest To 
 

Method Index:  

CP Analysis:  

 

 

Victim Amendments 

 

Date Added Time VIW No By 

 

 

Date Removed Time VIW No By 

 

History 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Reason When By 

         

 

page 212



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Messages 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 19 of 37 CRIS Live 

Addressee Date Sent Text Cancel Date 

 

 

Gen Reg No Description 

 

 

Important/Interest Crime?  Date:    

page 213



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 20 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

Service Flag CJ added 

 

 

 

 

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

*** THIS CRIME REPORT HAS BEEN AUTOMATICALLY CREATED FROM A CHS DEMAND 

RECORD AND INVESTIGATED BY THE TDIU*** 

It is the responsibility of the IIO to clarify and confirm the details recorded in this report. 

Please note the following screens for updating: 

   - General Screen: DV/Hate Crime Tab has been shown as "No" - Requires verification. 

   - General Screen: Digital Evidence Tab has been shown as "No" - Requires verification. 

   - Venue Screen: Main location has been shown as AZ - Requires verification. 

   - Venue Screen: For Burglary. Approach, Security, Entry and Exit values - Requires verification. 

   - VIW Screen: Injury/Dress Tab. Injury Degree has been shown as HD (No Injury) - Requires 

verification. 

   - VIW Screen: If victim is of school age, School address - Requires verification. 

   - SUSPECT, VEHICLE and PROPERTY details recorded on DETS - Requires screen creation. 

 

CHS 20211101030426 01/11/2021 14:42:06 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

 

Opening codes: 

010 - Criminal Damage 

 

Email sent to charlesavis@gmail.com 

 

Allegation details: 

=================== 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

 

 

Submitted 

 

01/11/2021 11:31 

 

 

 

Form Ref 

 

 

 

 

 

Form Name 

 

Report the behaviour of someone 

page 214



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 21 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel 

page 215



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 22 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

Buffet) 

====================================== 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Origin 

 

Form 

 

How would you prefer we contact you about your report? 

 

By email 

 

Do you need an interpreter or translator or have any other communication needs? 

 

No 

 

Are you willing to meet us at your home? 

 

Yes 

 

Your role 

 

Your role 

 

I'm reporting this for... 

 

 

 

Are you over 18? 

 

Yes 

 

Did you do any of the following before you used the website today? 

 

None of the above; this is the first time I'm contacting you about this 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

If you hadn't been able to use the website do you think you would have: 

 

Called 101 

page 216



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 23 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

Incident details 

 

Incident details 

 

Has something like this happened before? 

 

Yes 

 

Is it still happening now? 

 

No 

 

Start date 

 

01/11/2021 

 

Start time 

 

00;05 

 

End date 

 

01/11/2021 

 

End time 

 

00.20 

 

If you?re unsure about the date or time, please give a few details below 

 

not given 

 

Lat long 

 

51.5181562,-0.1908369 

 

Easting northing 

 

525623,181466 

 

Address 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

Westbourne Park Rd, London W2 5PH, UK 

 

Map url 

 

 

 

Map type 

 

ReadOnly 

 

Origin 

 

Triage 

page 217



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 24 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

This is the location you gave us earlier, is this correct? 

 

Yes 

 

Can you tell us anything else to help pinpoint the exact location? 

 

i have video evidence of the disturbance 

 

Please 

page 218



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 25 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

tell us what happened during the latest incident 

 

i was getting ready to go to bed and heard shouting and cars in the street outside my house. This is 

often the case in the street as there is a night club at the end of the road although they are supposed 

under their licence terms to not let patrons park in the residential streets including westbourne park 

road. Residents have been asked to get evidence of licence breaches so I went outside to film the 

goings on. I went out with my dog and filmed a  blocking the driveway with several 

people outside talking shouting and generally hanging about. One of them asked me why I was filming. 

I said they shouldn't be parking in the street if they were from the night club. I kept filming and things 

started to get uglier. It eventuated with the driver of the car shouting at me along the line 'I know where 

you live, I'm going to come and smash your cars etc'. It felt like it could escalate so I put my phone in 

my pocket but felt pretty threatened. I have the number of the car  which maybe important 

if there is some sort of attack on me or my property in the future. I also have some video footage of the 

incidence. All this is unlikely to have happened if the licensee of Ma Dames night club had adhered to 

the conditions of the licence specifically nos 52 and 54 which state that street marshalls will be 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

stationed at the entrance to WPR to stop vehicles parking there and that anyone who does is refused 

entry to the club. 

 

Do you think drugs or alcohol have been 

page 219



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 26 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

involved in this incident? 

 

I don't know 

 

Previous incidents 

 

How long have these been going on for? 

 

this goes back several years but has been escalating again post lockdown 

 

How often do they happen? 

 

on average once a week 

 

Could you please provide a description of the previous incidents, including dates and times 

 

Andy Burgin at Met police has a list 

 

People involved 

 

Details of other people involved 

 

Do you know the person? 

 

No, I don?t know them 

 

Evidence 

 

Incident evidence 

 

Do you have any video, audio or photo evidence? 

 

Yes 

 

Please describe what can be seen or heard in your evidence 

 

evidence of what i have described 

 

Does another person or business have a video of what happened, such as CCTV or mobile phone 

footage? 

 

I don't know 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:22 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

Impact 

 

Impact of issue 

 

How has the incident affected you? 

 

page 220



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 27 of 37 CRIS Live 

it is concerning 

 

Do you have any health, mobility or welfare issues that are making this situation more difficult? 

 

No 

 

Do you feel you are being targeted? 

 

No 

 

Do you feel race, disability, religion, sexual orientation, or transgender identity were a factor in this 

incident? 

 

No 

 

Do you feel like this incident is having an impact on the community? 

 

Yes 

 

Please explain how 

 

this is a continuation of a string of incidents such as this whihc disturbs the locals andd their families 

that live here. 

 

CHS 01/11/2021 14:43:43 c740956 (Axel Buffet) 

====================================== 

^OP - PASSING TO CRIS  

- 

PASSED TO CAD TO ADD PNC DETAILS ON THE CAD  

- 

I 

page 221



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 28 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

01/11/2021 14:45 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

AM PNC TRAINED 

 

CAD 01/11/2021 14:44:15 740956 

====================================== 

 

                      

                      

         

  

                      

  

    

                     

                   

         

 

 

CAD 01/11/2021 14:44:15 740956 

====================================== 

NO REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:30 

 

                

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:30 

 

                

 

Service Flag TS added 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:30 

 

CIV                

 

Service Flag PI added 

 

page 222



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 29 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:31 

 

                

 

Screened In 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:32 

 

                

 

Classification confirmed 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:48 

 

                

 

TDIU ENTRY **ONLINE REPORT**: This report has been completed in line with the Telephone 

Digital Investigations Units (TDIU) policy. The primary investigation has been completed by TDIU 

following an online report. A duplicate CRIS check has been conducted and there is no record of this 

incident having been previously recorded.  

 

The victim reported ongoing ASB outside of his home address. The victim stated that there is an 

agreement with the licensee of Ma Dames night club around their patrons parking on the victim's street. 

On the night of the offence, the victim heard loud noises/shouting outside of his property and went 

down to investigate. The victim witnessed several individuals group around a  

 and began to film the ASB. When asked why he was filming, the victim told 

them 'they shouldn't be parking in the 

page 223



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 30 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

07/11/2021 16:48 

 

                

 

street if they were from the night club'. The conversation escalated with one of the individuals 

threatening 'I know where you live, I'm going to come and smash your cars etc'. At this, the victim put 

his phone away and appears to have returned to his h/a. 

 

The victim added that this type of situation occurs at least once a week and goes back several years but 

has been escalating again post lockdown.  

 

Previous incidents have been noted as reported to PC A.Burgin P240265. Courtesy email sent to PC 

Burgin. 

 

SNT flagged for awareness. 

 

VCOP sent via letter. 

 

Crime reference number and CMS contact details provided by MTS. 

 

H.A.V.E.  

History 

. Any relevant historical links between the victim or venue or suspect or any other matters? The offence 

occurred outside of the victim's home address. Suspect not identified. 

. Any other underlying historical facts relevant to this offence? Not known at time of investigation. 

 

Aggravating factors 

. Any aggravating factors? Not known at time of investigation. 

 

Vulnerability 

. Any vulnerability factors? Not known at time of investigation. 

 

Escalation 

. Any escalation factors? Ongoing ASB. Escalation possible. 

 

Steps Taken 

. Any tactical intervention required? No. 

 

SOLVABILITY ASSESSMENT 

Based on my assessment of material available, further investigation is required. 

The reasons behind this are:- 

 

Principle 1- Victim is willing to prosecute. 

Principle 2- There is a named or identifiable suspect. 

Principle 4 – CCTV is available. 

Principle 4a- CCTV covers the scene. 

Principle 4b- CCTV time frame is suitable. 

 

STEPS TAKEN 

VCOP sent via letter. 

page 224



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 31 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

07/11/2021 16:48 

 

CIV      743131         K  WARWICK 

 

SNT flagged. CMS details via MTS. 

Screening in for ongoing issues. 

Local Borough where the offence occurred to make a decision as to whether any further investigation 

should be conducted. 

SCREEN IN 

 

 

 

 

 

07/11/2021 16:50 

 

                

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

08/11/2021 11:43 

 

PC       231202  1306AW S  FREWIN 

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

11/11/2021 05:48 

 

APS      237487  1115AW S  MARSHALL 

 

-------------------- MIST ALLOCATION REVIEW --------------------- 

It appears the victim is report the ASB around the vehicle usage and also this as a precaution. It is 

unlikely the matter would be carried out. 

SNT have noted the report. 

Victim to be contacted to discuss, I advise that the OIC emails licensing to make them aware and 

inform the inft has a video of apparently breaching the licence conditions.  

Would the victim be willing to attend court? This would be required should a prosecution be sought. 

IIP to be carried out on the vehicle and persons linked to it 

 

 

 

 

 

11/11/2021 05:49 

 

APS      237487  1115AW S  MARSHALL 

 

page 225



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 32 of 37 CRIS Live 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

07/01/2022 20:19 

 

APS      237487  1115AW S  MARSHALL 

 

-------------- SUPERVISION CHANGE ----------------- 

I am moving from MIST and the supervision of this case is now being handed over to A/Sgt James 

LILLEY. 

 

OIC needs to update this report ASAP, there has been no updates on the progress for nearly 2 months 

 

 

 

 

 

07/01/2022 20:20 

 

APS      237487  1115AW S  MARSHALL 

 

VCOP has also expired 

 

 

 

 

 

17/01/2022 21:25 

 

PC       242560  2101AW A  GOODCHILD 

 

I have had a conversation with Mr AVIS about this and he has stated that he is informing the SNT 

officers on a regular basis of the behaviour of these vehicles in and around the vicinity of this 

nightclub. I will inform licensing about the ASB that is being caused and whether this is something 

they would be interested in to see if they are breaching their licensing contract. I will then discuss the 

next steps of this investigation with  tomsee what resolutions would be possible. 

page 226



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 33 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

17/01/2022 21:32 

 

PC       242560  2101AW A  GOODCHILD 

 

I have conducted an IIP search on the vehicle and the vehicle is not known. 

 

 

 

 

 

18/01/2022 19:18 

 

PC       242560  2101AW A  GOODCHILD 

 

I have emailed Licensing for advice on the approach to the investigation. 

page 227



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 34 of 37 CRIS Live 

Memos 

 

Sent To 

Noted By 

Completed By                             Date 

Entered By                         Urgent?         Noted          Completed     Cancelled        Entered 

 

 

 

 

Create Action/Decision/Review Screens ?   

Action/Decision/Review Screens Created By:  

 

Create CAIT Screens?     

CAIT Screens Created By:     

 

Case Mgt Administration 

 

Is SIO Same As OIC Supervisor?    

Current Senior Investigating Officer (SIO):  

Allocated:      

 

Noted?       

Noted Date/Time:     

 

Previous SIOs: 

 

Officer Allocated Noted 

   

 

Review Period:    days     Next Review Due:    

 

 

page 228



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 35 of 37 CRIS Live 

Summary: 

Actions:  Total:     Ready for Completion:   Completed:     

Decisions: Total:     With Rationale:    Seen By SIO:     

Review:  Total:    

 

page 229



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 36 of 37 CRIS Live 

Initial Entry 

 

Initial I.O.: 

Rank: PC  

Surname: CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT Initials: CH  

Wt/Pay No: METCHS1 Div/D No:  

 

Crime Recorded by: METCHS1 CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT PC              CH 

Date/Time: 01/11/2021 14:45 

Recording Unit: FH 

 

 

Supervision 

 

Initial entry checked? F 

Initial entry checked by:                

Date/Time: 07/11/2021 16:49 

 

Ongoing Supervision 

Date Supervision By 

01/01/2022 02:20 APS     1115AW/237487  S  MARSHALL 

11/11/2021 05:48   APS     1115AW/237487  S  MARSHALL 

 

Investigation complete?  

Investigation complete by:  

Date/Time:  

 

Crime Report closed?  

Crime Report closed by:  

Date/Time:  

 

 

Screening 

 

Screening Decision: IN Crime screened "in" for further investigation. 

Reason: 92 Proportionate Investigation 

Text:  

 

 

Screening History 

Decision Reason Text 

 

 

Completion 

 

Date/Time CR  

Last Updated: 18/01/2022 19:18 

 

CR Completed?  

Date/Time:  

By (Wt.No):  

 

page 230



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6544191/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-7 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Pub Order S 4a 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:35 Page 37 of 37 CRIS Live 

 

Bring Forward: 

 

Date                                     Date Entered                  For 

Reason 

Date Cancelled                   Cancelled By 
 

 

 

page 231



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 1 of 33 CRIS Live 

Screening Decision: OUT 

Main 

IU: AWBCU AW Basic Command Unit 

Crime Type: B H/O Crime Type: 1 

Allegation (Prefix): 

Allegation: 

Committed on/from Date: SUN 28/07/2019 03:30 

Committed to Date: 

Reported Date: SUN 28/07/2019 03:37 

How Notified: NP Phone Call to Police 

Restricted?      By: Date: 

Restriction Reason: 

Flags 

CW 

Borough Branch 

Service Area (Historical) 

MU Created by Mobile User 

OIC 

Is OIC Same As Reporting Officer ? 

Investigating Officer's Rank: PC 

Surname: PISTARELLI Initials: S 

Warrant Number: 243963 Div/D Number: 2192AW Usual Relief: 

Duty: AA Borough Uniform 

Station/Branch: AWBCU AW Basic Command Unit 

Allocated Date/Time: 28/07/2019 04:19 

Allocation Noted?   Y Noted Date/Time: 28/07/2019 04:19 

BWV Noted?   BWV Noted Date/Time: 

Previous OIC Details 

Usual Duty Station Allocated Date/Time Noted Date/Time BWV Noted 

Relief Branch Date/Time 

OIC Supervisor: APS1359AW/240275 E TEE 

Press 

CR6551025-19

page 232



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 2 of 33 CRIS Live 

No. of Suspects Arrested:  

 

Source System References 

 

Source System 

Name 

Source System 

Reference 

Entered Date/Time Entered By 

CAD 001520/28JUL19 28/07/2019 04:17 PC      2192AW/243963  S  PISTARELLI 

 

Totals 

 

Total Values: 

 

Stolen £:  Outstanding £:    Damaged £:   300.00 

Recovered £:    Damaged On Recovery £:    

 

Total: 

 

VIW(s): 1 Property 1 Vehicles(s): 0 

Accused: 0 Suspect(s): 0 CAIT Subject(s): 0 

 

Drugs/Fraud 

 

Is this CR for an arrest for possession etc. (not theft) of controlled drugs?  

If Fraudulent Use-Item Used: N 

 

 

DV/Hate Crime 

Is this a Hate Crime/Domestic Incident/Carer Abuse?  N 

 

Domestic Incident?   Forced Marriage?   

Honour Based Violence?   Hate Crime?  

Carer Abuse?  

 

 

Initial Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

Initial Risk Assessment Management Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Current Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

 

Form 124D Completed?   

Completed by:      

page 233



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 3 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

Form124D Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Received by the CSU?        CSU Reference    

Completed by:  

 

 

LGBT Relationship?     

 

Category of Hate Crime 
 

Race?  

Faith/Religion/Belief?  Religion Name:  

Homophobia?  

Transphobia?  

Disability?  

Targeted because of Vulnerability?  

 

  

Digital Evidence 

 

Is there Body Worn Video content in this case? N 

 

Audio/Visual Content 

 

# AV Type WtNo Exhibit No Evidential Master Link/66 Content shows 

        

 

page 234



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Venue 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 4 of 33 CRIS Live 

Location 

 

OMPD?  

Address: 

O/S,Ma Dame,58,PORCHESTER ROAD, 

LONDON,W2 6ET 

Location Text: 

 

GLU: CW Local Id: CW02 Grid Ref: 525774,181451 

Watch Area:  

 

 

Main 
 

Location Type(s): FA Street     

 

Is the Venue covered by CCTV or in a CCTV Area? N 

CCTV Options:      

 

Approach:    

Entry Method:  

Entry Point:  

Exit Point:  

Security:  

Person On Premises?  

Other Info:  

 

 

Internal Transfer 

 

Date/Time Transferred By Previous GLU Previous IU 

    

 

 

Transfer From MPS 
 

Transfer from Met To:- 

Service:   

Station:  

Their Reference:  

 

Received By:- 

Rank:  

Number:  

Surname:  

page 235



page 236



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 6 of 33 CRIS Live 

Injury Details 

 

Injury Degree:  HD No Injury  

Injury Description:  

Description/Dress: 

No apparent injury 

Vulnerable/intimidated Victim/Witness? WITHHELD 

Reason for Vulnerability/Intimidation: WITHHELD 

 

Victim Interviews 

 

Interview Type Date of Interview Start Time Location Other Persons Present Interviewing Officer eStatement Ref No 

       

 

Actions 

 

MG11 Taken?  Witness Albums Visited? N 

Victim of Reported Crime to Police 

in last 12 months? N No 

Is V willing for VSS to be informed? N No 

V Code of Practice Applicable? Y 

 243963  PC       PISTARELLI S        28/07/2019 

 

Changed To Entered By Date 

   

 

 

VCOP Actn Compl? Y 

 217099  PC       ALLFREE ML        29/07/2019 

Fraud Cl'rup  Date:    

NFRC    

 

Knows Suspect No. How Known 

  

 

 

Aware of Suspect No. How Victim or Witness aware of Arrest 

  

 

page 237



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 7 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

Knows Accused No. How Known 

  

 

Needs 
 

Does anyone perceive VIW to be Deaf and/or Disabled? N 

If Yes, who? VIW/Other:        

 

Details of Disability: 

 

 

Physical Access Needs:   

 

Personal Care Needs:   

 

 

Medical Needs:    

 

Communication Needs:   

 

 

Sexual Orientation:   

Gender Identity:   

 

Officer’s Notes: 

Vicitm has been notified that there is no CCTV and no independent witnesses. No real chance to prosecute any suspect as the victim was not able to describe or identify the suspects. 

 

page 238



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Victims Code of Practice 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 8 of 33 CRIS Live 

VIW No: 1       Of: 1 

 

 

VSS Info: 

  

Local VSS Ref:  

Language (If not English):  

Victim Contacted by I.O? Y 

Date/Time: 28/07/2019 04:25 

 

 

Action Taken Action Date Entered by     Generated Date Generated 

EB VSS Not Appropriate 29/07/2019 217099 PC ALLFREE ML                            

BZ SO - Completed Inv. 29/07/2019 217099 PC ALLFREE ML                         Y  29/07/2019 20:35  

     

 

 

Remarks: 

 

page 239



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

 Property Details 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 9 of 33 CRIS Live 

Item No:   1         Of:   1 VIW No:  

Property Type: HG Mirror/glass Status: DA Damaged  

Stolen £:  Damaged £: 300.00 Handled £:   

 

 

 

Make:  Model:   

ID Number/  ID Number/ 

Indiv/from:  Indiv/to:  

IMEI No:  

Property Mark:   

Inscription:  

Description including damage: 

 

Victim considers property item to be Art or Antique?   

Of NIB Interest?     

 

 

 

page 240



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 10 of 33 CRIS Live 

IDO 

 

IDO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

IDO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

CPO 

 

CPO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

CPO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

Photographer 

 

Photographer Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

Photographer Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

page 241



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 11 of 33 CRIS Live 

      

 

 

 

Other 

 

Other Request: 

 

Request Id Type Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

        

 

 

Other Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

Access Info 
 

page 242



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Features 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 12 of 33 CRIS Live 

Features/instruments 

 

EP Victim punched 

 

Text: 

  

 

IDO Text:  

Prop Ref Nos 

 

 

 

Forensic Data 

 

Lab Reference No:  

 

FORENSIC REFERENCES 

Type No 

ES 033502 

 

Officers Notes: 

 

  

page 243



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Linked Crimes 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 13 of 33 CRIS Live 

Chain ID Removed Police Contact    

 from 

 Chain? 
 

 

 

page 244



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 14 of 33 CRIS Live 

Method 

 

Current Position: C Classified 

Method: The victim was filming the crowd on the street, was approached by a female who, 

to stop him from filming, grabbed his phone. A struggle ensued and as he was 

trying to retrieve the phone, a group of people punched him. 

 

Classification Set by CIT: 

Lock:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Classify 

 

Main Classification: 

 Code Victim Date 

Initial: S105/01 Y 28/07/2019 04:17 

Current: S105/01 Y 29/07/2019 20:34 

Description: SUBSTANT./Common Assault - Summarily Only 

 

Subsidiary Classifications: 

 Code Victim Count 

    

 

Confirm?    Y Date: 29/07/2019 20:34 

 By: PC      506TP /217099  ML ALLFREE 

Victim Count Discrepancy:  

 

page 245



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 15 of 33 CRIS Live 

No Crime 

   

No Crime?  Date:     

Reason:  

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Crime Related 

Incident? 

 Date:     

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Statistical Info 

 

Current Status: U Undetected Crime Last Changed:  

Cleared-Up Reason:  Date:  

 

Original Classification 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Outcome Changed Change Reason Last Changed Last Changed By 

Main S105/01 Y  U 18 Invest. complete: 

no susp id 

29/07/2019 

20:35:00 

 29/07/2019 

20:35:00 

PC      506TP /217099  

ML ALLFREE 

 

 Confirmed Date: 29/07/2019 20:34 

 Confirmed By: PC      506TP /217099  ML ALLFREE 

 

Statistical Parent CR:  

 

 

Administrative Detections 

 

Home Office Rule:  

 Date:  

 By:  

Explanatory Notes:  

 

page 246



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 16 of 33 CRIS Live 

All Current Home Office 

Requirements Satisfied:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Of Interest To 
 

Method Index:  

CP Analysis:  

 

 

Victim Amendments 

 

Date Added Time VIW No By 

 

 

Date Removed Time VIW No By 

 

History 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Reason When By 

Main S105/01 Y 1 U 00 - Outcome 

Pending 

 29/07/2019 20:34:00 PC      506TP /217099  ML 

ALLFREE 

 

page 247



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Messages 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 17 of 33 CRIS Live 

Addressee Date Sent Text Cancel Date 

 

 

Gen Reg No Description 

 

 

Important/Interest Crime?  Date:    

page 248



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 18 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

28/07/2019 08:18 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

This report was created using the CRIS app. 

 

IMMEDIATE AND FAST TRACK ACTIONS 

 

CAD: 001520/28JUL19 

Offence: 105/01 Common Assault 

Committed on 28 Jul 2019 03:30 

Reported: 28 Jul 2019 03:37 

Venue of offence: Outside Ma Dame, 58,  Porchester Road, LONDON, W2 6ET 

Borough where offence took place: CW 

 

Officers attending 

Officer Name: PC 2192AW PISTARELLI 

 

Offence Summary and Officer's Initial Actions: 

This appears to be an offence of Common assault and Criminal damage. The victim was woken up by 

loud noise in the street. This is a weekly recurrance, due to a nearby club that allows people to spill on 

the street until they disperse. The victim has reported this to the council and has been advised to film 

the incidents in order to obtain evidence. 

He walked in to the street tonight and started filming the crowd. This is when he was approached by an 

unknown female who tried to stop him from filming and tried to grab his phone. the victim grabbed his 

phone back and this is when he was atacked by a group of people; he states being punched and kicked 

and having lost his glasses in the scuffle. He did not provide any description for suspects and he said he 

would be unable to identify any of them. 

the glasses were later found by the side of the road where the incident happened; they were broken and 

missing both lenses. 

 

CID contacted: No 

Supervisor/duty officer contacted: No 

Specialist team contacted: No 

 

 

VICTIM/S 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

page 249



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 19 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

28/07/2019 08:18 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

number: Yes 

Was victim given Victim Care Card: No 

Victim's account of the incident: The victim was woken up by the noise outside. The noise was caused 

by a large group of people leaving the club and spilling into the streets, being loud and rowdy.  He 

explained this is a weekly occurrance and that he has already reported this to the council. 

Other Information: LAS refused. Vicitm did not have any visible injury despite stating having been 

punched in the face. 

 

 

 

PHYSICAL AND FORENSIC EVIDENCE 

 

CCTV available: No 

Content of CCTV: No CCTV in the area. 

Cross contamination.  

Details: There was a large crowd of people (40 to 50 peoaple) and the vicitm was not able to point out 

any suspect or provide any description. 

Forensic opportunities: No forensic opportunities. 

 

 

LOCAL ENQUIRIES AND INITIAL SEARCH 

 

Local enquiries/House to House?: No 

 

 

ADDITIONAL LINES OF ENQUIRY 

 

No other additional lines of enquiries. No independent witnesses. No CCTV. The bouncers at the venue 

did not see the incident happen as they were ushering the crowd. 

 

 

HAVES RISK FRAMEWORK 

 

History 

No named suspect 

 

Aggravating Factors 

No aggravating factor identified at this time 

 

Vulnerability 

No vulnerable person identified at this time. 

 

Escalation 

No risk of escalation at this time. 

 

Steps taken to Address Risk 

N/A 

 

 

SOLVABILITY ASSESSMENT 

 

page 250



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 20 of 33 CRIS Live 

The investigation is complete.  

The reason is:  there is no CCTV covering the offence. The victim was not able to provide any 

description for any of the suspect and there is not independent witness to the incident. 

Home Office Outcome Code: 18 Invest. complete: 

page 251



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 21 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

28/07/2019 08:18 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

no susp id 

The victim/s was informed of this decision. 

 

 

 

 

 

29/07/2019 20:34 

 

PC       217099  506TP  ML ALLFREE 

 

Screened Out 

 

 

 

 

 

29/07/2019 20:34 

 

PC       217099  506TP  ML ALLFREE 

 

Classification confirmed 

 

 

 

 

 

29/07/2019 20:34 

 

PC       217099  506TP  ML ALLFREE 

 

TP CMS 

 

screened out 

 

outcome 18 

 

 

 

 

 

24/08/2019 19:59 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

****** 

Since the date the incident has been reported, the victim has emailed me stating the following: 

 

 

 

thanks for the Crime Reference Number.  

page 252



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 22 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

You asked me yesterday if I could describe the assailant. In looking through my phone again the girl 

who grabbed my phone and knocked my glasses off my head is in the video. see link. 

 

 

Whoever attacked me was from behind immediately after she attacked me. Perhaps the doormen who 

came to my aid might be able to identify them. A neighbour who witnessed the events of last night said 

that some of the cars were known to be used by drug dealers. Maybe that is why I was targeted? 

 

The club licensee is  should you wish to contact her. The club has 

its own CCTV. She is well aware of the issues but having only 3 doormen to supervise 50+ partygoers 

who do not want to disperse quietly who are clearly very 'high' is nothing like sufficient. 

 

Let me know if you need anything else. 

 

Thanks 

 

 

I have made contact with the victim following this email and he has explained to me that he now 

wishes to support police action since there is a potential lead. 

I have emailed the manager at the venue asking for further details of any CCTV and or ID details of the 

suspect. 

I am yet to see the video recorded by the victim as the link above did not work. 

I have explained to the victim that: 

-should the venue not have any details for the 

page 253



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 23 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

24/08/2019 19:59 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

female, the only way of proceeding for any potential ID is to circulate her picture. 

-I will be on a LT for the next two shift and if not too busy i will try and meet him to see/collect the 

video and obtain a statement 

-Failing that, i will be on A/L until the 11th September and if i cannot meet him in the next couple of 

days, he may have to wait until i return on duty for me to progress this 

 

He understood and is happy with the above. CRIS to be reopened. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

24/08/2019 20:00 

 

APS      241831  1939AW T  HARRINGTON 

 

CR Re-Opened, previously marked as Complete by PC      506TP /217099  ML ALLFREE  29/07/2019 

20:35:00 

CR Re-Opened, previously marked as Ready for Completion by PC      506TP /217099  ML ALLFREE  

29/07/2019 20:35:00 

 

 

 

 

 

14/09/2019 19:26 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

***** 

I have received an email from the manager's club, stating the below: 

 

"Dear Sara  

 

Apologies for the late response, I was on annual leave.  

 

Unfortunately I do not have CCTV that covers the zebra crossing, my CCTV only covers the entrance 

and inside the venue.  

 

It was a promoters event his name is  I do not have the details of his guests and won’t be 

able to identify the person who assaulted the neighbour as I don’t know any of them.  

 

I have asked if he could give me the details of the guest he told me that he didn’t see anything.  

 

I was absolutely devastated when I saw the first person pushing him thank God my securities went 

straight across the street to defend him. Despicable behaviour really unacceptable.  

 

I will never work with this promoter again. 

 

page 254



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 24 of 33 CRIS Live 

I am currently speaking with the council I’ve had a meeting at my venue last night they wanted to see 

how we operate at the end of the night and 

page 255



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 25 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

14/09/2019 19:26 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

were satisfied with what the saw. I have never had any serious issues at my venue before that incident I 

have been open for 4 years and I really hope this will be the first and last one.  

 

Do not hesitate to contact me if you have any further questions. " 

 

I have replied asking if she can provide me with the promoter's details so that i can speak directly to 

him. 

I have also sent an email back to the victim providing him with the list of my working hours for the 

next week so that we can arrange a meeting and i can see and seize the video he has and take a 

statement from him. 

I am awaiting reply. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17/09/2019 22:15 

 

APS      240275  1359AW E  TEE 

 

Supervision 

 

This matter is being diligently progressed. It appears that we may be able to identify the suspects 

through contacting this promoter. 

 

 

 

 

 

20/09/2019 10:12 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

***** 

I have received a second email from the club's manager, stating the below: 

 

"Dear Sara  

 

Thank you for your email.  

 

I have forwarded your email to  

I have had a meeting with the council and we’ve discussed many points on how to improve regarding 

working with promoters in the future.  

They have been very helpful and understood that I really do care about my neighbours and their safety 

and the safety of my team and guests.  

Unfortunately I haven’t had any direct contact with the neighbour who was assaulted I tried on the 

night to go speak to him ask him if he was alright and apologies but the police office who I speaking 

with strongly advise me not to approach him as he was extremely upset which is understandable.  

I have met some neighbours and explain them all the different effort that are made 

page 256



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 26 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

20/09/2019 10:12 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

and have been made for the past few years. I also invited some of them to the venue for a general 

meeting but no one accepted the invitation.  

Could you please tell him that I’m deeply sorry about what has happened to him I really hope you can 

catch the coward who did this to him unfortunately my security couldn’t hold him until the police 

arrived but I was proud of them for controlling the situation within seconds.  

This is the first time we’ve even had a incident in four years we’ve never had serious issues since 

we’ve opened.  

You can reassure him and tell him that we will never work with  again.  

If I can be in any assistance when you’re meeting the neighbour I’ll be more then happy to help.  

 

Best Regards. " 

 

I have tried calling the promoter but the number provided above was a NRRR at this time. 

I will be meeting the victim today at 1200 hrs to obtain a statement from him and to view the footage 

he has filmed at the time of the incident. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22/09/2019 15:39 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

*** 

I have now obtained a statement from the victim and I have seen and seized the footage. 

The footage shows a  walking towards the victim and after shouting "Don't put 

me in your video", she lunges towards him and grabs the phone with her LEFT hand. The video then 

stops. She is believed to be the suspect of the criminal damage to the glasses as these dropped to the 

floor when she grabbed the phone. 

The suspect/s for the common assault are not the same as the suspect for the criminal damage and they 

cannot be identified at this time. 

 

I have called the promoter and he has told me that there was no guest list for that 

page 257



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 27 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

22/09/2019 15:39 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

night's event. 

I have asked the manager at Ma Dame to confirm whether they have any ID scanned from the night's 

event. I am awaiting reply. 

 

If there is no ID to help identify the suspect female, then I will circulate the picture of the suspect to 

VIIDO tomorrow. 

 

 

 

 

 

23/09/2019 16:32 

 

PC       219053  3708CW AD RIDLEY 

 

**VIIDO Entry – Moving footage** 

 

The suspect image(s) and moving footage has been submitted via the Forensic Image Management 

System (FIMS) database for Met wide circulation. 

 

FIMS Image URN: 033502 

 

The ES code on CRIS has been added to record circulation. 

 

This crime has been graded as a Tier 3 on the FIMS database. 

 

Please note: 

 

Retention of images on FIMS 

 

If after a period of time the circulated image has not been identified the Image will be automatically 

removed from the Image Gallery.  

 

 

 

 

 

It is the responsibility of the OIC to contact their local VIIDO if they require the ‘still’ image(s) to be 

further circulated beyond the above time frames 

 

Should the suspect(s) be identified by any other means the OIC MUST update FIMS at the earliest 

opportunity in order for the image(s) to be removed from circulation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

23/09/2019 17:26 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

page 258



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 28 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

**** 

 

The suspect's image has now been circulated and I have booked the footage in at Charing Cross Police 

Station: 

 

 

This report can now be closed as per outcome 18. 

 

Outcome 18 - Investigation complete – no suspect identified. Crime investigated as far as reasonably 

possible – case closed pending further investigative opportunities becoming available. 

 

I 

page 259



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 29 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

23/09/2019 17:26 

 

PC       243963  2192AW S  PISTARELLI 

 

have notified the victim of this outcome. 

 

 

 

 

 

06/10/2019 00:58 

 

APS      240275  1359AW E  TEE 

 

Supervision 

 

I have reviewed this report for the purposes of ongoing supervision. 

An image has been obtained and has now been circulated for the purposes of making an identification. 

Outcome 18 applies. 

page 260



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 30 of 33 CRIS Live 

Memos 

 

Sent To 

Noted By 

Completed By                             Date 

Entered By                         Urgent?         Noted          Completed     Cancelled        Entered 

 

Sent:    PC 243963 2192AW PISTAREL... S  

Noted:    PC 243963 2192AW PISTAREL... S  

Completed: PC 243963 2192AW PISTAREL... S  

Entered:  PC 219053 3708CW RIDLEY AD 

         23/09/2019 23/09/2019                       23/09/2019 

Please see Dets entry Re circulation. 

 

 

Create Action/Decision/Review Screens ?   

Action/Decision/Review Screens Created By:  

 

Create CAIT Screens?     

CAIT Screens Created By:     

 

Case Mgt Administration 

 

Is SIO Same As OIC Supervisor?    

Current Senior Investigating Officer (SIO):  

Allocated:      

 

Noted?       

Noted Date/Time:     

 

Previous SIOs: 

 

Officer Allocated Noted 

   

 

page 261



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 31 of 33 CRIS Live 

Review Period:    days     Next Review Due:    

 

 

Summary: 

Actions:  Total:     Ready for Completion:   Completed:     

Decisions: Total:     With Rationale:    Seen By SIO:     

Review:  Total:    

 

page 262



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 32 of 33 CRIS Live 

Initial Entry 

 

Initial I.O.: 

Rank: PC  

Surname: PISTARELLI Initials: S  

Wt/Pay No: 243963 Div/D No: 2192AW 

 

Crime Recorded by: 243963  PISTARELLI PC       2192AW S 

Date/Time: 28/07/2019 04:17 

Recording Unit: AWERAWN 

 

 

Supervision 

 

Initial entry checked? Y 

Initial entry checked by: PC       ALLFREE 506TP  217099 

Date/Time: 29/07/2019 20:34 

 

Ongoing Supervision 

Date Supervision By 

06/10/2019 00:58 APS     1359AW/240275  E  TEE 

17/09/2019 22:15   APS     1359AW/240275  E  TEE 

 

Investigation complete? Y 

Investigation complete by: APS     1359AW/240275  E  TEE 

Date/Time: 06/10/2019 00:58 

 

Crime Report closed? Y 

Crime Report closed by: PC      974TP /205757  CG MICHAUD-RODRIGUEZ GARCIA 

Date/Time: 25/11/2019 12:26 

 

 

Screening 

 

Screening Decision: OUT Crime screened "out". No further investigation. 

Reason:  

Text:  

MA CMS T3 

 

Screening History 

Decision Reason Text 

 

 

Completion 

 

Date/Time CR  

Last Updated: 25/11/2019 12:26 

 

CR Completed? Y 

Date/Time: 25/11/2019 12:26 

By (Wt.No): 205757 

 

page 263



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6551025/19 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:40 Page 33 of 33 CRIS Live 

 

Bring Forward: 

 

Date                                     Date Entered                  For 

Reason 

Date Cancelled                   Cancelled By 
 

 

 

page 264



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

General Information 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 1 of 25 CRIS Live 

Screening Decision: OUT 

Main 

IU: CW WESTMINSTER 

Crime Type: B H/O Crime Type: 5 

Allegation (Prefix): 

Allegation: 

Committed on/from Date: SUN 30/09/2018 21:00 

Committed to Date: MON 01/10/2018 03:00 

Reported Date: FRI 19/10/2018 17:16 

How Notified: NI Internet Reporting 

Restricted?      By: Date: 

Restriction Reason: 

Flags 

CW 

Borough Branch 

Service Area (Historical) 

TI T/phone Invest. No scene visit 

PI Pathfinder OnlineInvestigation 

OIC 

Is OIC Same As Reporting Officer ? Y 

Investigating Officer's Rank: PC 

Surname: DONNELLY Initials: MA 

Warrant Number: 201155 Div/D Number: 944TP Usual Relief: C 

Duty: BB TP Central Unit 

Station/Branch: TPTIU-C TP Central TIU Team C 

Allocated Date/Time: 20/10/2018 12:40 

Allocation Noted?   Y Noted Date/Time: 20/10/2018 12:40 

BWV Noted?   BWV Noted Date/Time: 

Previous OIC Details 

Usual Duty Station Allocated Date/Time Noted Date/Time BWV Noted 

Relief Branch Date/Time 

OIC Supervisor: PS57TP/194594 RG TWEEN 

Press 

Suitable for Press? Y 

Restrictions: 

Is this a Specrim? N 

Date/Time: 

Was a Firearm Used? N 

Was other Weapon Used? N 

Are there Terrorist Implications? N 

Was a Suspect present on Police arrival? N 

No. of Suspects Present: 

Was the Suspect(s) arrested? N 

No. of Suspects Arrested: 

CR6553171-18

page 265



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 2 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

Source System References 

 

Source System 

Name 

Source System 

Reference 

Entered Date/Time Entered By 

CHS 201810190325220 20/10/2018 12:38 PC      944TP /201155  MA DONNELLY 

 

Totals 

 

Total Values: 

 

Stolen £: 0.00 Outstanding £:   0.00 Damaged £:    

Recovered £:    Damaged On Recovery £:    

 

Total: 

 

VIW(s): 1 Property 1 Vehicles(s): 0 

Accused: 0 Suspect(s): 0 CAIT Subject(s): 0 

 

Drugs/Fraud 

 

Is this CR for an arrest for possession etc. (not theft) of controlled drugs?  

If Fraudulent Use-Item Used: N 

 

 

DV/Hate Crime 

Is this a Hate Crime/Domestic Incident/Carer Abuse?  N 

 

Domestic Incident?   Forced Marriage?   

Honour Based Violence?   Hate Crime?  

Carer Abuse?  

 

 

Initial Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

Initial Risk Assessment Management Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Current Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

 

Form 124D Completed?   

Completed by:      

 

page 266



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 3 of 25 CRIS Live 

Form124D Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Received by the CSU?        CSU Reference    

Completed by:  

 

 

LGBT Relationship?     

 

Category of Hate Crime 
 

Race?  

Faith/Religion/Belief?  Religion Name:  

Homophobia?  

Transphobia?  

Disability?  

Targeted because of Vulnerability?  

 

  

Digital Evidence 

 

Is there Body Worn Video content in this case? N 

 

Audio/Visual Content 

 

# AV Type WtNo Exhibit No Evidential Master Link/66 Content shows 

        

 

page 267



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Venue 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 4 of 25 CRIS Live 

Location 

 

OMPD?  

Address: 

Ma Dame,58,PORCHESTER ROAD, 

LONDON,W2 6ET 

Location Text: 

 

GLU: CW Local Id: CW02 Grid Ref: 525823,181339 

Watch Area:  

 

 

Main 
 

Location Type(s): JE Licensed Club     

 

Is the Venue covered by CCTV or in a CCTV Area? U 

CCTV Options:      

 

Approach:    

Entry Method:  

Entry Point:  

Exit Point:  

Security:  

Person On Premises?  

Other Info:  

 

 

Internal Transfer 

 

Date/Time Transferred By Previous GLU Previous IU 

    

 

 

Transfer From MPS 
 

Transfer from Met To:- 

Service:   

Station:  

Their Reference:  

 

Received By:- 

Rank:  

Number:  

Surname:  

page 268



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 5 of 25 CRIS Live 

VIW No:  1 Of: 1 Total - Victims: 1 

Role(s): V       Total Witness: 0  CAIT Subject No:   

 

Personal Details 

 

    

   

  

    

     

   

      

Occupation:    Occupation relevant to offence:   N 

School or College:  

 

GLU:  Local ID:    GridRef:    

National of 1:   

Passport No 1:  

National of 2:   

Passport No 2:   

Religion:  

 

Address Details 

 

VIW’s Address is same as VEN?  

Address: 

WITHHELD 

GLU: WITHHELD Local ID:  WITHHELD  GridRef:  WITHHELD  

Home Intelligence Unit: WITHHELD 

 

PCM: E CNAA Reason:   

 

Contact Details: 

Home:  WITHHELD   Business:  WITHHELD  

Mobile:  WITHHELD Other:  WITHHELD  

Email:  WITHHELD 

page 269



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 6 of 25 CRIS Live 

Injury Details 

 

Injury Degree:  HD No Injury  

Injury Description:  

Description/Dress: 

 

Vulnerable/intimidated Victim/Witness? WITHHELD 

Reason for Vulnerability/Intimidation: WITHHELD 

 

Victim Interviews 

 

Interview Type Date of Interview Start Time Location Other Persons Present Interviewing Officer eStatement Ref No 

       

 

Actions 

 

MG11 Taken?  Witness Albums Visited? N 

Victim of Reported Crime to Police 

in last 12 months? N No 

Is V willing for VSS to be informed? N No 

V Code of Practice Applicable? Y 

 201155  PC       DONNELLY MA        20/10/2018 

 

Changed To Entered By Date 

   

 

 

VCOP Actn Compl? Y 

 223142  PC       DOSA N        20/10/2018 

Fraud Cl'rup  Date:    

NFRC    

 

Knows Suspect No. How Known 

  

 

 

Aware of Suspect No. How Victim or Witness aware of Arrest 

  

 

page 270



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 7 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

Knows Accused No. How Known 

  

 

Needs 
 

Does anyone perceive VIW to be Deaf and/or Disabled? N 

If Yes, who? VIW/Other:        

 

Details of Disability: 

 

 

Physical Access Needs:   

 

Personal Care Needs:   

 

 

Medical Needs:    

 

Communication Needs:   

 

 

Sexual Orientation:   

Gender Identity:   

 

Officer’s Notes: 

 

 

page 271



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Victims Code of Practice 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 8 of 25 CRIS Live 

VIW No: 1       Of: 1 

 

 

VSS Info: 

  

Local VSS Ref:  

Language (If not English):  

Victim Contacted by I.O?  

Date/Time:  

 

 

Action Taken Action Date Entered by     Generated Date Generated 

EB VSS Not Appropriate 20/10/2018 223142 PC DOSA N                            

BZ SO - Completed Inv. 20/10/2018 223142 PC DOSA N                         Y  20/10/2018 20:46  

     

 

 

Remarks: 

 

page 272



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

 Property Details 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 9 of 25 CRIS Live 

Item No:   1         Of:   1 VIW No: 1 

Property Type: NB Driving Licence Status: SA Stolen/Taken  

Stolen £: 0.00 Damaged £:  Handled £:   

 

 

 

Make:  Model:   

ID Number/  ID Number/ 

Indiv/from:  Indiv/to:  

IMEI No:  

Property Mark:   

Inscription:  

Description including damage: 

 

Victim considers property item to be Art or Antique?   

Of NIB Interest?     

 

 

 

page 273



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 10 of 25 CRIS Live 

IDO 

 

IDO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

IDO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

CPO 

 

CPO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

CPO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

Photographer 

 

Photographer Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

Photographer Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

page 274



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 11 of 25 CRIS Live 

      

 

 

 

Other 

 

Other Request: 

 

Request Id Type Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

        

 

 

Other Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

Access Info 
 

page 275



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Features 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 12 of 25 CRIS Live 

Features/instruments 

 

 

 

Text: 

  

 

IDO Text:  

Prop Ref Nos 

 

 

 

Forensic Data 

 

Lab Reference No:  

 

FORENSIC REFERENCES 

Type No 

 

 

Officers Notes: 

 

  

page 276



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Linked Crimes 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 13 of 25 CRIS Live 

Chain ID Removed Police Contact    

 from 

 Chain? 
 

 

 

page 277



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 14 of 25 CRIS Live 

Method 

 

Current Position: C Classified 

Method: effected by suspect unknown taking victim's driving licence whilst she was in a 

nightclub 

 

Classification Set by CIT: 

Lock:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Classify 

 

Main Classification: 

 Code Victim Date 

Initial: S049/10 Y 20/10/2018 12:38 

Current: S049/10 Y 20/10/2018 12:47 

Description: SUBSTANT./Other Theft Offences under the Theft Act 1968,Sec.1, Not Classified 

Elsewhere 

 

Subsidiary Classifications: 

 Code Victim Count 

    

 

Confirm?    Y Date: 20/10/2018 20:45 

 By: PC      576TP /223142  N  DOSA 

Victim Count Discrepancy:  

 

page 278



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 15 of 25 CRIS Live 

No Crime 

   

No Crime?  Date:     

Reason:  

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Crime Related 

Incident? 

 Date:     

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Statistical Info 

 

Current Status: U Undetected Crime Last Changed:  

Cleared-Up Reason:  Date:  

 

Original Classification 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Outcome Changed Change Reason Last Changed Last Changed By 

Main S049/10 Y  U 18 Invest. complete: 

no susp id 

20/10/2018 

20:45:00 

 20/10/2018 

20:45:00 

PC      576TP /223142  N  

DOSA 

 

 Confirmed Date: 20/10/2018 20:45 

 Confirmed By: PC      576TP /223142  N  DOSA 

 

Statistical Parent CR:  

 

 

Administrative Detections 

 

Home Office Rule:  

 Date:  

 By:  

Explanatory Notes:  

 

page 279



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 16 of 25 CRIS Live 

All Current Home Office 

Requirements Satisfied:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Of Interest To 
 

Method Index:  

CP Analysis:  

 

 

Victim Amendments 

 

Date Added Time VIW No By 

 

 

Date Removed Time VIW No By 

 

History 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Reason When By 

Main S049/10 Y 1 U 00 - Outcome 

Pending 

 20/10/2018 20:45:00 PC      576TP /223142  N  DOSA 

 

page 280



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Messages 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 17 of 25 CRIS Live 

Addressee Date Sent Text Cancel Date 

 

 

Gen Reg No Description 

 

 

Important/Interest Crime?  Date:    

page 281



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 18 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

20/10/2018 12:40 

 

PC       201155  944TP  MA DONNELLY 

 

Service Flag TI added 

 

 

 

 

 

20/10/2018 12:40 

 

PC       201155  944TP  MA DONNELLY 

 

Service Flag PI added 

 

 

 

 

 

20/10/2018 12:48 

 

PC       201155  944TP  MA DONNELLY 

 

On-line submission SP-75782-18-0101-00 and CHS 20181019032522 refers and has been investigated 

by TDIU. 

 

Duplicate checks conducted, no matches found. 

 

 “This report has been created in line with the Telephone and Digital Investigation Units (TDIU) 

policy. The Primary Investigation has been completed directly from an online report (HOLON) as it is 

our policy that informants are not routinely called back.” 

 

The on-line report created by the victim states….. “Attended an event with a friend, . I 

visited my friend at her apartment where she was residing at the time at  

 I arrived shortly on or around 20.00. We were accompanied by her friend, Omari, 

whom I met for the first time that evening. Not too long after, all three of us made our way to the event 

at Ma Dame nightclub. I do not recall if the club scanned our licence as ID upon entry. The evening 

was rather tame and I held my clutch all evening. There may have been one spillage when a few 

lipsticks fell out but I quickly gathered those. I am particular with my personal belongings and clutched 

my purse for the majority of the evening. I was rather surprised when I arrived home and my ID was no 

longer on my person. Since the 1st October, I have taken the steps to speak with the club. I left my 

details with them and they have since called me back to notify me that they have not located/seen my 

driver’s licence. I have also spoken with the girls with whom I attended the event. They have both 

denied seeing the licence. The only thing that I observed to be missing 

page 282



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 19 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

20/10/2018 12:48 

 

PC       201155  944TP  MA DONNELLY 

 

that evening was my driver’s licence which is concerning to me. Typically if things are mislaid, it 

would be a ‘lipstick and gum’ or ‘cash and an eyeliner’ signifying that the purse had perhaps slipped 

open during the night. This is not the case here. I am not comfortable that my licence is missing and 

believe it may have been deliberately removed from my person. I consider myself to be an upstanding 

citizen which may make my Identification somewhat desirable to others. I recall that a few months ago 

during the summer, my friend had asked to borrow my driver’s licence, on a separate night when she 

did not have hers. Of course I vehemently denied this request! I explained to her my concerns as well 

as my understanding of the law and why we cannot share ID (and we nearly fell out over this as she did 

not appear to appreciate these concerns). Although time has elapsed since that incident, it makes me 

uncomfortable that my licence has now since gone missing in her company. I have exhausted all 

options I can think of I.e contacting the club, speaking with the girls. I have 

allowed two weeks for my licence to be returned to me. Since I have not received it, I am filing this 

report and I shall now contact DVLA to request a replacement.” 

 

The victim believes that the venue has CCTV cameras. The time frame however is 6 hours.  

 

Crime ref provided.  

 

No further details known at this time.  

 

 

 

RISK ASSESSMENT 

 

History -  

There are no known relevant historical links between the victim or venue or suspect or any other 

matters. 

 

Aggravating factors -  

There are no known aggravating factors. 

 

Vulnerability 

page 283



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 20 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

20/10/2018 12:48 

 

PC       201155  944TP  MA DONNELLY 

 

-  

There are no known vulnerability factors.  

 

Escalation -  

There are no escalation factors. 

 

 

 

SOLVABILITY  

 

Crime Assessment Policy Principles 

***************************************** 

1. Victim willing to support a police prosecution: NK 

2. Suspect identified by the victim/witness: NO 

3. Value of loss/damage below £50: YES 

4. CCTV available with clear evidential images/ready for collection: NK  

5. Forensics evidence to identify a suspect: NO 

 

 

 

*Public safety/Interest or Victim identified as vulnerable – NO 

 

 

Assessment recommendation  

********************************** 

 

SCREENED OUT - I have assessed this investigation according to the above Crime Assessment Policy 

Principles and consider the report should be closed.  

 

Investigation complete, no suspect has been identified.  

 

This crime has been investigated as far as reasonably possible - case closed until further investigative 

opportunities become available.  

 

Recommend Outcome 18. 

 

 

 

 

 

20/10/2018 20:45 

 

PC       223142  576TP  N  DOSA 

 

Screened Out 

 

 

 

 

 

20/10/2018 20:45 

page 284



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 21 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

PC       223142  576TP  N  DOSA 

 

Classification confirmed 

page 285



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 22 of 25 CRIS Live 

Memos 

 

Sent To 

Noted By 

Completed By                             Date 

Entered By                         Urgent?         Noted          Completed     Cancelled        Entered 

 

 

 

 

Create Action/Decision/Review Screens ?   

Action/Decision/Review Screens Created By:  

 

Create CAIT Screens?     

CAIT Screens Created By:     

 

Case Mgt Administration 

 

Is SIO Same As OIC Supervisor?    

Current Senior Investigating Officer (SIO):  

Allocated:      

 

Noted?       

Noted Date/Time:     

 

Previous SIOs: 

 

Officer Allocated Noted 

   

 

Review Period:    days     Next Review Due:    

 

 

page 286



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 23 of 25 CRIS Live 

Summary: 

Actions:  Total:     Ready for Completion:   Completed:     

Decisions: Total:     With Rationale:    Seen By SIO:     

Review:  Total:    

 

page 287



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 24 of 25 CRIS Live 

Initial Entry 

 

Initial I.O.: 

Rank: PC  

Surname: DONNELLY Initials: MA  

Wt/Pay No: 201155 Div/D No: 944TP 

 

Crime Recorded by: 201155  DONNELLY PC       944TP  MA 

Date/Time: 20/10/2018 12:38 

Recording Unit: TPTIU-C 

 

 

Supervision 

 

Initial entry checked? Y 

Initial entry checked by: PC       DOSA 576TP  223142 

Date/Time: 20/10/2018 20:44 

 

Ongoing Supervision 

Date Supervision By 

  

 

 

Investigation complete? Y 

Investigation complete by: PC      576TP /223142  N  DOSA 

Date/Time: 20/10/2018 20:46 

 

Crime Report closed? Y 

Crime Report closed by: PC      576TP /223142  N  DOSA 

Date/Time: 20/10/2018 20:46 

 

 

Screening 

 

Screening Decision: OUT Crime screened "out". No further investigation. 

Reason:  

Text:  

cms nd t2b 

 

Screening History 

Decision Reason Text 

 

 

Completion 

 

Date/Time CR  

Last Updated: 20/10/2018 20:47 

 

CR Completed? Y 

Date/Time: 20/10/2018 20:46 

By (Wt.No): 223142 

 

page 288



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553171/18 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-5 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Other theft GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:37 Page 25 of 25 CRIS Live 

 

Bring Forward: 

 

Date                                     Date Entered                  For 

Reason 

Date Cancelled                   Cancelled By 
 

 

 

page 289



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 1 of 29 CRIS Live 

Screening Decision: IN 

Main 

IU: TPHQ TPHQ - Headquarters 

Crime Type: B H/O Crime Type: 1 

Allegation (Prefix): 

Allegation: 

Committed on/from Date: SUN 12/12/2021 01:45 

Committed to Date: SUN 12/12/2021 01:50 

Reported Date: SUN 12/12/2021 01:58 

How Notified: NP Phone Call to Police 

Restricted?      By: Date: 

Restriction Reason: 

Flags 

CW 

Borough Branch 

Service Area (Historical) 

CJ Pass to TDIU (MetCC USE ONLY) 

TI T/phone Invest. No scene visit 

TC T/Phone V.contact skel updated 

CH Created by CHS User 

OIC 

Is OIC Same As Reporting Officer ? 

Investigating Officer's Rank: PC 

Surname: EARL Initials: Z 

Warrant Number: 253407 Div/D Number: Usual Relief: 

Duty: AA Borough Uniform 

Station/Branch: AWHQ 

Allocated Date/Time: 15/12/2021 20:54 

Allocation Noted?   Y Noted Date/Time:   16/12/2021 14:57 

BWV Noted?   BWV Noted Date/Time: 

Previous OIC Details 

Usual Duty Station Allocated Date/Time Noted Date/Time BWV Noted 

Relief Branch Date/Time 

ADMIN   AW00001   XX   AW ERPT 

AA Borough Uniform FH 14/12/2021 17:50 

PC   205483   C   DANTER   4557AW 

B AA Borough Uniform AWHQ 14/12/2021 16:49 14/12/2021 16:49 

PC   METCHS1   CH   CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

OA Other duty(Uniform) TPHQ 12/12/2021 01:58 

OIC Supervisor: PS235AW/228513 J MORRIS 

CR6553257-21

page 290



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 2 of 29 CRIS Live 

Press 

 

Suitable for Press? Y 

Restrictions:  

Is this a Specrim? N 

Date/Time:  

Was a Firearm Used? N 

Was other Weapon Used? N 

Are there Terrorist Implications? N 

Was a Suspect present on Police arrival? N 

No. of Suspects Present:  

Was the Suspect(s) arrested? N 

No. of Suspects Arrested:  

 

Source System References 

 

Source System 

Name 

Source System 

Reference 

Entered Date/Time Entered By 

CHS 202112120025854 12/12/2021 01:58 PC            /METCHS1 CH CHS GENERIC 

ACCOUNT 

 

Totals 

 

Total Values: 

 

Stolen £:  Outstanding £:    Damaged £:    

Recovered £:    Damaged On Recovery £:    

 

Total: 

 

VIW(s): 1 Property 0 Vehicles(s): 0 

Accused: 0 Suspect(s): 0 CAIT Subject(s): 0 

 

Drugs/Fraud 

 

Is this CR for an arrest for possession etc. (not theft) of controlled drugs?  

If Fraudulent Use-Item Used: N 

 

 

DV/Hate Crime 

Is this a Hate Crime/Domestic Incident/Carer Abuse?  N 

 

Domestic Incident?   Forced Marriage?   

Honour Based Violence?   Hate Crime?  

Carer Abuse?  

 

 

Initial Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

Initial Risk Assessment Management Supervised?   

Completed by:  

page 291



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 3 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

Current Risk Assessment (SPECSS+):   

Completed by:  

 

 

Form 124D Completed?   

Completed by:      

 

Form124D Supervised?   

Completed by:  

 

Received by the CSU?        CSU Reference    

Completed by:  

 

 

LGBT Relationship?     

 

Category of Hate Crime 
 

Race?  

Faith/Religion/Belief?  Religion Name:  

Homophobia?  

Transphobia?  

Disability?  

Targeted because of Vulnerability?  

 

  

page 292



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

General Information 

 

 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 4 of 29 CRIS Live 

Digital Evidence 

 

Is there Body Worn Video content in this case? N 

 

Audio/Visual Content 

 

# AV Type WtNo Exhibit No Evidential Master Link/66 Content shows 

        

 

page 293



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Venue 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 5 of 29 CRIS Live 

Location 

 

OMPD?  

Address: 

O/S,MA DAME,58,PORCHESTER ROAD, 

LONDON,CITY OF WESTMINSTER,W2 6ET 

Location Text: 

 

GLU: CW Local Id: CW02 Grid Ref: 525764,181485 

Watch Area:  

 

 

Main 
 

Location Type(s): AZ Not Known     

 

Is the Venue covered by CCTV or in a CCTV Area? U 

CCTV Options:      

 

Approach:    

Entry Method:  

Entry Point:  

Exit Point:  

Security:  

Person On Premises?  

Other Info:  

 

 

Internal Transfer 

 

Date/Time Transferred By Previous GLU Previous IU 

    

 

 

Transfer From MPS 
 

Transfer from Met To:- 

Service:   

Station:  

Their Reference:  

 

Received By:- 

Rank:  

Number:  

Surname:  

page 294



page 295



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 7 of 29 CRIS Live 

Injury Details 

 

Injury Degree:  HD No Injury  

Injury Description: No Injury and Vulnerability No entered by CHS. Confirm entries 

Description/Dress: 

 

Vulnerable/intimidated Victim/Witness? WITHHELD 

Reason for Vulnerability/Intimidation: WITHHELD 

 

Victim Interviews 

 

Interview Type Date of Interview Start Time Location Other Persons Present Interviewing Officer eStatement Ref No 

       

 

Actions 

 

MG11 Taken?  Witness Albums Visited? N 

Victim of Reported Crime to Police 

in last 12 months? N No 

Is V willing for VSS to be informed? N No 

V Code of Practice Applicable? Y 

 METCHS1 PC       CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT CH        12/12/2021 

 

Changed To Entered By Date 

   

 

 

VCOP Actn Compl? Y 

 205483  PC       DANTER C        14/12/2021 

Fraud Cl'rup  Date:    

NFRC    

 

Knows Suspect No. How Known 

  

 

 

Aware of Suspect No. How Victim or Witness aware of Arrest 

  

 

page 296



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

 Victim/Informant/Witness 

Details 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 8 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

Knows Accused No. How Known 

  

 

Needs 
 

Does anyone perceive VIW to be Deaf and/or Disabled? N 

If Yes, who? VIW/Other:        

 

Details of Disability: 

 

 

Physical Access Needs:   

 

Personal Care Needs:   

 

 

Medical Needs:    

 

Communication Needs:   

 

 

Sexual Orientation:   

Gender Identity:   

 

Officer’s Notes: 

 

 

page 297



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Victims Code of Practice 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 9 of 29 CRIS Live 

VIW No: 1       Of: 1 

 

 

VSS Info: 

  

Local VSS Ref:  

Language (If not English):  

Victim Contacted by I.O?  

Date/Time:  

 

 

Action Taken Action Date Entered by     Generated Date Generated 

EB VSS Not Appropriate 14/12/2021 205483 PC DANTER C                            

AZ SI - Continuing Inv. 14/12/2021 205483 PC DANTER C                         Y  14/12/2021 17:50 

HK VU-Case Closed Undet 16/12/2021 253407 PC EARL Z                              

    

 

 

Remarks: 

 

page 298



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 10 of 29 CRIS Live 

IDO 

 

IDO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

IDO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

CPO 

 

CPO Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

CPO Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

Photographer 

 

Photographer Request: 

 

Request Id Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

       

 

 

Photographer Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

page 299



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Support Services 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 11 of 29 CRIS Live 

      

 

 

 

Other 

 

Other Request: 

 

Request Id Type Requested Date/Time Surname Warrant/Pay No Accepted Date/Time Cancel Reason Cancel Date 

        

 

 

Other Visit: 

 

Request Id Surname Visit Date/Time Entry Gained Job Sheet No Useful Marks 

      

 

 

 

Access Info 
 

page 300



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Features 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 12 of 29 CRIS Live 

Features/instruments 

 

 

 

Text: 

  

 

IDO Text:  

Prop Ref Nos 

 

 

 

Forensic Data 

 

Lab Reference No:  

 

FORENSIC REFERENCES 

Type No 

 

 

Officers Notes: 

 

  

page 301



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Linked Crimes 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 13 of 29 CRIS Live 

Chain ID Removed Police Contact    

 from 

 Chain? 
 

 

 

page 302



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 14 of 29 CRIS Live 

Method 

 

Current Position: C Classified 

Method: By SUSPECT pushing VICTIM after verbal argument over local issues. 

 

Classification Set by CIT: 

Lock:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Classify 

 

Main Classification: 

 Code Victim Date 

Initial: S008/06 Y 12/12/2021 02:06 

Current: S105/01 Y 14/12/2021 17:03 

Description: SUBSTANT./Common Assault - Summarily Only 

 

Subsidiary Classifications: 

 Code Victim Count 

    

 

Confirm?    Y Date: 14/12/2021 17:03 

 By: PC      4557AW/205483  C  DANTER 

Victim Count Discrepancy:  

 

page 303



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 15 of 29 CRIS Live 

No Crime 

   

No Crime?  Date:     

Reason:  

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Crime Related 

Incident? 

 Date:     

Confirm?  Date:  

 By:  

 

Statistical Info 

 

Current Status: U Undetected Crime Last Changed:  

Cleared-Up Reason:  Date:  

 

Original Classification 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Outcome Changed Change Reason Last Changed Last Changed By 

Main S105/01 Y  U 00 Outcome Pending 14/12/2021 

17:03:00 

 14/12/2021 

17:03:00 

PC      4557AW/205483  

C  DANTER 

 

 Confirmed Date: 14/12/2021 17:03 

 Confirmed By: PC      4557AW/205483  C  DANTER 

 

Statistical Parent CR:  

 

 

Administrative Detections 

 

Home Office Rule:  

 Date:  

 By:  

Explanatory Notes:  

 

page 304



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Classification 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 16 of 29 CRIS Live 

All Current Home Office 

Requirements Satisfied:  Date:  

 By:  

 

Of Interest To 
 

Method Index:  

CP Analysis:  

 

 

Victim Amendments 

 

Date Added Time VIW No By 

 

 

Date Removed Time VIW No By 

 

History 

Off. Code Victim Count Status Outcome Reason When By 

         

 

page 305



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Messages 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 17 of 29 CRIS Live 

Addressee Date Sent Text Cancel Date 

 

 

Gen Reg No Description 

 

 

Important/Interest Crime?  Date:    

page 306



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 18 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

12/12/2021 02:06 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

Service Flag CJ added 

 

 

 

 

 

12/12/2021 02:06 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

*** THIS CRIME REPORT HAS BEEN AUTOMATICALLY CREATED FROM A CHS DEMAND 

RECORD AND INVESTIGATED BY THE TDIU*** 

It is the responsibility of the IIO to clarify and confirm the details recorded in this report. 

Please note the following screens for updating: 

   - General Screen: DV/Hate Crime Tab has been shown as "No" - Requires verification. 

   - General Screen: Digital Evidence Tab has been shown as "No" - Requires verification. 

   - Venue Screen: Main location has been shown as AZ - Requires verification. 

   - Venue Screen: For Burglary. Approach, Security, Entry and Exit values - Requires verification. 

   - VIW Screen: Injury/Dress Tab. Injury Degree has been shown as HD (No Injury) - Requires 

verification. 

   - VIW Screen: If victim is of school age, School address - Requires verification. 

   - SUSPECT, VEHICLE and PROPERTY details recorded on DETS - Requires screen creation. 

 

CHS 20211212025854 12/12/2021 01:58:27 c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

 

Opening codes: 

001 - Violence Against The Person 

 

 

 

Allegation details: 

=================== 

CHS 12/12/2021 02:01:29 c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

====================================== 

^INFT WE HAVE HAD LOTS OF ISSUES WITH THIS CLUB, IM A LOCAL RESIDENT AND 

HAVE ISSUES WITH THE NOISE AND ROWDINESS 

- 

SOMEONE WAS TAKING PHOTOS OF ME, SAID HE "WILL DEAL WITH ME" - HE THEN 

SHOVVED ME 

 

CHS 12/12/2021 02:01:54 c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

====================================== 

^INFT THE F STAFF SAID THE M WORKS FOR THE CLUB 

- 

I WANT TO REPORT THIS - I WONT BE THREATENED LIKE THIS 

 

CHS 12/12/2021 02:02:04 

page 307



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 19 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

12/12/2021 02:06 

 

PC       METCHS1        CH CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT 

 

c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

====================================== 

^INFT IM OK AND NOT INJURED 

 

CHS 12/12/2021 02:03:20 c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

====================================== 

 

- 

I HAVE A PHOTO OF HIM 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 16:52 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 16:52 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

Service Flag TI added 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 16:52 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

Service Flag TC added 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 17:04 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

Classification confirmed 

 

 

page 308



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 20 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 17:44 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

 

 “This report has been created in line with the Telephone and Digital Investigation Units (TDIU) 

policy. The Primary Investigation has been completed with only the information recorded on the CHS 

by First Contact, as the victim could not be reached when called.” 

I have left a message for Victim with the CRIS and CMS numbers for Victim to provide details to 

identify the Suspect and/or if the incident was captured on CCTV.  

 

********** TP CRIB INITIAL INVESTIGATION ********** 

 

TDIU entry 

Victim has been reassured and advised accordingly upon initial contact. 

 

Victim confirmed the information provided to MET-CC.  

 

Report has been assessed by TDIU and relevant pages have been updated 

 

Contact made:  

 

Incident Number – 

 

CHS 20211212025854 12/12/2021 01:58:27 c743578 (Rob Dawkins) 

 

Date of incident – 

 

12/12/2021 at 0145 - 0150 hours. 

 

Police informed – 

 

12/12/2021 at 0158 hours 

 

Suspected deliberate –  

 

YES – SUSPECT believed to have deliberately pushed VICTIM after verbal argument over local 

issues. 

 

Circumstances –  

 

Cut and Paste from CHS 

 

INFT WE HAVE HAD LOTS OF ISSUES WITH THIS CLUB, IM A LOCAL RESIDENT AND 

HAVE ISSUES WITH THE NOISE AND ROWDINESS 

 

SOMEONE WAS TAKING PHOTOS OF ME, SAID HE "WILL DEAL WITH ME" - HE THEN 

SHOVVED ME 

 

INFT THE F STAFF SAID THE M 

page 309



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 21 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

14/12/2021 17:44 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

WORKS FOR THE CLUB 

 

I WANT TO REPORT THIS - I WONT BE THREATENED LIKE THIS  

 

INFT IM OK AND NOT INJURED 

 

^INFT AFRO CARRIBEAN M, 6FT3, AA30 

 

I HAVE A PHOTO OF HIM 

 

TDIU Update 

 

I have emailed a request for the image of SUSPECT via EVIDENCE.COM / AXON CITIZEN 

 

HAVES ASSESSMENT 

 

History – Not applicable. 

Aggravating factors – Not applicable. 

Vulnerability – None 

Escalation – Not applicable. 

 

Steps Taken –  

 

CCTV - Unknown 

 

Witnesses - None 

 

Forensic Opportunities - Unknown 

 

SOLVABILITY ASSESSMENT 

 

Based on my assessment of material available, Further investigation is required.  

The reasons behind this are:- 

 

(1) The victims’ willingness to prosecute 

 

VICTIM has reported the matter showing a willingness to assist with an investigation. I will email 

details and contact documentation with Crime reference Number and request update if there is any new 

information. 

 

(2) The suspects’ identity being known 

 

SUSPECT –  

 

Unknown but linked to local club at venue and digital image obtained by VICTIM. 

(3) The value associated to the crime 

 

Approximate value item Damaged / Stolen – Not Applicable 

 

(4) The availability of CCTV footage of the crime or SUSPECT and a clear identifiable facial 

image. 

page 310



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 22 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

CCTV Request made via Axon Citizen – Evidence.com 

 

“ CRIB Axon Citizen Entry: The primary investigation has been conducted by CRIB. CCTV has been 

uploaded onto Axon Citizen and this can be accessed via the CRIS number on the system. The 

allocated BCU investigator should view, categorise & reassign the footage to themselves. This must be 

done within the next 30 days or it will be 

page 311



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 23 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

14/12/2021 17:44 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

auto-deleted 

 

(5) The possibility of forensic leads 

 

No Known Forensics opportunities. 

No requirement for preservation of the scene. 

No requirement for forensic examination of the scene. 

 

(6) Action specific to making off without payment (Fuel theft) 

 

Not Applicable 

 

(7) Burglary / Robbery Mandatory Crime 

 

NO        

 

‘No apparent leads are detected under Crime Assessment Principles. However, following direction of 

Assistant Commissioner Frontline Policing all personal robbery and residential burglary crimes are 

now allocated for local review.  This will allow the BCU to consider whether further enquiries need to 

be conducted including CCTV enquiries, linked series enquiries and follow up with the SNT.  The 

victim in this case has been informed that the crime is not suitable for secondary investigation.’        

 

Screening Decision 

This crime has been investigated as far as reasonably possible – Further investigative lines of enquiry. 

 

SUSPECT unknown but linked to local club at venue and digital image obtained by VICTIM. 

 

I have emailed a request for the image of SUSPECT via EVIDENCE.COM / AXON CITIZEN 

 

Screened In Pending – Outcome Code 00 

Nothing further to add. TDIU 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 17:44 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

 

***************************************************************************** 

EVIDENCE.COM /AXON CITIZEN REQUEST HAS BEEN SENT 

 

***************************************************************************** 

 

 

page 312



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 24 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 17:49 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

Screened In 

 

 

 

 

 

14/12/2021 17:50 

 

PC       205483  4557AW C  DANTER 

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

15/12/2021 20:54 

 

PC       243633  1892AW L  SULLIVAN 

 

OIC Changed 

 

 

 

 

 

16/12/2021 15:11 

 

PC       253407         Z  EARL 

 

VIW has been emailed, there may be a photo of the suspect 

page 313



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Details of Investigation 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 25 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

  

 

16/12/2021 17:04 

 

PC       253407         Z  EARL 

 

Male was poked in the chest after he was trying to take photos of the club, an employee took offence 

and took photos of VIW. VIW didn't like this so he confronted the suspect and the suspect said I will 

deal with you" and poked him in the chest 

 

VIW does not want to proceed  

 

Outcome 14 

 

 

 

 

 

16/12/2021 17:05 

 

PC       253407         Z  EARL 

 

VIW aware 

 

 

 

 

 

16/12/2021 19:48 

 

PS       228513  235AW  J  MORRIS 

 

SUPERVISION - report can be closed as per OIC's last REMS 

page 314



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 26 of 29 CRIS Live 

Memos 

 

Sent To 

Noted By 

Completed By                             Date 

Entered By                         Urgent?         Noted          Completed     Cancelled        Entered 

 

 

 

 

Create Action/Decision/Review Screens ?   

Action/Decision/Review Screens Created By:  

 

Create CAIT Screens?     

CAIT Screens Created By:     

 

Case Mgt Administration 

 

Is SIO Same As OIC Supervisor?    

Current Senior Investigating Officer (SIO):  

Allocated:      

 

Noted?       

Noted Date/Time:     

 

Previous SIOs: 

 

Officer Allocated Noted 

   

 

Review Period:    days     Next Review Due:    

 

 

page 315



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault GLU:CW 

Memo 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 27 of 29 CRIS Live 

Summary: 

Actions:  Total:     Ready for Completion:   Completed:     

Decisions: Total:     With Rationale:    Seen By SIO:     

Review:  Total:    

 

page 316



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 28 of 29 CRIS Live 

Initial Entry 

 

Initial I.O.: 

Rank: PC  

Surname: CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT Initials: CH  

Wt/Pay No: METCHS1 Div/D No:  

 

Crime Recorded by: METCHS1 CHS GENERIC ACCOUNT PC              CH 

Date/Time: 12/12/2021 02:06 

Recording Unit: FH 

 

 

Supervision 

 

Initial entry checked? Y 

Initial entry checked by: PC       DANTER 4557AW 205483 

Date/Time: 14/12/2021 17:49 

 

Ongoing Supervision 

Date Supervision By 

16/12/2021 19:48 PS      235AW /228513  J  MORRIS 

 

 

Investigation complete? Y 

Investigation complete by: PS      235AW /228513  J  MORRIS 

Date/Time: 16/12/2021 19:48 

 

Crime Report closed?  

Crime Report closed by:  

Date/Time:  

 

 

Screening 

 

Screening Decision: IN Crime screened "in" for further investigation. 

Reason: 93 Primary Investigation Incomplete/Insufficient 

Text:  

SUSPECT identifiable by VICTIM. 

 

Screening History 

Decision Reason Text 

 

 

Completion 

 

Date/Time CR  

Last Updated: 18/12/2021 16:18 

 

CR Completed? R 

Date/Time: 16/12/2021 19:48 

By (Wt.No): 228513 

 

page 317



Data Protection Act - Dispose Of As Confidential Waste 

PC RG GUERRA 1614AW 207028 

 CR:6553257/21 CrType:B Notifiable/MPS/Other:N-1 Status:U Press:Y Class:S/Common Assault 

GLU:CW 

Supervision 

24/01/2022 09:30 Page 29 of 29 CRIS Live 

 

Bring Forward: 

 

Date                                     Date Entered                  For 

Reason 

Date Cancelled                   Cancelled By 
 

 

 

page 318



Signature: 

Signature Witnessed by: 

Page 1 of 3 
eStatement no: AW-1000721-2022 

MG11 RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

STATEMENT OF WITNESS 

(Criminal Procedure Rules, r. 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s. 9) 

URN 

Statement of: Constable Andy Burgin 
Age if under 18: Over 18 

Occupation:  Police officer 

This statement is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and I make it knowing that, if it is tendered in 
evidence, I shall be liable to prosecution if I have wilfully stated in it, anything which I know to be false, or do 
not believe to be true. 

Signature: 

Date:  16/03/2022 

This statement refers to the ongoing ASB caused along Porchester Road, Westbourne park Road and 
Celbridge Mews W2 as a result of Ma Dam Night club, 56-58 Porchester Road, W2.  

I am the above named person and am employed by the METROPOLITAN POLICE as a local dedicated ward 
officer for Bayswater. It is my role and responsibility to recognise localised issues within the community and 
work with partner agencies in order to find a suitable resolution.  

I have been in the role here in Westminster for around 2 years now. 

Last year i was contacted by a resident alleging persistent ASB caused by the customers who are connected to 
Ma'dam night club.  
It was explained to me that on nearly every occasion Ma Dam night club operates, residents positioned around 
the club experience the following levels of ASB:  
-Urinating in the street, specifically Celbridge Mews.
-Defecating in Celbridge mews
-Loud shouting, swearing from customers who leave the club
-drug consumption by customers in the club both in Westbourne Park Road and in Celbridge Mews.
- Customers appear to continue "partying" around parked cars in Westbourne Park Road, street drinking at
shouting.
- Noise transference between party walls well into the night - passed the licenced agreed times.

The above appears to be occurring predominantly between 0100hours and 0330hours during the clubs 
dispersal times.  
On occasions residents have taken it upon themselves to record the ASB as evidence towards the complaints 
they make to police and council. This has resulted more than once in residence being attacked physically and 
verbally by the clubs customers.  

After speaking with residents who live in the immediate area of the club, it appears that the club operates well 
past its licence conditions. It also appears that the club applies for the maximum amount of TENS it can legally 
apply for, and then hosts its events on these dates. Which means the club is able to run well up until 2am. 
However as i have evidenced below, it is clear the club has been operating sometimes until 0330hours. Well 
passed its agreed times.  

Statement of PC Burgin

page 319



 

 

 
Continuation of Statement of: Constable Andy Burgin 

 

 

Witness Signature:  

Signature Witnessed by: 
 

Page 2 of 3 
eStatement no AW-1000721-2022 

 

MG11C RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

For residents in the area this is unacceptable - the music emanates through party walls through to residents 
flats next to the club. This is incredibly frustrating for residents especially when you couple the noise 
transference with the street ASB caused by the clubs late dispersals.  
 
It is clear to me, after reviewing the calls to police and liaising with Westminster Council, that Ma Dam night 
club is not only operating past its licenced times, the club breaches its licence in other ways to, as residents 
described a lack of door staff/supervisors monitoring dispersal. According to the licence, the club should be 
operating with at least 4 door staff, however on a majority of occasions, they only operate with two. 
 
I have listed below the calls made to police in relation to the club evidencing A) how many calls we received 
recently and B) the ASB caused by the club.  
 
CAD/ Call lists.             
734/12DEC21 at 0130hours – Manager of MA DAM has called police requesting assistance to deal with 
customers in the street. Police attended and stated that Cassandri explained she has it in hand and doesn’t 
need assistance.  
 
806/12DEC21 at 0158hours – Resident has complained about the noise and witnessed the above 
disturbances, then has alleged he was shoved by a security guard at the club. This was reported on CRIS 
6553257/21 whereby the informant has then stated he does not wish to proceed with a formal investigation. 
VIW does have images of the SUS.  
 
7242/09DEC21 @ 1023hours – A resident has called logging a complaint that the door staff at the venue are 
not wearing SIA badges and that there is not 4 door staff there.  
 
4708/27NOV21: A residents recording that at around 0030hours whilst the club is operating, a group of young 
male adults gathered in Celbridge Mews to street drink and consume nitrous oxide through balloons. They were 
loud and shouting causing ASB.  
 
895/13NOV21 @ 0217hours: member of staff from within the club has called police to state that they have 
closed the club and dispersed guests. However they are not leaving and causing a disruption to the street. 
Requesting police assistance to leave.  
 
859/13NOV21@ 0214hours: unknown caller, suspected Manager of MA DAM has called police requesting 
assistance as the guests leaving the club were allegedly fighting. Police attended no fight. The manager was 
not on scene, group were around 30 in numbers and slowly dispersing.  
 
3793/01NOV21: A resident reporting that in the early hours of the morning, whilst the club was still operating, 
she witnessed several people coming into Celbridge Mews and urinated by her doorstep.  
On this occasion the same resident also reported the following, but did not obtain a separate REF number: 
 
     1.  Sunday 31 October 00:11; four/five drunk women "dancing" in the entrance to Celbridge Mews; all 
collapsed and just lay in the middle of the road. 
     2.  Sunday 31 October 23:47; woman urinating on front wall/porch of no 14 Celbridge Mews 
     3.  Monday 1 November 00:31; two women urinating outside no.14 Celbridge Mews 
 
CWRT01045442 – Sunday 31st October 21 @ 0215hours: A resident has reported that a male has entered 
Celbridge Mews with a baseball bat walked around then left after a few minutes. Believed linked to the club.  
 
6544191/21 – 1st November at 0100hours. A residents went out to record the ASB in the street – one of the 
guests from the club threatened this residents stating “I know where you live ill come and smash up your cars 
ETC, investigation is still underway. 
 

page 320



 

 

 
Continuation of Statement of: Constable Andy Burgin 

 

 

Witness Signature:  

Signature Witnessed by: 
 

Page 3 of 3 
eStatement no AW-1000721-2022 

 

MG11C RESTRICTED (when complete) 

RESTRICTED (when complete) 

954/16OCT21 @ 0239hours: A residents reported that the club is still operating loud music past its licence 
times. The noise is coming through  party wall.  
 
1519/26SEPT21 @0416hours: A resident has reported that guests from the club are still outside on the street, 
drinking and shouting loitering around cars parked up. He stated this is an ongoing occurrence and disturbance 
that he sees regularly as a result of the club.  
 
656/20JUN20 @ 0130hours: A residents reported that at 0130hours a group of around 15 individuals were 
entering the club – this was in breach of lockdown legislation. Police attended at 0330hours, no gatherings 
could be found. 
 
6551025/19 – 28th July 21 @ 0330hours: A residents was gathering evidence on the street of the club 
operating past its allowed times. When a customer from the club approached  from behind and attacked 
him physically. Police investigated as far as possible and circulated a picture of the suspect whom is yet to be 
identified.  
 
6553171/18 – 30th September 2018 @ 0300hours: female reporting a theft of her bag, believed in the club 
however no evidence to proceed. Note the time of the allegation – 0300hours.  
 
6522205/17 – 12 May 17 at 2330hours – Officers were called to the club as a fight was at the location. 2 arrests 
were made for affray.  
 
6553149/16 – 27th November 16 at 0330hours – reports of a male assaulting door staff – was closed down as 
staff did not want to proceed. – However note the time of the call – 0330hours still operating. 
 
1507/27thNovmber 2016 – at 0300hours – ASB related call – No further DETS 
 
The ASB caused is that which you would usually get from a club, however this may be tolerable in a non-
residential area but this club is situated in a highly populated residential street with no other licensed premises 
similar to this one operating in the immediate vicinity. This club is not fit for the area it is located and therefore I 
strongly believe that a licence review should be considered in moving forwards with this address.  
 
In the meantime, as local ward officer i support the License Review for the venue in hopes it can reduce and 
minimise further ASB towards residents around MA DAM. 
 

page 321



Appendix 5 
Interested Parties representation in support of the review plus supplementary 

documentation 
 
 
Details of public representations relating to 22/01181/LIREVP 
 

Comments received electronically via PublicAccess: 
 

• M  
Received: 6 Mar 2022 
SUPPORT  
 
Ever since the premises now known as Ma Dames opened up the early 2000s, at that 
time under the name of Cherry Jam, the club has caused nothing but misery to the 
residents of the adjacent residential streets. Late night noise, urination in residential 
gardens, and fighting, have been a constant side effect of the the club's patrons leaving 
the premises long after closing time as they accumulated in the residential streets 
opposite the club. 
Porchester road is not a suitable location for a night club, and the fact that the premises 
is a small unattractive venue means it has very limited chance of commercial success. 
The license holders are driven to desperate measures to make money, which is why 
they host down market events for out of towners, and show no consideration at all to 
local residents who must endure the antisocial behaviour of the club's patrons. 
I hope this time round the council will review the litany of complaints over the last 20 
years and refuse to grant this application. 
 

•  
Received: 10 Feb 2022 
SUPPORT  
 
I regularly get woken up at approx 3am when this club is open by patrons slamming car 
doors, shouting, arguing and blaring music from cars. This doesn't seem to happen with 
any other establishments in the area. However when Ma Dame has a club night we are 
almost guaranteed anti social behaviour. This can't be right for such a densely populated 
area. 
 

•  
Received: 9 Feb 2022 
SUPPORT  
 
I was recently resident on , and experienced a large number of 
disturbances in the form of public nuisance as a result of this premises operating. On 
many occasions, often on consecutive Fridays and Saturdays, we were disturbed 
between 0100 and 0500 by loud shouting, screaming, music, and general revelry. 
Additionally, we witnessed public urination, dangerous driving (in one case, speeding 
with a passenger half hanging out of a rear window), and consumption of narcotics. 
During these disturbances, it would be impossible to sleep - even with earplugs that 
carried high noise ratings - which, over consecutive evenings, became detrimental to our 
health. 
 

page 322



Furthermore, on mornings following disturbances, bottles of alcohol (empty and partially 
filled) as well as nitrous oxide cylinders were found on both private and public property in 
significant quantities. 
 
My partner and I had intended to remain in our residence for the long term, but this 
nuisance formed one of the key factors in us relocating, as we began to develop anxiety 
about whether we would be able to sleep on a given weekend. I strongly support the 
revocation of this premises' license, as it produces unreasonable disturbances that 
substantially interfere with the local community's ability to enjoy their property.  

 
Comments received via other means: 
 

•   
Received: 6 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
We have lived in  for almost 20 years. In that time there has been 
an increase in nuisance and noise and threat to public safety late at night and early 
morning due to the revellers leaving Ma Dames. 
  
We are almost at  and even there there are cars racing along the street, 
shouting, swearing and fights that wake us up on a consistent basis. 
This behaviour as well as being a nuisance is also threatening and makes me as a 
women very nervous of walking along the street at night and even being alone in the flat 
on occasion. 
  
There are cars parked on the street and near the club with people waiting for those 
leaving the club with people sitting inside and what seems to be dealing going on.  
  
There is an increase in crime in the area and this is not helping. We are a residential 
area and want to feel safe in our homes and on our streets. 
 

•  
Received: 6 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
I understand that the license for Ma Dames nightclub in Porchester Road is up for review 
and should like to add my support to the calls for it to be revoked.   
 
This club has been a source of increasing problems and distress for local residents over 
the last few years, the only respite being during the extended periods that it could not 
open over the last few years due to Covid restrictions, but which made the few 
occasions that it could open even worse. 
 
The problems are those that one would expect with a nightclub encouraging partying into 
the early hours of the morning: drunkenness, drug abuse, over amorous activity 
(copulation), urinating, dangerous (possibly drunken) driving, car honking, bottle 
breaking, general loud noise and other public nuisance.  Personally I am not completely 
against this sort of thing as a matter of principle, but such clubs need to be located 
sensitively away from many working families trying to sleep in residential areas and 
policed properly, especially as people leave them (which Ma Dames is not).  Because of 

page 323



this the present location in Porchester Road near to Westbourne Park Road and 
Westbourne Park Villas is completely inappropriate and the license should be revoked in 
order to help prevent crime, disorder and public nuisance as well as for the safety of the 
public in general and the children resident in the affected areas in particular. 
 
Thank you for your understanding. 
 

• ,  
Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
I have lived in  for over 27 years. I remember when 58 
Porchester Road was a restaurant/arts club serving food alongside light entertainment. It 
was supported on the whole by the locals. Because it was part of the community it 
understood that if it was to attract its target audience it needed to be mindful of their 
environment. 
  
Because of ever higher rent demands the venue became increasingly less viable as 
originally conceived. There was a shift in focus to dining with late night dancing trading 
as Cherry Jam. The later opening hours (to 1.30am) along with a different crowd and the 
repeated incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour culminated in a licence review in 2012 where 
the opening hours were curtailed and licensing conditions strengthened. Again such 
strictures made the venue less operationally profitable. Cherry Jam ceased. There was a 
hiatus when nothing happened at the premises for a year or thereabouts after which Son 
des Guitares Ltd took up the licence and began trading as Ma Dames. It operates solely 
as a night club. There is no restaurant any more. 
  
The director and licensee Jennifer Cassandri is the daughter of Jaques Cassandri, a 
notorious criminal who operated in France. His activities involved drug dealing 
prostitution and money laundering. In 2018 she was convicted of several offences along 
with him and other members of his family. Interestingly Son des Guitares is the same 
company name used by her father for his businesses in France. I highlight this as 
Cassandri has displayed similar disregard for the licensing conditions et alia attached to 
Ma Dames and one wonders how she is deemed to be a fit and proper person to hold a 
premises licence or even whether she declared her previous conviction to the licensing 
authority. 
 
Sadly many of the same issues around anti-social behaviour and criminality that were 
evidenced to previous licensing committees in 2004,2007/8 and 2012 have occurred 
again repeatedly and increasingly over the last 5 years. The current licensee will claim 
that very few complaints have occurred particularly in 2020/21 when as we all know 
venues were shut for significant periods due to Covid. This does not give an accurate 
picture of the problems that this venue generates for the local community. Many of the 
complaints that have been logged with Westminster Council have been lost or 
misapplied due to inadequate systems which are not fit for purpose. Many incidents and 
complaints which have been made are not cross referenced or applied to Ma Dames. 
The agencies (Environmental Health and Police) are under-resourced and often unable 
to respond in a timely manner to complaints which pass without intervention. It doesn't 
help that this venue is on the periphery of the relevant teams who concentrate their 
resources on the highly stressed and nightclub congested areas of the West End. 
Supposed monitoring of the premises is cursory and often the licensee is forewarned. 

page 324



Incidents include aggressive behaviour, fights, car racing, drug taking and dealing and 
generalised anti-social behaviour and public nuisance. 
  
The premises licence has had extensive conditions applied to it over the years. These 
are rarely applied by the licensee. She might argue that they are difficult and expensive 
to enforce. In truth if one needs to apply so many such conditions to the licence one 
should be asking whether such a venue should even exist in what is an overwhelmingly 
residential area populated mainly by families. It must be unreasonable that there are 
residents who look to see when promoted events are taking place and go away for the 
weekend to avoid the disturbance that often eventuates. 
 
Many residents are intimidated and frightened to speak out. Some have been verbally 
abused and suffered threatening language by door staff. They are mindful of the 
licensee's background in organised crime and are reluctant to protest too overtly. I have 
been physically and verbally threatened by patrons of the club when observing incidents. 
On one occasion I was attacked and injured, the police came but 'unfortunately' the 
club's video system which could have supplied evidence of the attackers was not 
working that night. Ironically I have written evidence from Cassandri herself apologising 
to me after yet another disturbance saying that 'as a mother of 2 children herself she 
would not tolerate this.' She also admits in another text that she 'attracts a bad crowd.' 
  
I am writing this not only in a personal capacity but as the chairman of Westbourne Park 
Residents Association. I was asked by several people to take on this role specifically to 
campaign for the revocation of Ma Dames' licence. There are many local people who 
have lost faith in the Council, the Police and Environmental Health. I urge you to revoke 
the licence. 
 

• ,  
Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
 SUPPORT 
 
I have lived at this address for over 25 years. I always felt it a safe environment in which 
to raise my children. I found it an ideal balance of a leafy residential street, in close 
proximity to many neighbourhood amenities including the pubs, restaurants, Porchester 
Hall etc and happily accepted the general noise associated with these.  
However, this nightclub has been problematic since it began operating as such. 
Over the years, there have been repeated complaints from local residents as 
fundamentally, this site is inappropriate for use as a nightclub.  There have been a 
variety of changes in management and name of the premises, yet the main issues of 
anti-social behaviour surrounding the extended licensing hours, of alcohol and drug 
consumption, and crowds of revellers dispersing onto our street in the early hours of the 
morning, have continued. 
Since Ms Cassandri took over and turned it into Ma Dames, it has become significantly 
worse. It no longer attempted to hold events that targeted the local community. 
Residents began raising these issues formally with the council, logged endless 
complaints, provided a variety of evidence,  putting ourselves at risk trying to take videos 
and photographs to expose what was happening, to no avail. The email I attach was 
sent in February 2020, pre Covid. This was a summary of the events leading up to that 
date. The only respite we have had from this club was when lockdown forced its closure.  
We had compiled dossiers of evidence, reported assiduously to the Westminster Noise 
Patrol team....yet all this appears to have somehow been lost by the council. 

page 325



Once lockdown lifted, events started again. The cynical use of TENs allowing events to 
run to 3am even 4am began again. Most weekends we found ourselves being woken up 
in the early hours by screaming , shouting, honking of car horns, etc. The debris of 
cannisters, bottles littered on our pavements, and our front gardens being used as 
toilets. 
 
I urge you to revoke the license. 
 
Dear All 
  
You are receiving this email as either you have been involved in previous discussions relating to 
serious issues of antisocial behaviour emanating from patrons of Ma Dames nightclub or we 
have been advised that you should be notified. 
  
There has been a well documented history of issues stemming from this nightclub. A pattern of 
changes of ownership, promises of better management, temporary lulls in disturbances are 
familiar. Despite repeated attempts to raise awareness of how damaging this is to what is 
essentially a quiet residential area, the club has remained. 
  
2019 

  
2019 saw a sharp rise in incidents of extremely drunk and disorderly crowds dispersing into 
Porchester Road and most notably Westbourne Park Road in the early hours of the morning 
after attending the club.  Drinking, screaming and shouting, urinating in gardens, taking drugs, 
vomiting, loitering on pavements and sitting on walls in groups...waiting for cabs, driving off in 
their own vehicles music blaring etc. 
  
Following a particularly bad night on 26th February, we complained directly to the club itself and 
were directed to Jennifer Cassandri who is the current licensee.  Despite her apologies and 
reassurances that this would never happen again and that everything possible was being done 
to address these issues, the disturbances continued. We began to log our complaints to 
Westminster Noise patrol team and document times and dates. 
  
The weekend of July 27th was extremely disturbing. Large throngs of clubbers high and in total 
disregard for their environment, spewed out onto the street and continued to loiter in 
Westbourne Park Road and surrounding streets. My husband went out to the corner of 
Porchester Road to film evidence and was assaulted. Police were called, statements were made 
and this is when some of you were notified in an attempt to seek help. Having contacted various 
members of the council, a dialogue began. Many reassurances were given. 
  
Initially, we were hopeful that the assault might raise awareness to the seriousness of the 
situation and effect action. However, this has not been the case. 
  
What we could not understand was that Ma Dames appears to be in breach of certain 
conditions of their license, most notably not closing until 3am rather than 2am and holding RNB 
and Hip Hop events (specifically outlawed as a condition of their licence). 
  
Through the support of  we discovered that 

page 326



these were operating under TENs notices. Clearly, the licensee understands the system and is 
cleverly working around this.  On December 3rd 2019,  emailed a list of TENS 
for 58 Porchester Road 

  
1 March 2019 

3 May 2019 

27 July 2019 

3 August 2019 

9 August 2019 

7 September 2019 

26 October 2019 

1 November 2019 

2 November 2019 

9 November 2019 

  
All of those marked in bold created disturbances .Complaints were logged to Westminster, and 
some were photographed or videos were taken. 
  
I have been cc’d in many emails that sounded reassuring; 
  
Exert from Shannon Pring Aug 9th  Senior Practitioner for Street Trading and Enforcement 
  
In relation to the specific incident on 28th July, Officers from Environmental Health Consultation 
Team and the City Inspectors have been in contact with the Designated Premises Supervisor 
(DPS) to arrange a meeting to discuss the incident. They have not been able to arrange a 
meeting at the premises due to it being the summer holidays and the DPS childcare 
arrangements. A meeting is being scheduled for September. However, in the interim, the DPS has 
apologised to the Environmental Health Officer for the incident and the disturbance that was 
caused and has advised that they will not be accepting bookings from that client again. 
  
The DPS has offered the following action plan to avoid causing a nuisance to the residents: 
  

• Premises has hired additional experienced security 

• They have 2 additional managers on site for the event 
• Operating a staggered dispersal of guests in small groups to get taxis and leave the area 

• Traffic marshals with cones outside to avoid blocking traffic 

• Giving free water and lollipops to leaving guests 

• The client will make an announcement to his guests at the end of the event to request that 
everyone leave quietly and be considerate the neighbours. 
  
See exert from email of Aug 12th; Shannon Pring reassures us that future TENS notices to 
be Reviewed in great detail . 
  
For your information, the events held on 27 July, 03 August and 09 August 2019 were operated 
under Temporary Event Notices (TENs) and as such they are governed by a separate section of 
the Licensing Act 2003 than a premises licence. You may wish to advise the residents that, at this 
time, the premises has not applied for any further TENs and as such the disturbances should 
cease with immediate effect. If any further TEN’s are received these would be reviewed in great 

page 327



detail and if objected to would need to go to Licensing Sub-Committee for determination. 
  
I have streams of emails debating this issue too numerous to forward but available if of interest. 
  
2020. 
  
Saturday February 8th February 15th. 
There were two serious disturbances 2 weekends in a row both operating under TENs. 
  
As I understand, temporary event notices allow ’temporary events’ to take place whereby the 
conditions of the existing licence do not apply. A single premises can submit up to 15 notices per 
year. We know that 11 were applied for between March and November 2019. 
 The Westminster site explains that; 
  
The council cannot refuse a notice unless the police or environmental health object to it..if they 
consider it may 

• Lead to crime and disorder 
• Cause a public nuisance 

• Be a threat to public safety 

• Put children at risk of harm 

  
All of these are relevant. So why have no objections been made. 
  
We are exasperated but more importantly concerned for the safety of our neighbourhood. 
We have been advised that 3 more upcoming TENs have already been noted, the first being 
this Friday 28th. 
  
What is being done? 

  
We have raised awareness, called, monitored, photographed, filmed and done our best to alert 
the relevant people who have power to do something but to no avail. 
  
Attached are examples of advertising flyers that show the type of events that the club is hosting 
that cause the problems. 
Also attached is Ma Dame’s licence with particular areas of concern highlighted. 
I have compiled many exerts of videos taken from other neighbours as well as ourselves. Photo 
examples of typical scenes are attached. 
This link provides an example from the early hours July 27th 

https://1drv.ms/v/s!AmEOsNNIJfDHgXWNqkU_pTZquzdB 

  
If you have any questions, please contact us, 
 

•   
Received: 5 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
We strongly object to Ma Dames Nightclub being granted a Licence.  
We have been awoken many times over the weekends by customers of Ma Dames. We 

page 328

https://scanmail.trustwave.com/?c=7089&d=r5bX3rOH_zI44KvtCm3hcs7BNuWDKg_f0ztgiz5cDQ&u=https%3a%2f%2f1drv%2ems%2fv%2fs%21AmEOsNNIJfDHgXWNqkU%5fpTZquzdB


live on , ie: some 
distance away from Ma Dames itself. The initial disturbances occur when customers 
arrive for the night and park outside or near to our house, very visibly taking drugs and 
drinking alcohol before they head for Ma Dames. The worst disturbances are when they 
return to their cars after their night out, usually between about 2 and 4 am. The patrons 
talk loudly in groups and shout as they go down the street, being very visibly 
incapacitated by, it seems clear, alcohol and drugs. There is more loud shouting up and 
down the street for no apparent reason and often car horns blasting at each other. They 
smash bottles and play loud music from their car stereos. Finally the revelers get into 
their cars and drive at high speeds and dangerously  -- we have witnessed cars driving 
circus-like in tight circles at the intersection of Westbourne Park Road and Westbourne 
Gardens. We always find used drug-taking paraphernalia in our front garden on the 
following day. 
 It is dangerous for us or any residents to leave the safety of our houses when these 
disturbances occur, as the revelers have been known to be aggressive / in an alcohol or 
drug-fueled state. This does not allow us to attempt keep the noise down. Also, the 
dangerous car driving makes it thoroughly unsafe to be on the street or pavements at all.  
 The degree of disturbances has varied because of covid - obviously the Club was 
necessarily closed for a time during the pandemic and we got some much needed peace 
at that time. Please do not take this as a sign that the situation has reformed. Ma Dames 
is a complete menace to this residential area. A nightclub of this sort has no business 
whatsoever being situated in an otherwise peaceful residential neighbourhood. 
 

•  
 

Received: 4 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
The ) fully supports the decision 
to instigate a Review of the Premises Licence at No 58 Porchester Road W2 6ET  
 
For a considerable time now  has been receiving numerous reports from our 
members in , the eastern end of   and the 
surrounding area of totally unacceptable noise and all forms of anti social behaviour, 
more often than not running into the early hours of the morning. 
 
A Licence review of the of these premises is long overdue. 
 
 

•   
Received: 6 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
I am writing to protest the continuing licence of Ma Dames nightclub at 58 Porchester 
Road W2 6ET reference 22/01181/LIREVP 
 
Prevention of Public Nuisance and Prevention of Crime and Disorder:  
Our area has always been residential, with a lot of families. Every night the club closes, 
the drinkers come out and loiter on Westbourne Park Road, with lots of cars revving their 
engines. The drinkers from the club look like they are buying drugs - they sit in each 
other cars and hang out shouting loudly to each other, with car radios blaring.  

page 329



 
Protection of Children from harm and Public Safety:  
We are often woken up especially on a Saturday when the club closes at 2am. Police 
cars often have to attend. My daughters' bedrooms overlook the road and what they can 
see and hear is totally inappropriate. We have found plastic gloves and condoms thrown 
in our garden. 
 

•     
 

Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
I am writing to support that this license be revoked. We have observed several incidents 
of anti social behaviour from clients of theirs. Such a venue shouldn't be so close to a 
residential area. 
There is always broken glass the morning after the night before and people being loud 
outside our house at anti social hours of the early morning.  
 
We live on  
and there have even been needles left on the stairs of the house and crack pipes.  
 
I think any kind of nightclub like this in a residential area is going to attract trouble. We 
really just want to enjoy peaceful evenings.  
 

•   
Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
Ma Dame 'nightclub late night dancing venue ''VIP after parties and much more...'' ' [Ed. 
Ma Dames WEBSITE]  
 
To whomever it may concern  
 
 Dear Sir/Madam, 
 crime 
 I am writing to express my strong opposition to Ma Dames establishment. The current 
owner has an outstanding criminal conviction and it is very troubling to me why they 
have been allowed a late night alcohol permit at all.  
 
 Anyone who works as a public office holder acts solely in terms of the public interest. 
They should all have interdepartmental communications about this matter. An FOI might 
be enlightening if necessary.  
 
 public safety  
 Building insurance Indemnity companies have no obligation to pay up the moment they 
realise that Ms. Ma Dames  should never have been granted a late night alcohol permit 
in the first place. If the business burns down or a drive by shooting, where do the 
residents turn?  
 
 Public Nuisance  
 Professional music studios invest in foot thick walls in attempts to dampen noise. I am a 

page 330



share holder in an east end music studio so am fully aware of the huge expense 
involved and its limitations.  
 Ma Dame WEBSITE boasts a photo of a 5-piece drum set. The snare drum pictured in 
the venue can emit 125dB unamplified. This is permanent damage to hearing within the 
club and torture to residents trying to live nexr door.  
 
I have spoken to owners of the shops adjacent to the nightclub. I found their comments 
so bizarre that I wrote them down to remember them; 
 
'nothing we say will make any difference because we are not open when the nightclub is 
open' 
'[the owner] makes so much money on the nights that it is open it is impossible the 
license will be revoked'  
'the solicitor representing the club runs circles around Westminster council' 
 
 Protection of Children   
 The facade of Ma Dames says a thousand words. This business has no interest in 
improving the neighborhood it is located in. Up until a few days ago it was covered in 
rubbish and overhanging debris. A last minute sweep with a brush this close to a review 
must not fool anyone. Instead expose the underhand duplicity residents know them for.  
 The drug paraphernalia strewn outside Ma Dames premises is well known. The street 
cleaners should not have to deal with this. The children that see it on their way to school 
even less.  
 
 Court costs for residents if they have to appeal this nightmare will be very high. The 
Magistrate Court will rule in their favour which would include costs.  
 
 Thankyou for helping Ma Dames relocate, long overdue.  
 
 Sincerely,  
 
 I request nondisclosure. Residents have become aware and very fearful of 
correspondence leaks. Ms. Ma Dames is capable of crying in front of police and council 
one minute and ringiing the doorbells of residents in opposition the next.  
 

•   
Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
I wish to give notice of my intention to make representations on the Ma Dame Licence 
Review, in relation to all four licensing objectives:  
 
1. Prevention of Crime and Disorder 
2. Prevention of Public Nuisance 
3. Protection of Children from Harm 
4. Public Safety 
 
Further details will be provided in advance of the hearing. 
 
 
 

page 331



•   
Received: 5 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
Dear Westminster Council: 
 
I understand Ma Dames at 58 Porchester Road in Bayswater is applying to increase the 
number of openings and the length of its opening hours. We have resided in  

 since 2000 and are well aware of the disturbances caused by their events. 
We have experienced high levels of noise in the street into the early hours of the 
morning including fast car driving, loud altercations (that have resulted in police being 
called), and the sound of breaking glass during the night. Additionally, there has been 
public urination and there is often a large amount of debris on our road and Porchester 
Road the day after - empty bottles and cans of alcohol and several dozen nitrous oxide 
cylinders strewn in the road and on the pavement.  
We are writing to state that this level of noise and anti-social behaviour as well as 
criminality is unacceptable in general and in particular in such a residential 
neighbourhood. Please note that many of our neighbours who are closer or just more 
unlucky have experienced worse, especially if they have tried to ask people to move on 
or protect their property. 
Please do not extend their permission in any way. It is unfair to all of us who have to live 
with it. We thank you for your consideration. 
 

• ,  
Received: 2 Mar 2022 by  
OBJECTION  
 
Since becoming a  in 2018 I have received many complaints about ASB 
because of the behaviour of Ma Dame patrons and some staff.  One of the most recent 
was from an older resident who, on attempting to record evidence, was aggressively 
threatened by a man who said that he worked there.  The resident was thoroughly 
shaken and scared.  I told him to report it but he was too afraid for his and his wife's 
safety.  Many objections have been submitted but they are the tip of an iceberg.  Due to 
fears for their safety and previous experience of their complaints not being acted upon 
many more residents were reluctant to submit reports for this review. 
 
The Council has given the proprietor ample opportunity to comply with the licence 
conditions and meet the licensing objectives but to no avail.  This quiet residential 
neighbourhood has suffered enough.  I urge the panel to rescind this licence. 
 

 
 

 

• ,  
Received: 7 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
Sir - I refer to the above matter and urgently add my support to the objections you have 
received in the above matter of an illegally operating nightclub in a residential area . This 
disruptive business is inflicting undesirable traffic and noise on long suffering residents 
and must be terminated immediately and permanently by the authorities . 

page 332



 

•   
Received: 6 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT 
 
Re Ma Dame Nightclub. 
I have lived in this road for 65 years and at that time, we would make a petition on behalf 
of the road and it was listened to. I wonder what exactly Westminster Council is 
withholding that they appear so reluctant to lift a finger towards preventing the antisocial 
behaviour emanating from Ma Dames. This has repeatedly caused so many households 
lack of sleep and indeed fear for their properties and themselves. 
It is a quite unacceptable situation due entirely by the Non action from the council. 
Indeed ...beyond belief. 
We all hope this will be rectified with due speed for the common good and leave us with 
a better opinion of Westminster Council. 
 

•   
Received: 21 Feb 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 Me and my friends used to pop along to Cherry Jam for a dance at the end of the week 
and enjoy ourselves. It was a few years ago but we are  young at heart and still fancy a 
boogie now and again.  
 The clientele have changed under Ma Dames not for the better so we avoid the place 
now. 
 The nightclub licence is being reviewed I notice. I doubt it will not go unchallenged by 
people that live in streets that surround it.  
 I think new management is long overdue. Bayswater deserves better definitely.  
 

•  
  

Received: 4 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
On occasion of the forthcoming license review, we strongly object to 'Ma dame' nightclub 
being granted a license to operate; this establishment and their patrons have caused 
numerous instances of public nuisance, crime and disorder and have compromised 
public safety. 
 
After an enforced period of calm during the Covid crisis, they started operating again 
with renewed vigour from June 2021, obtaining TENs for a number of nights/weekends, 
to the point that we have been checking online for impending events in order to brace 
ourselves for the onslaught of disturbances in the form of protracted screaming, revving 
cars, loud music, car races, consumption of nitrous oxide etc. right in front of our home. 
 
These disturbances occur between the hours of 1am and 5am, starting at closing time of 
the club - either 1 am or, when there is a TEN, at up to 3 am - and they last for a couple 
of hours; hyped-up revellers who want to continue partying, having nowhere to go.  

page 333



 
This is a quiet residential area; none of the residents are frequenting nightclubs, so this 
establishment doesn't benefit the locals in any way - it is a 'destination venue' with 
customers coming from afar, wreaking havoc and leaving without consequences. 
 
The fallout for us is a diminished life quality - broken sleep, distress and a state of alarm. 
 
A nightclub is simply not suitable for this location. 
 

• ,  
Received: 8 Feb 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
RE THE PREVENTION OF PUBLIC NUISANCE 
 
A Review of Licence for Ma Dames, Porchester Road, London W2 is pending.  I live at 

 which is in sight and sound of the Porchester Road and I 
have been disturbed by noisy nightclubbers loitering in our street after Ma Dames closes 
on many occasions over the years.  But I should like to make another point.  I am a 
psychotherapist and know some of the neighbours who have been most impacted by 
this public nuisance.  I can vouch for the level of mental and physical stress which the 
disorderly behaviour in the middle of the night has on these neighbours.  In addition, we 
are all frustrated and upset by the lack of action taken against the club.   
 
I do hope that more effective restraints will be brought to bear on Ma Dames when the 
review takes place. 
 

•   
Received: 3 Mar 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
We have lived on  since 2002. In the period since Ma Dames has 
opened my family and children have experienced many evenings and early mornings of 
uninterrupted sleep and anti-social behaviour. The cause has been the patrons of the 
night club leaving the premises and hanging around on the streets and with this comes 
the anti-social behaviour and disorder. This varies from urination, vomiting, drug dealing, 
drug taking, shouting, screaming, and fighting. When the club closes we have also 
experienced cars stopping and hanging around with engines running, the music full on 
outside our house. The cars then race up and down our road, a serious danger to public 
safety. Not a reasonable environment for children and families trying to sleep. 
 
During the pandemic and the restrictions we saw little if no activity at Ma Dame due to 
the governments guidelines. It is worth noting that there would have been fewer 
complaints from residents during this period and that any recent observations and 
inspections regarding the premises should be considered in this light. I would also like 
you to note that the applicant appears to have reduced the number of late night 
'Temporary event notice' events in the lead up to this application. We are very 
concerned that should the applicant return to making regular 'Tens' events our sleep is 
going to suffer further. 
 
We do not live in a 'Stress Area' but a residential area with a caring community which is 

page 334



not suitable for a night club with late opening hours. This point needs to be considered 
when evaluating the suitability of this venue and use.  
 
The applicant has not behaved in a responsible and considerate manor towards the 
community which is both upsetting and very stressful. We strongly request that you 
revoke the License for the Premises known as Ma Dames and look after and consider 
the well-being of the residents within this area and your borough. 
 

•  
Received: 7 Feb 2022 by  
SUPPORT  
 
My husband and I live at , and we have been subject to 
countless nights of noise / waking up our young kids / violent and abusive language and 
behavior outside our front door / crime and disorder / and fear of danger to our family 
due to Ma Dames nightclub and the events that they hold until 3 in the morning on many 
weekends.  
 
This relates to the reference 22/01181/LIREVP, as we understand that finally their 
license is being reviewed by the council.   
We live on this street and in this area because we considered it to be a safe 
neighbourhood and fit for a family.  However, Ma Dames nightclub and their clientele 
and events hosted have completely changed that feeling for us, given countless nights of 
extreme disturbance in the wee hours of the night / morning.  At 2, 3, 4 am many nights 
our whole household will be woken up by beeping cars, smashing glass bottles, fights 
breaking out on the street, loud profanity being yelled and threats of extreme violence 
right outside our door.  Our children are woken up and are terrified.  No matter how 
many times this feedback has been given to Ma Dames, urging them to pay for extra 
security on the streets, to end the events earlier, to ensure prevention of crime and 
disorder, prevention of public nuisance, and protection of the residents for their own 
safety, we've seen NO improvement whatsoever.   
 
We have filed many complaints with Westminster council online - called the police on 
several occasions, and even considered selling and moving from our wonderful home 
that we love so much, because it simply is not a sustainable way to live when weekend 
after weekend we have this kind of disturbance and danger outside our door.  Their 
clientele is clearly incredibly drunk and belligerent leaving their events, and it's simply 
unsafe, not to mention incredibly disruptive and frightening to all residents of the 
neighborhood. 
 
I sincerely hope that the council will do the right thing and revoke their license.  How 
many families and residents do you have to hear from, and how many times, in order for 
something to happen???  It's been years, and much distress.  We implore you to do the 
right thing by your neighborhood here, and help keep us all safe and protected. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 335



 

 
Breaches of Premises Licence Conditions 

 
 

 
 
 

page 336



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 337



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 338



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 339



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 340



 

  
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 341



 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

page 342



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 343



 

 
 

  
 
 
 
 

page 344



 

 
Breaches of Rules of Management and Licence condition 10 

 
 
 
 
 

 

page 345



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

page 346



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 347



 

 
Breaches of licensing objectives - failure to prevent public nuisance 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 348



 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 349



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 350



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 351



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

page 352



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 353



 

 
 Breaches of licensing objectives - failure to promote public safety 

  
 
 

  
 

page 354



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 355



 

 
 
Breaches of licensing objectives - failure to prevent crime and disorder 

 
 
 
 

page 356



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 357



I have lived in  for over 28 years. I remember when 58 Porchester Road was a 
restaurant/arts club serving food alongside light entertainment. It was supported on the whole by 
the locals. Because it was part of the community it understood that if it was to attract its target 
audience it needed to be mindful of their environment. 

Because of ever higher rent demands the venue became increasingly less viable as originally 
conceived. There was a shift in focus to dining with late night dancing trading as Cherry Jam. The 
later opening hours (to 1.30am) along with a different crowd (increasingly promoter generated 
events) and the escalating and repeated incidents of Anti-Social Behaviour culminated in a licence 
review in 2012 where the opening hours were curtailed and licensing conditions strengthened. Again 
such strictures made the venue less operationally profitable. Cherry Jam ceased. There was a hiatus 
when nothing happened at the premises for a year or thereabouts after which Son des Guitares Ltd 
took up the licence and began trading as Ma Dames. It operates solely as a night club. There is no 
restaurant any more. 

The director and licensee Jennifer Cassandri is the daughter of Jaques Cassandri, a notorious criminal 
who operated in France. His activities involved drug dealing prostitution and money laundering. In 
2018 she was convicted of several offences along with him and other members of his family. 
Interestingly Son des Guitares is the same company name used by her father for his businesses in 
France. I highlight this as Cassandri has displayed similar disregard for the licensing conditions et alia 
attached to Ma Dames and one wonders how she is deemed to be a fit and proper person to hold a 
premises licence or even whether she declared her previous conviction to the licensing authority. 

Sadly many of the same issues around anti-social behaviour and criminality that were evidenced to 
previous licensing committees in 2004,2007/8 and 2012 have occurred again repeatedly and 
increasingly over the last 5 years. The current licensee will claim that very few complaints have 
occurred particularly in 2020/21 when as we all know venues were shut for significant periods due 
to Covid and lately as the club has been largely closed. This does not give an accurate picture of the 
problems that this venue generates for the local community. Many of the complaints that have been 
logged with Westminster Council have been lost or misapplied due to inadequate systems which are 
not fit for purpose. Many incidents and complaints which have been made are not cross referenced 
or applied to Ma Dames. The agencies (Environmental Health and Police) are under-resourced and 
often unable to respond in a timely manner to complaints which pass without intervention. It 
doesn’t help that this venue is on the periphery of the relevant teams who concentrate their 
resources on the highly stressed and nightclub congested areas of the West End. Supposed 
monitoring of the premises is cursory and often the licensee is forewarned. Incidents include 
aggressive behaviour, fights, car racing, drug taking and dealing and generalised anti-social 
behaviour and public nuisance.  

The premises licence has had extensive conditions applied to it over the years. The purpose of these 
conditions was to limit the type of event and clientele that were a significant contributor to the 
problems and additionally to put a structure around security and dispersal of patrons. These 
conditions are rightly stringent and as such are rarely applied by the licensee. She might argue that 
they are difficult and expensive to enforce. In truth if one needs to apply so many such conditions to 
the licence one should be asking whether such a venue should even exist in what is an 
overwhelmingly residential area populated mainly by families. It must be unreasonable that there 
are residents who look to see when promoted events are taking place and go away for the weekend 
to avoid the disturbance that often eventuates. Many residents are intimidated and frightened to 
speak out. Some have been verbally abused and suffered threatening language by door staff. They 
are mindful of the licensee’s background in organised crime and are reluctant to protest too overtly. 
I have been physically and verbally threatened by patrons of the club when observing incidents. On 

Revised Statement of Mr Avis

page 358



one occasion I was attacked and injured, the police came but ‘unfortunately’ the club’s video system 
which could have supplied evidence of the attackers was not working that night. Ironically I have 
written evidence from Cassandri herself apologising to me after yet another disturbance saying that 
‘as a mother of 2 children herself she would not tolerate this.’ She also admits in another text that 
she ‘attracts a bad crowd.’ 
  
It has become incontrovertible that this venue which operates solely as a night club and relies on 
promoted events targeting a non-local clientele (often drunk or high, and sometimes aggressive) 
with a dependence on Temporary Event notices should not be operating in what is overwhelmingly a 
residential area. 
  
I am writing this not only in a personal capacity but as the chairman of  

. I was asked by several people to take on this role specifically to campaign for the 
revocation of Ma Dames’ licence. There are many local people who have lost faith in the Council, the 
Police and Environmental Health. I urge you to revoke the licence. 
 

page 359



Appendix 6 
Interested Party and Licence Holder representations in support of the Premises 

• 
London 
Received: 7 Mar 2022 
OBJECTION  

I have lived on  road for the last 19 years and have not one complaint to 
make towards The club Madame on Porchester road. The owner has always been very nice. 
When she first took over the club she invited many of the locals down for nibbles and drinks to 
say hello and introduce herself. The club noise has never stood out to me and as a local resident 
and a woman I often feel safer going home at night knowing there is security nearby. 

• 
Received: 7 Mar 2022 
OBJECTION  

To whom it may concern, 

I am a man in his 60s who  for the last 20+ years - I have not one 
complaint about it. I feel the area itself is safer with it there. I am an ex publican and club owner 
and know how important this venue is to young people. My daughters used to go to it and have 
always had such a great time. I have heard about some of the awful things the residents have 
said and done to the woman that runs it. It's not fair and the club has my full support - it would be 
a real shame to lose such a brilliant venue for young people in west london. 

• 
Received: 7 Mar 2022 
OBJECTION  

 ("JC") objects to the premises licence that she holds being revoked.  
JC has held the premises licence since 2015. JC has lived in the UK since 2012 & has no 
convictions, cautions, reprimands, warnings and/or arrests recorded against her in the UK. The 
conviction in France relates to acts committed by a third party, in JC's French company's name. 
Due to the fact that JC was the owner of the company, JC was left to take responsibility for the 
actions of the third party.  
JC does not accept that most of the allegations of anti-social behaviour relate to customers 
("Patrons"), who have attended Ma Dame. Pictures of litter in the street have been relied upon to 
support the revocation of the premises licence. This includes pictures of alcohol bottles that are 
not sold and/or supplied to Patrons. Such items couldn't have been discarded by Patrons. There 
is a very strict search policy on entering Ma Dame, which means no Patron can enter the 
premises with a drink bottle of any sort, nor can they enter with a nitrous oxide canister. Patrons 
aren't allowed to take a drink from inside the premises outside onto the street. There has been no 
complaint any Patron has brought a drink from inside the premises to outside. 
There is a negative undertone in some of the witness statements, e.g. referencing Ma Dame's 
"R'n'B events". JC is very keen to work with residents as she has done so previously. JC wishes 
to actively engage with local residents, the Council & other interested parties to reduce anti-social 
behaviour in the area. Any suggestion that JC has failed to do so and/or is incapable of doing so, 
is offensive & untrue. JC takes each & every complaint, whether justified or not, seriously & would 
like to reassure the residents and interested parties of her commitment to dealing with issues that 
have been highlighted. 

page 360



 

 
Annex 7  

Licence & Appeal History 
 

Licensing Act 2003 History 

 
Application 

Details of Application Date Determined Decision 

05/11022/LIPC Premises Licence - Conversion 5th October 2005 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

07/00844/LIPT Transfer of Premises Licence 
Holder from Mr Alan Grant to 
Cherry Jam Leisure Limited 

8th March 2007 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

07/00849/LIPDPS Premises Licence – Vary a DPS 8th March 2007 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

06/05336/WCCMAP Master Licence 8th March 2007 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

07/05674/LIPV Premises Licence – Variation – To 
increase the terminal hour by 30 
minutes from 01:30 to 02:00 on 
each of the days Thursday, Friday 
and Saturday for Live Music, 
Recorded Music, Performance of 
Dance, Anything of a similar 
description to Live Music, 
Recorded Music and Dance, 
Facilities for Making Music, 
Facilities for Dancing and Anything 
of a similar description to Making 
Music and Dancing. 
To reduce the terminal hour by 1 
hour 30 minutes from 01:30 to 
00:00 on each of the days Monday, 
Tuesday and Wednesday for Live 
Music, Recorded Music, 
Performance of Dance, Anything of 
a similar description to Live Music, 
Recorded Music and Dance, 
Facilities for Making Music, 
Facilities for Dancing and Anything 
of a similar description to Making 
Music and Dancing 
Late Night Refreshment: 
To reduce the terminal hour by 2 
hours from 02:00 to 00:00 on each 
of the days Monday, Tuesday and 
Wednesday. 
Sale by Retail of Alcohol: To 
increase the terminal hour by 30 
minutes from 01:30 to 02:00 on 
each of the days Thursday, Friday 
and Saturday. 
To reduce the terminal hour by 1 
hour 30 minutes from 01:30 to 
00:00 on each of the days Monday, 
Tuesday and Wednesday. 

18th October 2007 Refused by Licensing 
Sub-Committee 

09/01549/LIPDPS Premises Licence – Vary a DPS 18th June 2009 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

page 361



 

12/07374/LIPT Transfer of Premises Licence 
Holder from Cherry Jam Leisure 
Limited to Ever Fortune Limited 

2nd October 2012 Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

13/06378/LIPVM Minor Variation – To vary the 
layout and add conditions 

12th September 
2012 

Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

15/09364/LIPDPS Premises Licence – Vary a DPS 14th December 
2015 

Granted under 
Delegated Authority 

 
Licensing Act 2003 History 

 
Application 

Details of Application Date Determined Decision 

12/08010/LIREVP Review of Premises Licence – The 
Prevention of Public Nuisance 

8th November 
2012 

Granted at Licensing 
Sub-Committee 

 
Appeal History 
 
The Licensing Authority submitted a Review on the premises at 58 Porchester Road, London due to a 
number of complaints since 2007 of anti-social behaviour and the premises is unable to promote the 
Licensing Objectives of Prevention of Public Nuisance.  On 8th November 2012 the Licensing Sub-
Committee decided that it was appropriate and proportionate to cut back the licensable activities so 
that the sale of alcohol would cease at 11.30pm Sunday to Thursday and all other licensable activities 
would cease at midnight when patrons would also be expected to leave the premises. On Friday and 
Saturday the sale of alcohol would cease at midnight and all other licensable activities would 
conclude at 12.30am when patrons would be expected to leave the premises.  
 
On the 21st December 2012 the Premises Licence Holder lodged an appeal to the magistrates court 
and on the 14th June 2013 the judge over turned the decision of the Licensing Sub-Committee and 
reverted the hours back. 
 
TENS history for premises: 
 

TENS Application  Details of Application Date Determined Decision 

17/00682/LITENP Temporary Event Notice  30th January 2017 Notice Granted 

17/02284/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 24th March 2017 Notice Granted 

17/03443/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 12th April 2017 Notice Granted 

17/06150/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 13th June 2017 Notice Granted 

17/09969/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 18th December 
2017 

Notice Granted 

17/10526/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 6th December 
2017 

Notice Granted 

17/10910/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 10th October 2017 Notice Granted 

17/10911/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 10th October 2017 Notice Granted 

17/11764/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 23rd October 2017 Notice Granted 

17/13449/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 20th November 
2017 

Notice Refused – Due 
to EH Representation 

17/14316/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 7th December 
2017 

Notice Granted 

page 362



 

17/14830/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 21st December 
2017 

Notice Granted 

18/00695/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 30th January 2018 Notice Granted 

18/01400/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 15th February 
2018 

Notice Granted 

18/02368/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 21st March 2018 Notice Granted 

18/02370/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 21st March 2018 Notice Granted 

18/03137/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 28th March 2018 Notice Granted 

18/05170/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 1st June 2018 Notice Granted 

18/05322/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 22nd May 2018 Notice Granted 

18/05324/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 22nd May 2018 Notice Granted 

18/09276/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 14th August 2018 Notice Granted 

18/10909/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 1st October 2018 Notice Granted 

18/12137/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 18th October 2018 Notice Granted 

18/12253/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 18th October 2018 Notice Granted 

18/15492/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 11th December 
2018 

Notice Granted 

19/02181/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 4th March 2019 Notice Granted 

19/02838/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 6th June 2019 Notice Granted 

19/07388/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 27th June 2019 Notice Granted 

19/07389/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 27th June 2019 Notice Granted 

19/08809/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 16th August 2019 Notice Granted 

19/10610/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 12th September 
2019 

Notice Granted 

19/13013/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 14th October 2019 Notice Granted 

19/13623/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 23rd October 2019 Notice Granted 

19/14059/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 8th November 
2019 

Notice Granted 

19/14746/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 11th November 
2019 

Notice Refused – 
Exceeded Number of 
Days  

20/00935/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 3rd February 2020 Notice Granted 

page 363



 

20/00937/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 3rd February 2020 Notice Granted 

20/01657/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 27th February 
2020 

Notice Granted 

20/02829/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 16th March 2020 Notice Granted 

21/08091/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 20th August 2021 Notice Granted 

21/08998/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 9th September 
2021 

Notice Granted 

21/08999/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 9th September 
2021 

Notice Granted 

21/09479/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 24th September 
2021 

Notice Granted 

21/09484/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 24th September 
2021 

Notice Granted 

21/10951/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 18th October 2021 Notice Granted 

21/11492/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 21st October 2021 Notice Granted 

21/13026/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 26th November 
2021 

Notice Granted 

22/00354/LITENP Temporary Event Notice 28th January 2022  Notice Refused by 
Licensing Sub-
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

page 364



 

Annex 8 
Licensing Sub-Committee Decision 8th November 2012 

 

 
 
 
 

page 365



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 366



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 367



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 368



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 369



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 370



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 371



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 372



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 373



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 374



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 375



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 376



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 377



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 378



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 379



 

Annex 9 
Magistrates Court Appeal Decision 

 
 
 
 
 

page 380



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 381



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 382



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 383



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 384



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 385



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 386



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

page 387



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 388



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 389



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 390



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 391



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 392



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 393



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

page 394



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 395



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 396



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 397



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 398



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 399



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 400



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

page 401



 

 
Annex 10 

Residential Map and List of Premises in the Vicinity 
 

 
 

Resident Count = 167 
 

Licensed premises within 75 metres of 58 Porchester Road, London 
 

Licence Number  Trading Name   Address  Premises 
Type  

 Time Period 

15/09364/LIPDPS Ma Dame 58 Porchester 
Road London W2 
6ET 

Night clubs 
and discos 

Sunday; 09:00 - 22:30 | 
Monday to Wednesday; 
09:00 - 23:30 | Thursday 
to Saturday; 09:00 - 
02:00 

06/12257/WCCMAP Porchester News Ground Floor 56 
Porchester Road 
London W2 6ET 

Shop Sunday; 10:00 - 19:00 | 
Monday to Saturday; 
09:00 - 23:00 

21/14426/LIPDPS Tedzukuri 
Restaurant 

Basement And 
Ground Floor 54 
Porchester Road 
London W2 6ET 

Restaurant Sunday; 12:00 - 22:30 | 
Monday to Thursday; 
10:00 - 23:30 | Friday to 
Saturday; 10:00 - 00:00 
| Sundays before Bank 
Holidays; 12:00 - 00:00 

06/12508/WCCMAP Bengal 
Restaurant 

62 Porchester 
Road London W2 
6ET 

Restaurant Sunday; 12:00 - 00:00 | 
Monday to Saturday; 
10:00 - 00:30 

 

page 402


	Agenda
	1. Ma Dames, 58 Porchester Road, W2 6ET



